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In the area around El Aloun in eastern Horocco,
Colonel Voinot discovered the ruins of several
native villages. Most of the villages occupy sites
with some natural protection, ond a number were also
surrounded by defensive walls. They vary greatly in
size; the largest covered an area of 10 hectares, but
others were under one hectare in area, They were
built of dry-stone but few of the walls were standing
above ground level, and in some places not even the

foundations were vislble, Gmnsequently, Voinot couvld

draw very Tew conclusions gbout the internsl lay#out
of these sltes, However, at three of the sites,
quefa Maalla, Ras Irsane, and Kerkour Aghram, he was
able to distinguish traces of small houses, several
large courtyards, and one or two silosﬂ'

1. Voinot,L., 'Note sur les tumuli et quelques
ruines des environs 4A'El Aloun -
S81di Mellouk (Maroc oriental)’,
Bgd‘O.g 1916’ e 2624» - 277
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Although this site was recorded by Gsell in his
1atlas Archéologloue de 1'Algérie’ (1911), 1t wae not
investignted until 1955, Tn that year Couvert and
Marion, under the general direction of Janier, sur-
veyed the site, and made a number of trial excevations.
The results of their work, including a genaral descrip-
tion of the vuins, was published in 1959.

The ruins at S5idi Medjahed are situated twelve
xilometres 4o the south-east of Marnia, snd occupy &
promontory enclosed on three sides by a meander of
the Oued Tafna. This promontory site is naturally
protected by steep, glmost eliff-like, slopes, and is
only accessible along its northern edges, where the
remains of stout ramparts can be geen (fig.1l). The
ramparts, which are 100 netres long on the west pide
and 1%0~140 metres long on the east side, are bullt
with a double facing, the interval peing f1llled wlth
unworked stones cemented together, but not forming
regular courses. The sast rampart is very well pre-
aserved, in parts, and 1s congtructed on a raft of very
large worked stones, The west rampart, which is of
inferior construction, is less well pressrved; parts
of the central core and a gsecltion of the inner wall
conatructed of worked stones of mediunm dimensions are
atill visible, and both rest directly on hedrock.
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There are four defended gateways through the
ramparts; three on the east and one on the west side
(fig.1). CGateway 2 was excavated, and was found to

be constructed of large regular ashlars., An inscrip-

tion T (or T) ERNATEN ELAVRENTI (or A)
(fig.2 B) ned been carved on the mortar layer between
two of these blocks., The individual letters were
approximately 7 cms high, A second inscription
VERECUNDE was discovered on one of the blocks
built into the south wall of the gateway. The letters
were formed. of broken line incisions (fig. 2 C). At
Gateway 1, Janier discovered two pillars 2,25 m high
and a lintel 2.4 m long withvmoulding on one of the
faces (fig 3A). Two other pillars 1,80m high were
found in place, These discoveries suggest‘to Marion
that this was a monumental gateway, and the main
entrence into the enclosed area, Twentyntwo'masons'
marks were found on the stone blocks used in the
construction of the ramparts and gateways (fige 24)3
nos. 1«2 at Gateway L; 3-8 between Gateways L and 3;
9-12 near Gateway 3; 13«15 at Gateway 3; 17~19 between
Gateway 2 snd the north angle of the ramparts; and 20~
22 at Gateway 1. On the summit of the promontory
Marion discovered two or three silos,.

The small objects Ffound at Sidi Medjahed in 1955
include:

1le numerous sherds of coarse pottery;
Couvert was able to recomstruct two pots

(fig. 3. C). |
. several fragments of glass.
Py a sherd of pottery of the Areb period.

N



i, the base of a jar with the merk of a
crogss on it.

5., copper nails and a copper clamp or clip;
found at Gateway 2.

6. a capltal, one side of which ls decorated
with a Berber and probably Christian
motif (dimensions - upper surface 65x50 cms
lower surface LOx38 cms., height U8 cms);
found on the bed of the Oued Tafna below
Gateway 2 (fig. 3 B). <

Te fragment of a flat, polish@d stone axe;
found on the sumnit of the promontory.

8. a sherd of pottery decorated with a
'ehrisme' flanked with an alpha and
omega; found on the summit of the pro-
montory.

9, fragment of an inscription; only four
letters can be made out, I L L A ; found
near the north angle of the ramparts.

But whét do these ruins represent?  The promontory
aite naturally protected by its very nature with the
most vulnerable parts reinforced by a defensive wall,
together with its position to the south of the Severan
limes in the north-western part of the Monts de Tlemgen
( map 7 ) suggests that Sidi Medjahed is a native
rather than a Roman site. No internsl buildings are
visible and no excavations were carried out on the
summit of the promontory, but the stout ramparts must
have been constructed to protect something. The site,
which covers an area of under one hectare, 1ls too small
to represent a fortified village, and one would not
expect the inhabitants of a hamlet or lsolated farm-
stead to construct such impressive ramparts or the
monumental gateway. The decorated caplbal discovered
there implies that there was at least one substantial
building at Sidi Medjahed, and it seems probable that
this site represents the fortified residence of a native
chief,
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The use of dressed stones in the construction of
the ramparts and gateway, the three inscriptions, the
masons' marks, the sherd of pottery decorated with a

'chrisme' flanked by an alpha and omega, and the capital

decorated with a Berber and Christian motif, all prove
that this site was occupied during the Roman or immedi-
ate post-Roman periods 2 by a native who was In some
degree Romanised, Marion makes the interesting
suggestion that Sidi Med jahed was pérhaps a stronghold
of Masuna, King of the Moors and the Romans.3 What
we do not knowy and what only excavations paying care=
ful attention to stratigraphy will reveal, is whether
81di Medjahed was first occupied during the Roman or
immediate post~Roman periods, having been chosen by a
native chief as the site for a fortified residence; or
whether the site was occupied before the Roman period
and was, at a later date, rebuilt in its present form
by the occupant who had assimilated something of Roman
civilisation. The polished stone axe dliscovered on
the summit of the promontory implies that the slte was
occupied at an early date, perhaps as early as the
neolithic, although it is not proof of a permanent set-
tlement there. |

1., Marion, J., ’L'éperon fortifie de Sidi-Medjahed
(Orani@)', IJ.A-.E.’ Volo‘?g 1959’ ]’)p.Q?-'Ll.l.

2. Although Mauretania Caesariensis ceased to be a
Roman province in the first half of the 5th century
Romariised communities continued to occupy several
settlements - Altava, Pomaria, Aquae Sirenses, -
during the 6th and 7th centuries.

%, He recalls the famous inseription (C.I.L. 9835) which
was set up for the health of Masuna, rex Maurorum et
Romanorum at Altava in AD 508 (gar§on,J.,l959,idem,

Pe Ula)e
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B Koudiat-er~Roum,

L, Koudiat-en-Nessara.

Gsell in his 'Atlas Archéologique de 1'Algérie'
records the existence of a large énclosure at Koudiat-
er-Roum (Map 42 no. 17).  But there is nothing of
impoftance at Site 17, and it is at Site 18 that the
hillock known as Koudiat-er-Roum, and the native ruins,
are to be found, Koudiat-~er~Roum, which rises to a
height of 891 metres, dominates the small viklage of
Tleta situated in the 'douar des Azail' twenty-five
kilometres to the south-west of Tlemgen, The flat-
topped hillock has steep slopes on all except the
northern side where the land slopes gently down to the
Oued Tafna. On the summit of this hillock are the
remains of an irregular enclosure 200 netres long and
100 metres wide, which is protected by numerous square
towers, The ramparts are between 1,30 and 1.L40 m in
thickness and are carefully constructed of dressed stones
joined together with mortar. Ingide the perimeter wall
which encloses an area of 2 hectares theéere are traces of
a nunber of rectangular houses., They appear to have
been constructed with care, and the corners form almost

perfect right angles,

There are similar ruins on the summit of a nearby
hillock known as Koudiat-en-Nessara (900 metres)which
overlooks the village of Taffessera.l

The ruins at Koudiatuer—Roum and Koudiat-en-Nessara
appear to represent two mative villages which were
certainly occupied during the Roman or immediate post-
Roman periods, since the inhabitants were strongly



influenced by Roman building techniques., Roman
influences are apparent in the construction of the main
rémparts at Koudiatwer—Roum, which are similar to the
north ramparts of the Roman city of Altava, and in the
carefully constructed, rectangular houses. Two
Christian tombstones of the 6th century now in the
Tlemgen Huseum are reported as having been discovered at
Zohra and Taffessera, but Courtotginforms me that this

is not certain and, while it 1s possible that they were
discovered there, they might equally have come from the
Roman ruins at Tlemgen itself, From such a brief
description of the ruins it is impossible to determine
whether the villages were founded during the Homen or the
immediate post-Roman periods by Berber communities who
had acquired some knowledge of Roman building techniques,
or whether they were in existence before the Roman period
and were rebuilt at a later date by the villagers who

had learnt more sophisticated bullding techniques from
their contact with the Romanised areas further north.

l. BQA}.O., 195u9 pp071”73

2. Paul Courtot was formerly the director of the lhth
Circonseription Archéologique' with its centre at
Quled Mimoun, the Roman Altava.



5. Ain el Turck,

In the area around Ain el Turck, which is situated
between the northern slopes of the Djebel Murdjadjo and
the Mediterranean coast, Blanché discovered the ruins of
eight Berber villages. They occupy defensive sites,
and also appear to have been protected by ramparts.

The villages vary greatly in size; the largest covers

an area of 30 hectares, and the smallest only one hectare,
Both the ramparts and the house walls were constructed

of dry«stone; they were formed of two rows of large
slabs with a core of earth and rubble. One feature
which characterised this group of native sites was the
large number of grain silos: - Blanché found as many as
60 at one village, He also found several mill-stones
and sheprds of pottery.l

1. Blanché, F., 'Ruines berberes des environs d'Ain Turck',
Bnd'O;y 1913, pp. 223~230.,



6s____Ain Nekrouf.

In 1920 Blanche published a short description of
the native ruins near Ain Nekrouf, which is situated
on the northern slopes of the Monts de Tlemgen, 3%
kilometres to the south of Tafaman station. The
ruins occupy three low hillocks. On the first
hilloek, which is 100 metres long, Blanché found
traces of an oval enclosure (LOx30 metres) with walls
0,80 ~ 1 m. in thickness. On the northern part of
the second hillock he found the remains of a wall
30 metres long, A hundred metres from this wall,
and on the same line, was another wall 50 metres long.
On one of the slopes of this hillock he found a grain
silo. The third hillock was covered with unworked
stones, but Blanché was able to distinguish traces of
- geveral walls.l

The ruins which occupy the second hillock may rep~
resent a small native village or hamlet.

1, Blanché,F.,'L'Ain Nekrouf et les ruines berberes’,
Bod’On! VOliLl-Og 19209 ppg167“"l720
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7. _Kersout,

There were native ruins on the navrow, flate-
topped summit of the Djebel Kersout, (782 metres),
which is one of the northern spurs of the Monts de
Daya, This is a promontory site, naturally protected
by very steep slopes: De la Blanchdre found traces
:of a perimetsr wall enclosing a large area; inside,
the walls of numerous small houses were still visible,
some standing to two metres above ground level.

Most of the houses consisted of only two rooms,
although a number were surrounded by a small enclosure,
He also found several grain silos.l

The ruins represent a large, fortified, native
village.

1. de la Blenchére, R., Voyage d'étude dans une partie
: - de la Maurétanie Ceésarienne, fxtrailt des
Archives des Missions Scientifiques et
litteraires, Troisieme Série, Vol,10, Paria,
1883, PP. 29-31,
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The native ruins at Koliaa occupy a promontory
gite with steep, almost vertical, slopes, De 1la
Blanchere found traces of a defensive wall constructed
all round the edges of the summit of the promontory,
and inside the enclosed area he found numerous small
houses and silos.l ‘The discovery of a cistern of
Roman construction implies that this native village
was occupied during the Roman or‘immediate pogt-~-Roman
periods and that the inhabitants were influenced by
Roman building techniques.

1. de la Blanchere, R., Voyage a'étude dans une partie
de la Maurétanie Cesarienne, Extralt des
Archives des Missions bcientlfiques et
Litteraires, Troisieme Seérie, Vol,1l0, Paris,
1883, pd}la
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9 ® K&Pkab o

The native ruins at Karkab occupy a plateau with
steep, near vertical slopes. De la Blanchere found
traces of a2 defensive wall enclosing an area 580 paces
long by 390 paces wide. Inside the'enQIOSure,’whieh
was constructed of dry, unworked stones, werevthe
remains of numerous houses also constructed of unworked
stones, In the nearby cemetery he discovered a
pre-Roman, Libyan inscription which implies that this
village was occupied before the Roman period., No
" traces of Roman influences were indicated, so that we
do not know whether this site continued to be occupled
during the Roman period. 1

l.de la Blanchere, R., Voyage d'étude dans une partie
de la Maurétanie Césarienne, Extrait des
Archives des Missions Sceientifiqueset
Titteraires, Troisiéme 8érie, Vol,10, Paris,
1883, pp. U3~L5.
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10, Tidernatin,

Both de la Blanchére and Fort visited the native
ruing at Tidernatin, which is situated five kilometres
to the south of Saida, The ruins occupy the summit
of a flat-topped plateau (1100 metres long by 600 metres
wide) with very steep slopes down to the Oued Salda in
the north, and down to a deep ravine to the east. The
western slopes are more gentle, but the main access 0
this promontory site is from the south (fig.l) De la
Blanchére found traces of a wall constructed to pro-
tect the west side of the plateau, and a second wall
A B (fig.l), which was still standing to a height of
1450 ms, across the narrow isthmus on the south side of
the site, The latter, which was 1.40 m, thick, was
constructed of large, unworked stones; A narrow -
gateway in the west side of this wall, between the
wall and the steep slope of the plateau, appeared to be
the only entrance to the site. De la Blanchére also
described two semi=circular enclosures, 20 metres in
diameter, constructed against the second wall A B (fig.h).
Al though they looked like bastions, because of their size
he concluded that they were probably animal enclosures,
Irregularly dispersed inside the main enclosure, which
covers an area of B0 hectares, were traces of a number
of square and rectangular houses 4 - 5 m. long. The
walls of these structures consisted of an inner and
outer face, with a core of rubble and earth. A mill-
stone was found in one of the buildings, and in others,
carbonised cepreal grains. - Tidernatin was clearly a
large fortified village.
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- An interesting discovery was a crudely worked base
of a small column (23 cms high and 30 cms wide) which
may have belonged to a more substantial building (fig.l).
This plece of evidence does suggest that the inhabitants
of Tidernatin were not totally isolated from Roman
influences.

1. de la Blanchere, R,, Voyage d'étude dans une partie
de la Maurétanie Cebarienne, BIxtralt des
Archives des Missions Belentifiques et
Litteraires, Troisieme Sdrie, Vol.1l0, Paris,
1883, pp.u6~4L8,



FlG. 4

PLAN OF

THE  RUINS AT

TIDERNATIN

COLUMN BASE FOUND
AMONG THE RUINS

30
) cMS

0

RAMPARTS
STEEP SLOPES
HOUSES

ENTRANCE

100 200 300 400 500

METRES

O 10 20 30 40 50

METRES




15

1ls Mtalsa,

Baras of the 'Bureau Arabe de Daya' described in
some detall the extensive native ruins at Mtelsa,
situated five kilometres to the north-west of Ain
Timetlas in that part of the High Plains which lies
immediately to the south of the Monts de Saida, The
ruins occupied a low hill (1,150 metres) from which
there was a commanding view of the surrounding plain.
The walls of an irregular enclosure (650 metres long
“and 150-200 metres wide) were still visible, and in a
number of places they stood to between 1m and 1,50 m
high (fig. 5). They were constructed of heavy stones,
meny of which had been worked. Barags found no trace
of‘a ditch surrounding the enclosure,

Inside the perimeter wall were the remains of
numerous houses srranged with a certain regularity.
They were constructed of dry-stone, and a few stones had
been roughly worked., Walls constructed in this way
would probably have had a maximwun helght of about two
metres, so that wood must have been an important
supplementary building material. The type of house
most commonly found was composed of a rectangular courte
yvard with a range of four rooms along one side, Inside
the courtyard were one or two towers between 0,50 - 1 nm
in diameter, which de la Blanchere believed to be
granaries (figs 5 inset). Baras also discovered a
large nunber of stone~lined grain silos. The ruins at
Mtalse cover an area of 13 hectares, and this was clearly
a fortified native village of some importances
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Around the village there were numerous garden walls,
and beyond, many isolated houses, On the right bank of
the Oued Timetlas, which flows to the east of the village,
Baras found traces of a second, smaller enclosure which
he believed to be a suburb (fig.5). Numerous stone-
lined wells had been sunk into the bed of the Oued
Timetlas which at the present time ~ and prdbably also
during the early historical period -~ has an irregular '
flow; de la Blanchere maintained that the wells and the
native village were contemporary,

A large quantity of coarse pottery, very different
from that used by present-dsy inhabitants of this area,
was found among the ruins. The presence of several
sherds of fine pottery suggested to de 1la Blanchére that
occupation continued at Timetlas during the Homan.period%

1. de la Blanchere, R., Voyage d'étude dans une partie
de la Maurétanie Cesarienne, Bxtrait des
Archives des Missions Scientifiques et
Litteraires, Troisieme Se€rie, Vol,l0, Paris,
1883, pp. 55-57«
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12, Ain Balloul.

Fort visited the ruins at Ain Balloul in 1907.
He Tound the remains of a rectangular enclosure, v
(1500 x 300 metres) constructed of large, irregular
and unworked stones (figs6)s Inside the enclosure
were what appeared to be a number of long, narrow
buildings divided up into several rooms or compartments,
ags well as many isolated secondary walls., These
internal walls were also constructed of unworked stone,
although there were a few more regular stone blocks
which may have been worked and perhaps formed the angles
of the buildinQSsl

It is difficult to determine what the site at Ain
Balloul in fact represents. Gsell in his 'Atlas
Archéologique de 1'Algerie' has suggested that this was
a Roman forﬁ.g Albertini was convinced that Ain Balloul
was situated on the Romen road which linked Cohors
Breucorum and Ala Miliaria,3 élthough Gauthier has
since proved that this road took a more northerly route?
Balama maintains that this site represents a southern
outpost of the Severan liﬂﬁéB' From Port's description
and plan of the site, Ain Bslloul was certainly not a
toman fort. The widespread use of unworked stone and

the fact that the ruins cover a very large area (L5
hectares) suggest that Ain Balloul was a Berber settle-
ment, while the regular form of the main enclosure and
some of the internal buildings may reflect the influence
of Roman building techniques.

le Forty 'Note sur les vestiges archeologloues d'Ain
Balloul', B.d'O,, Vol27, 1907, pp.237-242,

(and overleaf.)
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Gsell, 8B,, Atlss Archéologique de 1'dgérie,
Pavris, 1911, Map 52, site no. 126

Albertini, E., 'La route-frontiere de la Mauretanie
Césarienne entre Boghar et Lalla-
Maghnia', B.a'0., 1928, p.38.

Gauthier, R¢, 'Contribution & 1'étude tracé de la
route-frontisre de la Maurétanie
Césarienne', R.ii, 1933, pp. L4L9-U5T

 Salama, P.,Nouyeaux témoignages de l'oeuvre des

Severes dans la Maurétanie Cebarienne',
(Par‘t 2) IJ:A..‘E&{ V01.3,1955, P9351,
Note 135n
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15, The SBersou,

o

Joly visited the ruins of many nstive villuges
in the western Iigh Plain of Sersou, and on the
northern slopes of the Djebel Nador, He noted that
the majority of the villages occupied sites that
were not easily accessible and that many were also
protected by stout ramparts. Only two or three
villages were situated in the pléin. le was convinced ‘
that some of these sites were occupied during the Roman
period, and among the ruins of one village in the
Djebel Noukhra near the Oued Touil he discovered sherds
of Roman pottery.l

1; L B Q.A.O C ° 9 1900 ] pp [ CL}{IV““CLXVI L}
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1l Chellalanv

15, Zenina .

Joly visited many of the native ruins around
Chellala in the Djebel ben Hammad, one of the narrow
chaing which project above the general level of the
interior High Plains, and near Zenina in the northern
nart of the Monts des Ouled Nail, He was able to
‘distinguish five types of native site:

L Inclosures without interior buildings.

2e Oval enclosures with one to three interiop

rooms (fig.7 A and B),

b Rectangular houses consisting of a courtyasrd
with two rooms along one side (fig.7 C and D),
Near Zenina a number of these houses are
found grouped together to form a small hamlet,
but ln the area around Chellala they are
widely dispersed,

L. Fortified hamlets; the houses are arranged.

in rows around the edges of a rectangular
enclosure and open on to an interior courtyard.
There is usually only one entrance but in
several cases, where the enclosure is divided

~into two quarters, each quarter has its own
entrance., This type of site appears to be
relatively recent (fig. 7 E and F),.

5 Large fortified villages occupying defensive

sites,

All these sites were constructed of dry stone. The
walls were formed of two rows of flags set on end with a
core of earth and rubble. However, Joly noted that to
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the north of Zenina a number of rectangular houses were
constructed of worked stones earefully laid in courses.

In the area around Zenina and Chellala he also
found the remains of small dams constructed across the
oueds. The aim wagto retain not the weter but the soil
carried by the irregular torrents. The small
terraces created in this way would be favourable for tree
crops and small fields of cereals.l

le JolysA., Repartition et Caractére des Vestiges Anciens
dans 1'Atlas Tellien (Ouest Oranais) et dans
les Bteppes Oranaises et Algézaires', R.A.,
VOl. 53, 1909, ppnl?)‘“l?o
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The Roman ruins st Damous are sltuated on the
right bank of the Oued Tafna, three kilometres upstream
from Mechera-Gueddara on the old road from Tlemgen to
Nemours. They cover an area of approximately ten
hectares and are enclosed on three sides by a meander
of' the Oued Tafna. Although the gite of the Roman
centre has been cleared in part for cultivation, one
can still see a large number of stones, inecluding
some worked stones, and the pressing floor of an olive
press with a circular channel to receive the oil.l
On the left bank of the Oued Tafna, 1,200 metres to the
north-cast, were the remains of a rectangular enclosure
200 x 100 metves.Q

Only one inscription from Damous is included in |
the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum (21797); it is a
civilian tonbstone set up in AD L84, In 1950 Courtot
and Janier discovered a second inscription among the
ruingy it is the tombstone of Valerius Soricinus who
died in AD LO9. Leschi visited Damous in 1953 and
dlscovered a third inscription among the ruins; it is
a civilian tombstone set up in AD L0O9O, In 1953%
Bouteille, a former mayor of Pont de l'Isser, and a
landowner in the neighbourhood of Damous, discovered two
inseriptions among the ruins which were transported to
his house in Pont de 1'Isser, and copied there by Courtot
and Janier, The inscriptions are both civilian tomb-
stones set up in AD 389 and 379 respectively. 5 4
sixth inscription was discovered by Janier in 1954 b
but the text has not been published, "
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The ruins at Damous are those of a small Roman town
which was certainly occupied in the Lth and 5th centuries,
The pressing floor discovered among the ruins proves that
a section of the community living there were farmers.
Damous was sltuated on the Roman road which linked
Numerﬁs'Syrorum,té 8iga, and which was constructed during
the first half of the 3rd centuryﬁb But we know nothing
sbout the origins of the settlement and the elucidation

of its detailed history must await excavation,

1. Courtoty Pas "Une ancienne cité romaine, Damous'
BpS.AsVéTQ,‘195h9 ppa60"65.

o, Canal, J., 'Monographie de l'arrondissement de
Tlemgen', B.d'0., Vol 8, 1888, p.63.

3. GduPtOﬁ,P., 195&, idema’ ppw60“620

L. Leglay,M., 'L'Archéologie Algérienne en 1954%,
L‘A.EL9 VOlAE, 19559 p3186. ‘

5., Salama,P., 'La Voie Romaine de la Vallee de la
Tafna" BOA.,.AJ, VOlogg 1966"'67’
ppe 211-216.
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17 NUMERUS SYRORUM,

In the'early 19th century there were sfiil
important Roman puins at Marnia, which is situated at
a height of 390 metres on the left bank of the Oued
HMehaguene, one of -the tributaries of the Oued Tafna,
Marnia lies several kilometres to the north-west of
the Monts de Tlemgen in the dry Plaine de Marnia, and
at the entrance to the vast Plaine des Angad of east-
ern Morocco, '

Gsell in his 'Atlas Archéologique de 1'Algérie!
(1911) provides a valuable summary of the early
descriptions of the Roman ruins. According to Azéma de
Montgravier, they consisted of a rectangular enclosure
(LOO metres long aend 250 metres wide) with four gateways
each flanked by towers. Ingide the walls, which were
protected by sguare bastiocns, were the renains of
numerous hulldings. The entire settlement was surroun-
ded by a deep diteh. Callier, on the other hand,
calculated that the enclosure measured 250 x 225 metres,
and beyond it to the south and south-ecast were numerous
tombstones., The walls of the enclosure-were 1,50 m. in
thickness. ©

In 18LL the ¥Yrench army occupied this area and con-
structed a fort on the site of the koman settlement.
Later, those parts of the ruins that had not already
been destroyed were used as a2 guarry by colonists who
came to settle outside the fort, and all traces of the
Boman settlement ravidly disappeared.
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The Ingcriptions from Marnia,

Porty inseriptions, including three milestones,
from Marnia sre ineluded in the Corpus Inscriptionum
Latinarun (9961 - 9987, 21799 - 21808, 10468 - 104,70),
Two milestones found at Hammam bou Ghara and one mile-

stone discovered at Larbout between Marnia and Siga ave
also included in the Corpus (22626 - 22628), In 1906
Bel published the text of an undated tonbstone from
Marnia.2 Fabre publisghed an inscription from Marnia

in 1925; it is a Christian tombstone set up in AD.BBB.3
In 1956 Janier published the texts of two inseriptions
from Marnia now in the Tlemgen Museum, The first is a
tombstone of a decurion, Domitius Germanus, who died in
AD 336; and the second is an undated and probably pagan
tonbstone, b in 1966 Salama published three new milem
stones discovered along the Roman road which linked Marnis
to Slga. The first was found 5% kms to the south-west

of Mechera Gueddara and was set up in AD 217 - 218 to
mark the 18th mile from Numerous Syrorum5; the second
was found on the right bank of the Tafna between Mechera
Gueddars and Damous, and was set up between AD 218 - 299
to mark the 21st mile6; and the third was found 1 km to
the south-west of Mechera Gueddara, and was set up during
the reign of Severus Alexander to mark the 22nd mile fron
Numerus Byrorum7.

What do we know of the origins and history of
the Roman settlement?

1. A military unit, the numerus Syrorum, was stationed

at Marnia before the reign of the Emperor MacrinusS,

(AD 217 - 218), This unit gave its name to the fort there.9
The date when the fort was constructed is uncertain,
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However, its situation at the western extremity of the
frontier which was established during}the reign of
Septimius Severus, and secondly the fact that the new
limes appears to heve heen conceived and executed as a
whole, suggests that Numerus Syrorum was a Severan
foundation.lO'

The inscription C.I.L. 9967 is the toubstone of a
centurioh, Valerius Germanus, whose unit is not named
but who died at Numerus Syrorum in AD 3%3 at the age of
58 years. The tombstone was set up by the man's fanlly
so that Valerius Germanus was no doubt a native of. this
place, The inseription implies the presence of a
military unit at Numerus Syrorum in the second halfl of
the Lth century, but it would be idle to speculate about
its strength and military effectiveness,

2. Numerus Syrorum was linked by road to §1g§}1 in the
north-east and to Pomarialg in the east, No milestones
have been dlscovered along the road which linked the
nilitary camps at Numerus Syrorum and Pomaria j but it
was probably constructed at the beginning of the 3rd
century as part of the organisation of the new limes.

The road from Numerus Syrorum to Siga, which follows the
valley of the OQued Tafna, was of the greatest strategic
importance; it linked Numerus Syrorum to the coast and
probably formed the effective western boundary of the
province.lh Although the earliest milestones discovered
along this route were set up during the reign of Macrinusl5
we cannot exclude the possibility that it was constructed
at the begilnning of the 3%rd century as part of the re-
organisation of the defences of Wauretania Caesariensis by
Septimiue Severus, This road was. kept in regular repair.
during the first decades of the 3rd century.16
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Several milestones set up along .the Roman road
from Numerus Syrorum teo Bigs were found in nlace, 80
that we know the exact location of the 8th, 15th, 18th,
2lgt, and 22nd miles. Yalama has been able to trace

the exact route taken by this road from Marnia itself

to one kilometre to the south-west of Mechera-Gueddara
where the milestone set up to mark the 22nd mile from
Nunerus 8Sypcrum was discovered, Beyond Mechera

Gueddara the precise route taken by this rosd is un-
certain, but the dlstance from Mechera Gueddara to Siga

is 33 kxmsor 2% Roman milesy this makes the total distance
trom Numerus Syrorum 1o Siga approximately U5 koman miles
(66,600 kms)s» lHowever, the milestone C.I.L. 10470, which
was set up at Numerus Syrorum itself, records & distance

of 37 Roman miles from Numerus Syrorum to giga. The sane
insceription records a distance of 29 Roman miles (L2,920 kms)
from Numerys Syrorum to Pomaris, and yet the distance

along the modern road from Marnia to Tlemgen is 56 kms,

Salama offers an interesting explanation for this anomaly.
He suggests that the figures recorded on the milestone do
not refer to the distances from Numerus Syrorum to Siga
and Pomsria but to the limlts of the territory of

Numerus Syrorum in two directions.17 The numerus Syrorum
had therefore the task of guarding an exceedingly large
frontier sector, including the Monts des Trars to the
north and the Monts de Tlemgen to the south and east;

this unit may also have been responsible for patrolling
the corridor leading to the Qued Moulouya and beyond it to

the province of Mauretania Tingiltana.



28

e There was an important civilian population at

Numerus Syrorum in the early Lth century. One of the
inscriptions published by Janier in 1956 is a tonbstone
set up in AD %36 in nmemory of the decurion Domitius
Germanus.ls This pfoves that by AD 336 the civil
settlement outside the fort had achieved the rank of a
chartered town. No dated civilian tombstones of the

srd century have been discovered ot Numerus Syrorum but
the presence of a military unit 19 no doubt attracted

o civilian population to the fort soon after it was
founded. The settlement grew to cover an ares of 10 hectares.
It was;protected by a wall with projecting bastions which
suggests that the defences were constructed after AD 30020.
Numerus Syrorum continued to be occupied at least until

the early 5th centuryel.

Lo There was a Christian community at Numerus'Syrorum
2 .

in the 4th 22 and early 5th centuries, CeloLie 9966 is

the tombstone of a priest who died in AD LO2. ’

le Azéma de Montgravier's description of the ruins appears
to be the one most wldely accepted, Notebly by Salama,
(Salama,P., 'La Vole Romaine de la Vallee de la Tafna',
 Badehe, Vo2, 1966-67, p.216 note ).

o, Bel,A., 'Guatre inscriptions (latines) du musee de
Tlemgen', Byd'0., 1906, p.L9l.

%, Pabre,S8., 'Inscription de Lalla Maghnia', B,d'0., 1925,
pP.L129 ~ 130.

lis Janier,B. 'Insciptions latines du Musde de Tlemgen',
LeAdBa, Volol, 1956,pp480~8L4.

5. Salama,b., 1966-67, idem, pp.1l91~192 (Borne 7).
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6. Salama,P., 1966-67, idem., pp. 193-194 (Borne 8).
7. Salama,P., 1966-67, idem., opel9U~195 (Borne 9).

8, Two milestones, discovered between Harnia and Siga,

were set up during the reign of Macrinus (AD 217-218)
t0 mark the 8th and 18th miles from Numerus Syrorum

(Cololis 22626 and Salama,P., 1966-67., p»1l91l Borne 7).
9, The name Numerus Syrorum is recorded on the following
inscriptions (C.L.L. 9962, 10L68-10470, 22626,

Salama,Pe, 1966-67, idem.y, p.191 Borne 7 and p.19L
Borne 9),

10.Large sectlions of the Severan frontier, including the
forts of Kaputtasaccura, Lucu, and Ala Miliaria to the
east of Numerus Syrorum were constructed in AD 201,

110, Tali. 10L68-~10470, 22626-22628, Salana,P., 1966-67,
iden., pPP.Ll91l-195 Bornes 7,8, and 9.

12.CeI L. 10470,
13,C.I.L, 10470, which records 29 Roman miles fron

PTG TRl

Syrorum itselfl,

1k, The means by which this road was protected remains
to be investigated further,

15, Cololie 226269 226289 Balama,P., 1966"679 id@mcg
P«191 Borne 7,

16, Milestones of the Emperors Elagabalus (AD 218-222)
(8olama,P., 1966-67, idem., p.193% Borne 8) and Severus
Alexander (AD 2022-235) (C.I.L. 10468-10470, Selama,P.,
1966-67, idems, P.19L, Borne 9) have been discovered
along this road.

17, Salama,P., 1966-67, idem., »«210,

18, Janier,8.,1956, idem., pp.80~82, This is the earliest
civilian inscription to be discovered at Numerus Syrorum.

19, We do not know the strength of the numerus Syrorum butb
the fact that it occupied a position of some strategic
importance implies that it was a fairly large unit.

o0, The enclosure described by .Azéma de Montgravier does
not represent the military camp as Salama maintains,
(8alama,P., 1966-67., idem., p.216 note 3), but the
defences of the vicus which grew up around the fort,
The exact location and the dimensions of the military
camp are not recorded.
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The most recent inscription to be discovered at
Numerus Syrorum is of the year AD L29 (C.I.L. 9984).
The inscription published by Janier and dated to

AD 336 1is a Christian tombstone (Janier,B., 1956,
idem., pp.80-82),
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18 0 Gulard,

There were very extensive Roman ruins to the norvth-
cast of the present village of Guiard until.thg impact
£ Furopesn colonisation on this region. Feyl described
a wall around the Roman 'town' and a fort on the highest
part of the hill, The Roman settlement was supplied
with water from two nearby springs; one 1o the north-
west at Aln Tolba, and another to the south at Si. Slimane,
There was a cemetery to the south of the Roman town,
According to Demaeght, writing in 1902, "Cette place
couvrait un mamelon de la rive droite de 1'Oued Ghazer, et
commandait cette vallee, celle de 1'0ued Alleche, la Tafna
au nord de Montagnac et, enfin, l'ancienne voile de Siga
(Takenbrit) a Albulae (Ain Temouchent). On y voyait
encore, il y a aquelques esnnees, les fondations d'une
enceinte fortifice et des alignements de nmalsons en
vierresde tallle," @ At the present time there are few
visible remains of the Roman townes

Although a number of latin inscriptions have been
discovered there many have been destroyed and others
were never recorded. The Cobpué gives the text of only
oneg inscription from Guisrd (2166L) which is undated; it is
a tombstone. In 1956 Janier, in an article in Libyca,-
mentioned a new inscription From Guiard not included in
the Corpus, but he does not give the text of the inscrip-
tion,

In 1890 Demaeght recorded that a crudely worked
capltal decorated with acanthus leaves, discovered among
the ruins at Guiard, had been presented to the Oran Museum
by I’{eirvl:z.LL
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On the limited evidence available it would not be
unreasonable to suggest that the site near Guiard began
as a small fort gusrding the road from Albulse to Siga.
A civil settlement developed outside the fort, and was
itself protected by a wall., Because of the lack of
insceriptionsit is impossible to determine the length of
time the site was occupied.

1. Fey,R.A.,, VOlaE’), 1858*"99 f’cuz?o

2. Demaeght, 'Catalogue Raisonné des Objets Archeéologiques
contenus dans le Musee d'Oran', B,d'0., 1902, p.62.

3. Janler,E., 'Inscriptions latines du Musée de Tlemgen',
IJOAOE;‘-'“; VhOle-]-, 1956, }?-73‘0

L+ Demaeght, 'Inseriptions inddites de la Province d'Opan',
B.d'0,, Vol.1l0, 1890, p.221,
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19, PRAESIDIUM ‘SUFATIVE/ALBULAE.

Until the second half of the 19th century, import~
ent Roman ruins extended over the area which is now
occupled by thqborthern suburbs of the town of Ain
Témouchent.,  The ruins occupied @ low plateau (250 metres)
at the foot of the northern slopes of the Djebel Tessala
neayr the junction of the Oueds Nat le Senane and Temouchent.
The hills of the DJebel Tessala rarely rise above 600 metres
and present no real obstacle to movement,

In 18L6 the abbé Barges visited the ruins and saw
several "grandes pilerres carrées, entassées ca et 1a,
lés unes sur les sutres, des pans de murailles encore
debout avec des portes et des seulls, des dalles ayant
gervi de pavés et restant encore fixées dans le sol, des
fragments de brigues, de verres et de vieux ustensiles
gisant péle-méle au milieu des déconmbres et des buissons
qui en dissimulaient une partie a la vue."t  Other
visitors to the site in the second half of the 19th
century described two cemeteries, one to the north and the
other to the south of the Roman settlement. Pagan tomb-
stones have been discovered in the southern cemetery,
which is probsbly the oldest, and the most recent ‘
inscriptions come fron the northern cemetery, In 1904
a large cistern was discovered among the ruinsg, and in
1911 Gsell described traces of an aqueduct leading to the
Roman settlement from the north. None of the early
vigsitors to this site recorded the dimensions of the
Roman settlement,
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From the creatlon of Ain Témouchent, the Roman ruins
were used as a quarry, and dressed stones, together with
gtones bearing inscriptions, were incorporated in the
Tirst military constructions and later in the houses
built by Buropean célonists. In this way a large
number of inseriptions and works of art have been lost.
Ain Témouchent continued to grow and its northern
suburbs now cover the site of the Roman settlenent,

Dé jardins had this comment to make sbout the unhappy
history of the ruins at Ain Témouchent; "Ce qui reste ne
représente donc qu'une trop petite partie‘des decouvertes
archéologigues faites a Ain Témouchent depuls 1l'occupatien
francaise. ¥ncore faut-il deplorer gu'un certain nombre
de documents ébigraphiques et d'autres objets interessants
soient dispersés chez les habitants de la ville - alors
que leur place normale seralt au Musée d'Oran." 2

The Insckiptions from Ain Témouchent.

!A large number of inscrintions have survived. The
Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum ineludes 69 inseriptions
from Ain Témouchent, (9795-9825, 21665-21703 and 22629),

In 1901 Flahault published five new inscriptions discovered
anong the ruins.3 They are all tombstones; two are undated;
another is the tombstone of a soldier of the army of
Germany; and the remaining two arve 5th century tombstones,
one of which was set up in AD L5L, An inscription of

the Hadrianic period, recording the building of the
Praesidium Sufative in AD 119 was published by de Pachtere
in 191,’5.LL In 1917 Fabre published two undated towbstones
from Ain Témouchent5 and in 1923 6 he published three more
inscriptions from this site; two are undated, and one is
dated to AD 537, Albertini published sn undated dedication

to the god Mercury from Ain Témouchent in 1936.7

In 1939
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De jardins published the thxts of two civiiian tombstones,8
set up in AD 409 and 476 respectively, which were originally
discovered in the northern cemetery. In an article on the
Roman centre at Ain Témouchent Dejardins refers to a number
of ingeriptions which do not appear to be included in the
Gorpus; g they are mainly tombstones of the Hth century

but two are of the 6th century and can be dated to AD 541
and AD SLl,

Some of the objects found among the ruinsg can now be
seen in the Oran Nuseun, They are listed in the Catalogue
Raisonné des Objets Archéologiques du Musée de la ville
d'oren, Part 1, by Demaeght (2nd cdition by Doumergue)
Oran, 1932, nos, 17-19, 21, 29, 33, %9, LO, 168, 330, 342,
369, 379, 409, U26, Lh8, 503, 505, and 508,

As there are no visible remains of the Roman settle~
ment, and ss the early descriptions of the gsite are very
incomplete, it is on the bagis of the epigraphic evidence
that we must try to reconstruct the evolution of this
centres :
10 records the construction
of a fort, the Praesidium Sufative, at Aln Témouchent
in AD 119,. It was one of a series of forts

1. An inseription

established acrossg the province of Mauretania
Caesariensis during the course of the 2nd century.
The fort was constructed by the 1lst Cohort of the
Musulamii, but there is no evidence to suggest how
long this unit remained there, Three inscriptionsll
attest the presence of reinforcementis from Germany in
the middle of the 2nd century snd in the late 3%rd.
century.
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Another inscription (C.I.L. 22629) records
that vetween AD 18l - 185 the Bmperor Commodus.
established new posts in the province and re -
established milestones along the roads. A similar
inseription comes from the neighbourhood of Auzia.
They both point to repairs and the reinforcement of
the 2nd century military line after disturbed conditions
throughout Mauretania Caesariensis.

12

It is highly probable that the fort continued to
be garrisoned until the beginning of the 3rd century
when the units stationed along the 2nd century
nilitary line were moved south to permanent camps
along a new limes established by Septimius Beverus.
2 From its foundation, Praesidium Sufative was
linked by road to Regiae and Tasaccurs in the east,
where nilitary units may have been stationed in the
early 2nd century. After the new limes was
established further south st the beginuning of the
3rd century, roads were constructed to link
Praecsidium Sufative to Numertus Syrorum and Ponmaria,

permanent camps at the western end of this frontier
line, Tt ie possible that these roads were bullt
ag part of the Severan re-organisatlon, Praesidiunm
Sufative was also linked to 8iga in the west and 10
Portus Hagnus in the north - east.

kP A eivilian population no doubt gsthered around
the fort at an early date. Soldiers who had
completed thelr period of service in the homan army
often settled down outside the fort where they had
been stationed, and wherc many had already established
fanmilies, Three inscriptions attest the presence of



velterans at Praesidiunm Sufative.13 Moreover,

the presence of a military unit. with perhaps 500
men each receiving regular pay must have attracted
some of the local inhabitents to the fort sovon after

it was establighed, They could provide certain
services for the soldiers of the garrison. When
the military unit was withdrawn at the beginning

of the 3rd century, a civil settlement of sone
importance had developed at Iraesidium Sufative, snd’

occupation continued there until the middle of the
1h

6th century.

It is possible that the civil settlemént
achieved the rank of a gself-governing Roman community
during the reign of Septimius Severus, when the
ofganisation of a new frontier line further south
brought greater security to the region around
Praesidium Sufative. An inscriptionbf AD 199-210
(C.I.L. 9797) records that a certain Q. Januarius,

a veteran and former decurion, set up a statue to

Septimius Severus on the occasion of his being
invested with several magistracies. Celo L. 9799
€21672) is a tombstone set by by Aurelius Abiginaeus,
who held the municipal office of decurion, in memory
of his son who died aged 1l years. The inscription
is undated, but can confidently be assigned to the
3ed century.

The inscription C.T.L, 21665 is particularly
interesting, It was set wp in AD 299 and records
that C. Juliuvs Fortunatus was curator ac dispunctor
reipublicae Albulensis. We know that the civil
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settlement at Praesidium Sufative achieved

independent status earlier in the 3rd century, and
this inseription indicates that the Roman city be-
came known as Albulae. IFurthermore, it tells us
something about the structure of municlpal govern-
men£ by naming some of the municipal officers:

e.gs gediles and duunvirs (Joint chief magistrates).
We know of o decurion from the inscription C,I.L.
9799. But the most important person in Albulae

in AD 299 was C, Julius Fortunatus who had the title
of curator and dispunctor, which means that he con-

trolled the municipal administration and finances,

e Before the spread of Christiantty to Albulae
the citizens worshipped a nunber of divinilities.

There was a temple dedicated to the des Maura, a
purely Berber divinity, at Albulae, and it was
rebuilt by the municipality in AD 299 (C.I.L. 21665).
Fraogmnents of & statue of this goddess have been found
among the ruins, The Punic pantheon was represented
by the goddess Caelestis. The inscription C.I.L.
9796, which is unfortunately undated, records that a
temple dedicated to this goddess was reconstructed
by the soldiers of an gla, A small sltar to the god
Hercury 15 and a bronze statue representing the same
god have been discovered among the ruins. This is
our only evidence of a god beleonging to the Roman
vantheon,

Be The earliest evidence of a Christian community
16

although Christianity had probably reached this srea
sometime in the 3rd or early Lth centuries. Neither



a Oathollc‘nor a Donatist bishop of Albulae are
1isted in the proceedings of the Council of Carthage

in AD 411, However, the 1ist of Catholic bishops from
Mauretania Caesgriensis who attended the Council of

AD 48l includes a Bishop Tacanus of Albulae. A Christian
community continued to flourish there at least until the
middke of the 61h century; the most recent inscr%ption
discovered at Albulag is a Christian tombstones '

6. The discovery of two Roman corn-mills 18 (£ig. 8)

and a trapetum 19 (fige 9) among the ruins at Aln Téim
ouchent suggests that some of the ciltizens of Albulae

were farmers, cultivating cereals and olives in fields
outside the city. A trepetum is used for separating the
stone from the pulp of the olive. It has been described
in detail by Mme, Camps-~Febrer, She writes: "Au milieu
d'une cuve ronde(mortarium) s'éleve une courte colonne de
pierrve (gg;;iggggg) aui supporte une picce rectungulaire

de bois de hétre ou a'orme, recouverte de lamelles de metal
et tournont sur un pivot de bols (gcolumella). Aux extrém-
1tés s'inseérent deux pieces de bois (modloli) qul travers-
ent deux hémisphores de plerre (orbes), plates a 1'intérieur,
convexes zu bord de la cuve; les orbes se aéﬁlacent circu-
lairement dans la cuve, Ils sont maintenus & distance des
parois et des anneaux qul enserrent les modioli et réglent
leurs déplacements., Ouand le mortarium est rempli ad'olives,
deux hommes font tourner les ofbeg autour de la columells

5 1'aide des modioli, tzndis que d'autres bragsent a 1'alde

d'une pelle de fer (rutrum ferreum) la boue noiratre pour en
faire sortir 1'amurca." 20 fqne pulp is then placed in the
olive press and the -oil extracted, Two presses

can be aupplied by one irapetum.
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Alger, 1953, = p.lLO.
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20, Farm Fages.

No detailed information is available about the
Roman ruins near Farm Fages. Three inscriptions
from the site are included in the Corpus Inscriptionum
Latinarum, (21704 - 6)s C.I.L, 21704 is a dedication
to the god Aulisva 1 by the prefect of an gla; there
is also a reference to the Cohors 11 Sardorum. C.I.L.
21705 - 6 are civilian tombstones. The Roman ruins
‘are situated 1500 metres from the Roman road which
linked Albulge to Pomaria.

It is possibie that this site represents a small
fort guarding the road from Albulae to Pomaria, and the
civil settlement that grew up around the fort.

1. This divinity is also honoured at Pomaria (C.I.L. 9906).
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21 Ain eerridjg

The Roman ruins at Ain el Bridj are situated on
the road that linked Albulae to Tepidae.  This site
has prbducea a large number of inseriptions, but maay
have been destroyed, O0f the recorded inscriptions
published in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum,
nos. 21707 = 21714 are undated tombstones, and no, 9825
is a Tragmentary Christian btombstone of a late date.
One of the bulldings there may have been a Christian
church, A dolium and a Roman lamp have been found

among the ruins and are now in the Oran Museum.

On availsble evidence 1t ig difficult to determine
what the Roman ruins'at Ain el Brid] represents A
civilian population certainly occupied this 'settlement'
and occupation continued during the Later Impire, The
rulnsg may represent either a small fort around which a
civilian populatlon clustered for protection, or a Roman
village, or small towns

1.  Demaeght, Catalogue Raisonné des Objets Archeolo-
giques du Musée 4'Oran, Part 1 (@nd edition
by 4.F. Doumergue) Oran, 1932, nos. L72 = %6l
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22, POMARIA,

The Roman city of Pomaria was situated at Agadir,
t0 the northeeast of pfesent~day Tlemgen, Barly
travellers snd historians commented on the fine orchards
of the Tlemgen region, and perhaps it was because of
this that the Romans named their military post 'Pomaria.’

. This region is dominated by the Monts de Tlemgen
which form a barrier to the south of the city, where
they rise %to a height of 1,200 metres. The northern
slopes .of these mountains descend to the plain below in
a series of steps which look like enormous terraces,
Here, the natural vegetation is thinner in contrast to
the steep, densely forested slopes of the higher mount-
ains, The Roman settlement was situated on the lowest
terrace at a height of 750 metres. The site is naturally
protected to the north and east where the land slopes
steeply down to the plain below; but to the south and
west there is no protection, and the land has only a very
gentle slope, From this site there is a commanding view
over the Tlemgen plain as far as the southern slopés of
the Djebel Tessala to the north, and as far as the Djebel
er Ramlya to the east. There is a small but very fertile
plain immediately to the north of Tlemgen, separated from
the Plaine des_Ghossels by a series of small hills -~ the
Djebels el Hadid, Aine el Hout, and bou Djlida « which all
rise to heights of around 650 metres.

Tn the late 7th century the Arab invaders reached this
region and established their city, Agadir, on the site of
the Roman settlement, Dressed stone from buildings at
Pomaria, which were perhaps already in a state of disrepair



Ll

or rpin, were taken for use ln the construction of the
Arab capital. “The lower half of the minaret at Agadir,
which still survives, is built of good Roman masonry,
and some of the gtones bear inscriptions of the Roman

" perilod,

In 1889 Canal published a detailed description and

a plen (£1g.10) of the Romen ruins at Tlemgen. L
states, "Telle qu'elle est figurée sur notre plan,
cotte enceinte pouvalt avoir 350 metres de longueur,
est-ouest, et 200 metres de largeur nord-sud. La
guperficie ne couvrait & 1'origine que sept hectares
environ, ce qul est vraisemblable, eu égard au peu
d'importance de la garnison romaine, gui ne se composait,
nous le savons, que d'une alle de cavalerie, forte

d'environ deux cents chevaux, et de trois ou quatre cents
hommes de troupes auxiliaires, recrutés dans le pays.

Les dispesitiong du castellum étaient les suivantes:
a l'est sur l'emplbacement de la porte arabe Babeeol-Ahkbet
ou de Sidi Deoudi, se trouvalt Ll'entrée décumane du camp.
Elle donnait acces nu casernement des troupes et des
chevaux, situé a droite et & gauche et sépsré par la vole
prétorienne, laguelle conduisalt a un cavrefour central
ou se trouvait, éleve en plein air, 1'ara ou autel aédie
au dieu Aulisvae, patron tutélaire de la localité.

La vole principale, tres large, coupalt cette vole
prétorienna du nord an sud, et aboutisssit a deux autres
portes. A gauche de 1'autel, Longeant la grande vole
sfelevaient les palais des tribuns et du questeur
(trésorier de 1l'armée) eneadrant le palals du rreéfet. A
ces édifices était QGO%ﬁ@, du ¢dte ouest, le pretolre
occupant la partie centrmle du comp. Au nord et au sud



du prétoire, deux grandes places étalent affectees,
1'une au forum tribunal et 1l'autre au guestorium augural.
Deux grandes tribunes adossées sux murs latéraux du
prétoire recevaient les orateurs et les hauts fonction-
naires. |

Enfin, dans la partie ouest du camp, a droite et a
gauche de la vole qui domnnait acces a la porte pretorienne,
réservee aux officiers et au préfet se trouvaient les
casernements des cavaliers d'elite de la garde prefector=-
ale et les vélites auxilialres de l'aile des explorateurs.

Plus tard, sous Alexandre Sévere, lorsque Pomaria
devint municipe, slege d'un eveché et fut erigee avec
toutes ses institutions reigpublicae, une cite se forma au

sud du camp, dans la partie actuellement enCadréé; au nord,
par le chemin d'Agadir; a l'est, par les escarpements
rempares qui bordent les proprietes Fauqueux et Guerin;

au sud, par le chemin creux qui va de 1'allee des milriers

5 sidi-Yacoub, et a 1l'ouest, par le chemin qui va de 1'angle
des propriétéé Ortola et Lenepveu, vers la villa Barat,
c'est-a-dire au croisement de ce dernier chemin avec celui

allant de Sidi-Lhassen aux tanneries." 2

According to MacCarthy, "On peut lire encore exacte-
ment sur le sol les limites de Pomaria, dont 1l'angle nord-
ouest, en plerres taillées, est demeure intact, au milieu
des conetructions de la vaste enceinte des Zianides. Sa
superficie etait d'environ selze hectares. Tl est méme
facile encore de déterminer la sltuation et la forme de
son ancien castrum . . o Les nmontants de la porte arabe
d'Agadir sont en plerres romaines et celles qui forment
1a base du grand et besu minaret situe pres de la jusqu'a
une hauteur de six metres, ont la méme origine." 5
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Since the early 20th century, the nearby city of :
Tlemgen has expanded in size, and modern buildings and .
gardens now cover a part of the site of the Roman settle-
ment., Pew remains are visible above ground level, and
an examination of air photographs in an attempt to de-
termine the plan and dimensions of the Roman centre has
proved unrewarding.

The Inscriptions from Pomaria,

Seventy~one inscriptions from'this site are included
in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum (9906 - 9960, 21778 =
21795), together with a number of milestones discovered
along the Roman road which linked Pomaria to Altava in
the east (22619 - 21, 10462 - 65), In 1903 Bel published
an inscription found in the Oued Methkana to the south-east
of Pomaria.t It is a tonmbstone, perhaps of the 6th century,
and it seems probable that it originally came from Pomaria.
Bel published an undated but Christian inscription from
Pomaria in 19055 and in the following year he published
three undated tombstones from this site¢6 In 1956 Janier
published the texts of four new inscriptions from Pomaria
which were in the Tlemgen Museum7. Three are undated

tombstones and the Ffourth is a tonbstone of the 6th century.

What do we know of the‘origins and_evolution of Pomaria?

1. A nilitary unit was stationed at Pomaria in the early
3rd century, C.I.L. 9906 is a dedication to the god
Aulisva by a prefect of the Ala Exploratorum Pomariensium}
it was set up between AD 222 and 235, This unit took its
name from the fort whereas at Numerus gyrorum to the west it




L7

was the unit which gave its name to the military camp,
and later to the civil settlement which grew up outside
its  CuIL. 21779 is the tombsﬁone of a soldier of the
Ala Parthorum, but it is undated.

The exact date when a fort was established at
Pomaria is uncertain., The earliest inscription from
the site is a milestone set up between AD 218 and 2228.
Tt mentions the R{es) p(ublica) Fomariensium)which implies
that a civil settlement had already grown up around the
fort by this date, and that it had achieved the rank of a
chartered town. It seems most probsble, therefore,
that Pomaria was established at the beginning of the 3rd
century as one of the permanent camps on the Severan limes.

Canal's plan of 1889 (fig.10) shows an enclosure
350 x 200 metres, and he maintained that 1t was the -
original military camp. However, with an area of 7 hec-
tares, this enclosure is much too big for a military camp;
the fort of Ala Miliaria, built to accommodate a cavalry
unit 1000 strong covers an area of only 5.70 hectares,
What Canal described was a wall surrounding the civil
settlement which we know grew up around the fort.

The location of Pomaris is very different from that
of the nearby forts of Numerus Syrorum, Altava, and
Kaputtasaccura, Pomaris is situated in a cul-de-sac with
no natural opening to the south, whereas Numerus Syrorum
dominated_the Plaine des Angad; Altava commanded an
important fouteway ﬁhrough the Atlag Tabulaire by way of
the valley of the Oued Isser; and Kaputtasaccura was well
placed to control movements along tﬁe upper valley of the
Oued Mekerra to the south.
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24 From its foundation  Pomaria was linked by the

nova praetentura to Numerus Syrorum and Altava. Roads
were also built between Pomaria and Praesidium Sufative, .
on the earlier military line, and to Siga.

3 A civilian population, no doubt composed of veterans
and peregrini, settled outside the fort at an early date,
By AD 218 - 222 the civil settlement had been granted the
‘rights of a Roman self-governing community. Occupation
continued at Pomapria at least until the second half of
the 7th century; - the most recent inscription from this
site is of AD 651.9 It is particularly interesting
that a Christian populstion, which continued to set wp
inseriptions written in latin and dated to the year of the
Roman province, .sunvived many years after Roman rule had
ended in Mauretania Caesariensis,

The plan which Canal made of the Roman ruins at Pomaria
(figel0) may be interpreted in two different ways. First,
the small enclosure, covering an area of 7 hectares, may
represent the first stage in the growth of the civil
settlement, The exact location of the military camp is
uncertaln, but it seems highly probable that it was
situated in the north-eastern part of this enclosure,
where the steep slope of the land provides natural protec-
tion on two sides. According to this theory, the first
civilians settled to¢ the south of the camp, where the land
has -only a gentle slope, and at a later date a wall was
built to protect the settlemént. As the clity continued to
expand, 1t became necegsary to build a second wall,
enclosing a total area of 16 hectares to protect the new
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 suburbs.  Second, it is possible that the civil
settlement grew to cover an area of 16 hectares before
it wagbrotected by a defensive wall, Then, perhaps

during the dlsturbed conditions of the Later Bmpire,
the city may have declined in size, in which case the
small enclosure would represent an attempt to protect
those areas still occupied, On the other hand, if
there was no dedine in the size of the city, the small
enclosure may represent a citadel to which the citigens
withdrew in time of danger or attack.

he  The earliest Christian inscription from Pomaria is

of the year AD L58 10 but Christianity probably spread

to this area at a much earlier date. Several Chrigt-

lan inscriptions of the 6th and 7th centuries have been
discovered at Pomaria, and a Christian community may

have continued to live there after the first Arab invasion
at the end of the 7th century. As late as the 1llth
century El Bekri wrote, "On y trouve les ruines de
plusieurs monuments anciens et les restes d'une population
chrétienne qui s'est conservée Jusqu'a nos jours. Il ¥y a
aussi une eglise qui est encore frequentée par les
chrétiens," 1

5 Some of the inhabitants of this city were probably
farmers cultivating fields in the surrdunding area, The
pledmont zone around Tlemgen 1s very fertile, and flourish-
ing olive groves and vineyards can be seen there at the
present tine, Mme. Camps-Fabrer has indicated that

several olive pregses have been found among the ruins of

Pomariazlg

6. During the Middle Ages, Tlemgen became the capital of
a kingdom whose power and wealth is well attested by the
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magnificent buildings of thls period for which the city
is famous, The Museum at Tlemgen is almost entirely
devoted to the Muslim period.  Because of this emphasis
it is not surprising that the Roman remains have so far
received little attention, It is to be hoped that a
more balanced view of the archaeological remains in and
around Tlemgen will prevail in the future,

l, Canal,J., "Pomaria®, B.d'0., Vol,9,1889,pp.257~325.
2; Canang&’ 1889’ idemg P 322 - 323,
3¢ MacCarthy,M., RsA., Vol.l., 1856, p.9k.

. Bel,A.,'Inscription de 1'oued Methkana',B.d'0.,
1903, p.lhLo.

5., Bel,A.,, 'Une inscription latine de Pomaria',

RsA,., 1905, p. 235,

6. Bel,A., 'Quatre inscriptions nouvelles (latines)
du musee de Tlemgen', B.d'QO., 1906, pp.L9l - 496,

T }Janier,E‘, "Inscriptions latines du Musée de Tlemgen,'
Lo,AaEi, VOl.LL,1956, PPe 71"‘ 82-L¢

8¢ Colslie, 10465
9 CQI‘Lp 9935
10, CoI.L. 21792,

11« Bl Bekri, Description de 1'Afrique septentrionale,
Alger, Jourdan, 1913, p« 179.

12, Camps-Fabrer,H., 'L'Olivier et 1'Huile dans 1'Afrigue
Romaine, Gouvernement General de 1'Algérie,
Service des Antiquitiés, Missions Archeologiques,
Alger, 195%, p.+30. :
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- 232, ALTAVA,

There were formerly extensive Roman ruins on the
plateau of Hadjar Roum to the east of the village of
Quled Mimoun.,  This flat»topped plateau, at a height of
Just over 700 metres, is 6nly a 1little higher than the
surrounding plain, and its slopes are Ffairly gentle.

It offers but the minimum of natural protection, and

its northern slopes presented no obstacle to the expan-
sion of the Roman settlement, To the south and east of
Had Jar Roum there is a small but fertile plaln between

the plateau and the steep slopes of the Djebel bou Acha,
Immediately to the north 1ls the fertile plain of El Ghor
drained by the Oued Khalfoun, a tributary of the Oued Isser,

From this site, at the north~eastern extrémity of the
Monts de Tlemgen, there is a commanding view to the north
over the Plaine des Abdellys, To the west, the Djebel
er Ramlya, which rises to 1206 metres, separates the ‘
area around Ouled Mimoun from the Tlemgen region.  How-
ever, a naprrow corridbr between the Djebel er Ramlya and.
the main range of the Monts de Tlemgen makes movement
between these two regions relatively easy. There are easy
communications to the gouth, along the upper valley of the
Oued Isser, | '

The Roman settlement was located at the southern edge
of a pledmont zone, at the polnt of contact between the
higher parts of the Monts de Tlemgen, represented by the
Dahar Menndjel and the Djebel bou Acha (1200 metres), and
the Plaine des Abdellys (500 metres.) This pledmont zone
(500 - 750 metres) is characterised by slopes less steep
than those of the Djebel bou Acha to the south; by a more
open, natural vegetation; by numerous springs along its
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southern edge which give rise to small streams flowing
south to Join the Isser; and it lacks the monotony of the
plains to north and east. '

The name Hadjar Roum means Roman stones. Unfort~
unately, the Roman ruins suffered considerably after the
ereation in 1852 of the village of Ouled ¥imoun which
was re-named Lamoricilere inl87l;.l The village was
puilt st the expense of the nearby ruins which provided
a convenient supply of worked stone. Later, the north-
eagt angle of the ramparts which surrounded the Roman
gettlement, was destroyed with the opening of Route
Nationale 7 linking Sidi bel Abbés to Tlemgen. In 1886
the railway serving western Algeris was constructed across
the Roman site from east to west, and the station isself
was bullt at the centre of the ruins. As a result of
these events there are few vigible remains of the Roman
settlement at thé present time.

The section on Altava in the text of Geell's
'Atlas Apchéologique de 1'Algérie’ (1911) contains a
valusble synthesis of the accounts of travellers who
#igited the site during the second half of the 19%th century.
MacCarthy described two settlements. The first -'a
military town' - formed a rectangle 370 metres long and
517 netres wide,.nx(according to de Tugny, 380 x 270 metres) .,
The south, east, and west walls of the main defences formed
straight lines, while the north wall followe& the natural
form of the plateau. In the south-west angle there was
s Portified stronghold (70 x L8 metres), A second settle-
ment, which was much more irregulaf in plan, had developed
between the north wall of the 'military town' and the
northern edge of the plateau. MacCarthy also indicated
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cemeteries to the east, south, and north-west of the

Roman settlement, and a dam built across the Isser, above
A]. 1 am ®

The results of excaVations carried out at Altava,

In the early 1930's Courtot began to investigate the
Roman sites He discovered many new inscriptions, and in
1952 and 1953 he directed three excavations at Altava, In
the autumn of 1954 Courtot was jJjoined by Pouthier of the
French 8chool at Home for the fourth‘excavaﬁion. Unfort-
unately only interim reports of these excavatlions have
been published, and they are not sccompanied by plans to
show #he structures that were discovered and the exact
location of the areas excaVated.2 However, in 1956 Poythier
published an article on the Roman settlement at Altavazj in
which he includes a small sketch-plan (not drawn to scale)
of the area excavated there between 1952 and 1954, and a
valuable summary of what these excavations have in fact re-
vealed.

The excavations carried out in 1952 and 1953 revealed
a section of one of the main streets of the Roman settle-
ments As it was orientated roughly from north to south
and was situated 160 metres from the east rampart, and 170
metres from the west rampart, Courtot concluded that it was
the cardoc maximus, Traces of this roasd, which was unpaved,
were found for a length of 130 metres to the north of the
railway station. Most of the buildings which bordered
the road were consiructed at a late period, On the east
side of the cardo maximus Courtot excavated a small house
containing an olive press, a corn-mill, and a bread oven.
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He also found a large quantity of carbonised cereal
grains there, Fifty metres to the northy, but on the
west slde of the cardo, he began to investigate =
bullding known as the 'maison & mosaique's  Thirty
metres further north the cardo was interrupted by a
group of very complex buildings, and in one of thenm
Courtot found an olive press, a corn-mill, and three
dolia,™ | |

In the auvtumn of 195L excavations were carried out
in three different parts of the Roman settlemént. First,
a section of the north rampart was investigated. This
wall was carefully constructed with small masonry Jjoined
together with mortar, and it was 1.30 m - 1,40 m in
thickness. The remains of a small tower bullt against
the inside face of the rampart were also discovered,
Second, several dwelling houses and shops were excavabed
to the north-east of the cardo maximus, and to the north
of this street, and at right angles to it, there were
traces. of another wide road, bordered by several buildings,
One of the buildings contained an olive press, and another
building, of a late period, was composed of several rooms
built around a large, rectangular courtyard, where a
Christian lamp was discovered, Third, the exact position
of the east rampart was determined. This wall varied in
thickness from 1.30 m to 1,60 m, and it was bordered by
several houses of a late period. One of these dwellings
contained fragments of several dolia, and part of & Roman
corn-—mill,5

Pouthier has described the results of the excavations
carried out at Altava between 1952 and 195L in some detailG,
but since the report was accompanied by a very inadequate
sketch~plan of the excavated area 1t adds nothing to the



interim reports by‘Couftdt, However, Pouthier's con-
clusions about the growth of the séttlement, as revealed

by excavation, are more valuable. On the sketch~plan

which he published (£1g.11)’ the points C and D mark the

end of the cardo maximus. Immediately to the north 1is

a wide street CM - NP at right angles to the cardo, and
beyond 1t s part of the northern suburbs of the Roman
settlemént where Courtot carried out some of his excavations.
Pouthier has suggested that the wide road which crosses the
end of the'cardo maximus represents sn important stage in
the growth of the Roman settlement, The settlement had
expanded to the line C D by the beginning of the Lth century
and although expansion eontinued the northern suburbs were
separated”from the early built-up area by this wide street.
In the middle of the 4th century, when the original settle-
ment at Al tava together with the new suburbs were protected
by a defensive wall, the north rampart was constructed LO
metres from the end of the cardo maximus at the northern
linit of the new'suburbsga |

Pouthler also examined the stratigraphy of the site

~as revealed during the 1954 excavations. He distingulshes
three dated levels, The finest pottery came from the
deepest level. It was very similar to that which Thouvenot
discovered at Volubilis, and which he assigned to the 3rd
century. The second level was the thickest. In its
lowest parts it produced sherds similar to those found in
the preceeding level, but it was characterised by pottery
less finely executed, and becoming progressively coarser,
The third level, which was very close to the modern surface,
was characterised by thick and coarse pottery. Pouthier
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dates the levels by discoveries made in tombs excuvated
by Courtot, and by comparison with the pottery from
Volubllis, By this method the deepest level is dated
to the 3rd century, the last level represents the 6th
and 7th centuries, and the second level encloses pottery
of the Lth and 5th centuries. 9

Altave is one of a small number of Roman sites in
western Algeria where excavations have been carried out
in recent years, It is particularly unfortunate that
because of the lack of plans the results of these exca-

vations are difficult to interpret, and thus of only
limited value,

“The Inscriptions from Altéva.

131 inscriptions from Altava are included in the
Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum (9831 - 9905, 217R0- 21777)
together with several milestones discovered along the road
between Altava and Pomaria (22619, 22620 - 22, 22624).

Since 190u many new inscriptions have been discovered

among the ruins at HadJar Roum, Some have been published
but others remain unpublished. In 196l Marcillet-Jaubert.
completed a dissertation entitled 'Les Inscriptions d'Altava;
presented to obtain a 'doctorat du troisieme cycle' at the
Faculté des Lettres et Sciences Humaines, Universite d'Alger.
This includes all the published inscriptions from Altavs
 together with many that ave still unpublished. *° It
reveals that out of a total number of 326 inscriptions
discovered at Altava 22U can be dated accurately. A list

of the dated inscriptions arranged in chronological order

is included at the end of this dossier (list A)., Bach




inscription is given a number and dated inscriptions
mentioned in the text below are referred to by these
numbers. Undated inscriptions are referred to by their
number in the Corpus.

What do we know of the origins and evolution of

Al tava?

Ll The Roman name for this settlement, Altava, is pro-
vided by the milestones nos. 11,12, and 1L, and by the
inscriptions nos. 8, 122, and 194,

2 Altava originated as one of the permanent camps on

the Severan limes. The earliest inscriptions from this
gite are of the reign of Septimius Severus (1,2,3%5Lt)s

and two of them attest the presence of the Cohors 11
Sardorum (2,%). This unit was stationed at Rapidum

during the 2nd century%lbut 1t appears to have been

moved gouth when the Severan frontier was organised at

the beglnning of the 3rd century.’ The exact date offthe
military foundation at Altava 1s uncertain, but it is
possible that it was in AD 201, During the course of this
year, a large secction of the new limes, including the three
military camps further east -~ Kaputtasaccura, Lucu, and Alas
Miliaria, Wasﬂinaugurated by the procurator Aeliug Pere-
grinus, The Cohors 11 Sardorum remained at Altava at
least until the reign of Severus Alexander (10) and an
insceription set up between AD 227 and 237 mentions the Ala
Parthorum (10). It may be noted that tombstones of soldiers
are rare.

B Milestones show a well~organised road system. Altava
was linked to Xaputtaesaccura and Pomaria by the nova
praetentura which was constructed at the beginning of the
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Frd century as part of the new limes. Towards the north-
west, a road led to “qgidaez and from there to Albulae on
the earlier military line. ' Another road led to Tasaccurs
to the north-easte - The milestones found along these roads
(113 5,65,759,11,12,13,114) are dated from the reign of Cara-
calla to the reign of Philip, |

Ly At an early date a civilian population, no doubt
composed of veberans 2 and peregrini, settled outside

the fort. By AD 220 the civil settlement had already
pchieved independent status as a Roman self-governing
community. The municipal evolution of the new city has
been examined in some detail by Pouthier,™>  He points

out that from the outset the municipal council was made

up of men who were often taking their first step into the
Roman world,  There was no deep attachment to Roman
civilisation. Although the city had been endowed with

all the apparatus of a Roman self-governing -éommunity, the
municipal organisation was a facade more than a reality. It
very raplidly evolved towards an oligarchy which, from an
early date, tended to be dominated by one man. During the
3pd century the inhebitants of the city were divided between
the ordo and the populares(§) But within the ordo real
power came to rest with the decemgrimilu snd one of them
had a particularly important role in the government.lS

This evolution accelerated during the Lth century when
political power came to rest in the hends of a few of the.
wealthier decurions who were known as primores (67).

They nominated one of their nunber aghead of the muniqipal
government., He was known as the dispunctor (67) and he

had charge of the administration of the city, tax collection
and relations with the provincial sdministration.
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~ In this community, where there had been no deep
penetration of Roman civilisation, a  simplification
of the municipal organisation: had therefore taken place,
and real power and responsibility were delegated to a few
of the wealthier families. A similar situation must
have prevailed in other civil settlements around forts
in the interior of the‘province which achieved independent
status. | |

An inscription set up in honour of the Bmperors
Constantius and Constans (AD 3L9 and 350) gommemorates
the construction of ramparts to protect the city by order of
the dispunctor and the primores, (67).  This, together
with another imperial dedication set up between AD LOS
and L23 (122) is incompatible with the theory put forward
by Car00p1n016 and Courtols 17 who suggested that the
western part of Mauretania Caesariensis was abandoned by
Rome at the end of the 3rd century. The inscription in
honour of Honorius and Theodosius scems to indicate
effective Roman occupation of the Altava region until the
Vandal invasion.

But if the Vandal invasion meant the end of Roman
rule in Mauretania Caesarliensis, it had little real effect
on the city of Altava. The settlement continued to be
oceupied by a Christian population who set up inscriptions
written in latin, and dated to the year of the Roman
province, Buring the 5th century Altava must have formed
an auteonomous republic with a form of civilisation that
was 8till guite distinct from that of the Berber tribes
further south. Nevertheless, the Berber element grew
stronger during this perlod, and as early as the second half |
of the Lth century the decoration on tombstones from this
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slte revesls a conbination of Berber and Christian
techniques, By the first decade of the 6th cantury
Altava had come under the control of Masuna, rex Maurorum
et _Romanorum (194) who was no doubt a local Berber chief-
tain, but it still retained its distincet character at
least until the end of the 6th century., The most
recent inscription discovered there belongs to the year
AD 599 (224).

The name of Altava still appears in the 7th century
on a tombstone discovered at Volubilis in Maurctania
Tingitana, It is dated to AD 655 and mentions a certain
Tulia Rogativa.lB This inscription is important because
it indicates that there was some contact between Altava
and Volubilis during the immediate post-Roman period
across a region - now eastern Morocco -~ where there is no
egidence of Roman military or civiliah occupationbl9 It
is, however, insufficient evidence for an 'effective
alliance' or a 'federation' between Altava and Volubilis
as envisaged by CaPCOpinO.QO

5 According to figures published by MacCarthy, the

Roman ruins at Hadjar Roum covered an area of 11,7

hectares (10«2 hectares according to the figures given by
Tugny) . This is too large to represent the original
military camp and must refer to the civil settlement which
grew up outside it. MgeCarthy also indicated a strong-
hold (70 x 48 metres ) in the south~west corner of the
perimeter wall of the city. Marcillet-~Jaubert consulted
alrphotographs of the plateau of HadJar Roum, and was able
to identify a rectangular enclosure L30 x 330 metres - an
area of 1l hectares, Airphotograplhs 21 do revesl clear
traces of the south wall, and sections of the east and west
walls of an enclosure (fig.1l2). The south wall is 330 metres

in length and the visible sections of the east and west walls
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are 200 and 180 metres in length respectively. A

small enclosure (120 x 70 metres) can be seen in the
south-west corner of the ramparts. Unfortunately,

that part of the Roman city which now lies to the north

of the railway line has heen built over by modern con-
structions, and no trace of the perimeter wall can be

seen on airphotogrephs (fig.l2)., However, during
Courtot's excavations in this ares, traces of the east
and west walls of the main enclosure were found, and he
noted that the cardo maximus was 160 metres from the

east wall and 170 metres from the west wall, The

east and west walls were therefore approximately 330

metres apart, and this corresponds to the length of the
south wall caleculated from alrphotographs. In the same
report Courtot states that the cardo maximus was traced.
for 130 metres from the pailway statlion, and Pouthier

in. his report notes that the north rampart was constructed
4O metres from the end of the cardo maximus, This makes
the total distance from the railway line to the north
rampaﬁt approximately 170 metres. The total length of
the east rampart is therefore approzimately 170 + 200
metres = 370 metres, and the west rampart appfox1matcly
170 + 180 metres = 350 metres. The perimeter wall of

the city, which was rectangular in shape, encloses an
area of approximatoly 12 hectares, 1t probably represents
the ramparts constructed in AD 349 - 350 (67)s The small
enclosure in the south-west corner of the main ramparis
may represent a late citadéla The exact position of v

the original military camp remains uncertaine

G The gods of the Roman pantheon appear t0 have been
almost unknown to the majority of the inhabitants of Altava.
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Only a few inscriptions recoprd Romen divinities,
(9832,0831, 21721) and these dedications were all

made by military personnel dttachco to unite statloned
at Altava,  This shows very ¢lesrly the lack of any
real penetration of the Roman religion, and most of the
citizens no doubt remained faithful to native gods -
perhaps the famous dii Mauri (10).

Te We know very little about the origins of
Christianity at Altava. Our earliest evidence is an
inscription of AD 309 which pecords the building of a
church (19)s A bishop Auus of Altava abtended the
council which met at Carthage in AD L8l, and another
bighop of Altavas Ulpius Maximus, dled there in AD 529
aged 85 years (197). A priest, Iulius Capsarius, died
ot Altava in AD 495 (190) and a deacon is attested there
in AD 423% (138)., Many Christian tombstones have been
discovered at Altava. There was a lavrge cemetery of
the Christian period %o the north-east of the c¢ity, and
another cemetery near the Oued Esser to the south~easts

8, Many of the citizens of Altava were pessant farmers,
cultiVatlng fields of cereals outside the city, and
graftvng the wild olive trees which formed part of the
gurrounding natural vegetatl L1010 Excavations carried out
in the northern suburbs rsvealed a number of small houses
which eppear to be early Lth century in date, each con-
taining an olive press and a corn~-mill. No olive mills
(huileries) or flour mills were dis scovered., The
families who nccupied these dwellings were 1o doubt pro=-
ducing their own foodstuffs and basic raw naterials,
pressing their own olives and nmilling their own flours
There can have been little gpecialisatlion, Five olive
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presses were discovered during the excavations carried

out at Altava between 1952 and 195l, and the fact that

a large nurber of weightstones were also found proves

that many other presses have been destroyed, Twenty
Roman corn-mills (mola manuaria) heve Leen found and

from the carbonised cereal grains which Courtoi discovered
we know that the farmers of §;§§1g=grew both hard and

s80ft wheat and also spelt.ge

e Covrtot informs me that he hxs discovered the re-
mains of a number of Komen Pfarms in the Plain of ¥l Ghor
to the north of Altava., Unfortunately he has not
calculated their exact location so that the sites cannot
be marked on a map, No olive presses or corn-mills have
veen found among the ruins, but Courtot stresses that
they are neilther villas nor large farms, but small,
peasant ﬁwollinpm. One of these sites has produced two
Christian inseriptions of a late period.zB They are both
tombstones, the first dated AD LL7 and the second AD 552.
This particular farm was therefore decupied after Roman
rule ended in Mauretania Caesariensis aund at a time when
this area was included in the territory ruled by Masuna,
'king of ‘the Moors and the Romans, '

Courtot is convinced that these farms were only
established at a late date, In support of this theory
1t should be noted that there are traces of a Roman farm

near Palissy (to the north of Kaputtasaccura) which was
certainly occupied in the 5th century.au This evidence
of a dispersed form of settlement at a late date is very
interesting, particularly as it appears in that part of
Mauretania Caesariensis where, at an earlier period,
civilian settlement seems to have taken place only arbund
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the forits where there would be a measure of protection.
But we must add a note of cautioms It is quite
possible that these farm sites were occupied at a much
earlier date, and evidence of this has not yet come to
Llight, Ahy definite conclusion must await trial exca-
vations at one or more of the sites or further epigraphic
discoveries,

1. 8ince Algerian independence the village has been ree-
named Ouled Mimoun.

2, Courtot has told me (Alglers, April 1968) that no
plang of the areas excavalted were made, A
number of rough sketches and photographs are
the only record of the excavations,

3. Pouthier,P., 'Egolugion Municipale d'Altava, aux _
1117 et 1V siecles ap.dsCe'y MeEeFale, V0Lla68,
1956, pp. 205 -~ 245,

s Teglay,Mes 'L'Archéologie Algérienne en 1953%', R.A.,
1954, pp.21l5 - 216, -

5. LeglaysM., 'L'Archéologie Algerienne en 1954', L.A.B.,
Vol3, 19559 P3185~ ‘ l

6s Pouthier,P., 1956, idem., pp, 219 - 220.
7+  An approximate scale has been sdded,

8. Pouthier,P., 1956, idems, pp. 220 - 222,
9. Pouthier,P., 1956, idem.s; pp. 223 - 225,

10s I am indebted to Monsieur H - @ Pflaum of the Ecole
des Hautes ¥itudes, Universite de Paris, for A
allowing me to consult his copy of this thesis,

1l. Repidum, 78, 2.

12+ Only oune inscription fivom Altava mentions a veteran,
It is an undated inscription which is not
included in the Corpus. It is included in
Marcillet~-Jaubert's thesis no. 294.
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16.
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20,
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Pouthier,P., 1956, idem., pp. 205 = 245.

'TheJ are recorded on an undated inseription pdbllshed

for the first time by Pouthier. It is the tomb-
stone of: Titius Faussanus prior civitatis suae
ex decemprimis (POULNLEr,les 1906, L0EMyy De200)

The important role played by one man in the municipal
government of Altava during the 3pd century is
revealed by two undated inscriptions. The text
of the first has already been given in note 1k,
The second, which Pouthler suggests ls eaprlier in
date, mentions a rex sacrorum, prior princeps
civitatis nostrae Q.- Sittiusg Maximus.

It was first published by Leschi in 1932 (Leschi, L.,
BeAsCoy 1932, pp.2u8 - 25L),

Carcopino, Je., 'La fin dv Maroc romain', M.Q‘F.R., 1940,
DPs 349 - LU8,
Courtols,C,; Les Vandales et 1'Afrique,. Paris, 1955,
pp. 88 - 89,
Carcopino,Js, 'Note sur une inscription chretienne de
V/Olu'bilistﬁ T{estg 1928, PO 135 hand 1)455

It should be noted that we have no evidence that conhct
took place between the inhabitants of these two
reglions during the Roman period itself.

barcopino,J., Le Maroc Antique, Paris, Gallimard, l9u7,

p.29 .

Congsulted at the Phototheque of the institut (eographlque
National, Saint HMandé, France,

L@glay, Masy 195&, ldem-, Pe 216

Leschi, Les 'Insoriptions d'Altava', Htudes d'Epigraphie
d'Archéologic et d'Histolre Africaines, Paris, L1957s
Ppe 409 - U410,

Palissy, 270
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This li@t.includ@s only the dated inseriytians

from Altava which are arranged in chronological order.
The 1ist is compiled from the thesis 'Les Inscriptions
a'Altava’ - presented by Mercillet~Jaubert at the
Faculté des Lettres et Scilences Humaines, Université
a'alger in 196l.

e
2,
B
U
5

6a

7
Be
9

10.

11,
12,
13.
1k,
15¢
16,
17.
18,

20,

Dedlcation
Dedication
Dedication

Milestone
HMilestone

Milestone
Milestone,
Dedicatlion
Milestone

Dedication

Milestone
Milestone
Milestone
Milestone
Dedication
Tonbs tone
Tombstone
Tonbstone

to Geta, AD 201-209, (C.I.L. 9833)

to Nemesis, AD 208,

(CeILie 109L9)

to Diana, AD 208, (published by
FoCourtot, B,a'0s, 1931, p. 370.)

AD

AD 217-218

212

(C.I.0, 22622)
(published b

IJ&L@%Chi, _BoAhC., 1938““)4-0’ Pe 208

AD
AD

218222
218222

(Cul.lie 22623)
(Culolin 1ou61)

i ] El&g&bﬂluﬂ, AD 220, (G-IOL& 21723)

AD

EEBEEBEBE

AD
AD

222%225%

(published by

M.Fabre, Bed'0es 1928,)
ppe 29 - 30.) '

to the dii Maurl, AD 227-23%7,

235
256-238
238
ahl
257
301305
302
305308

(CoIaL. 21720)
(Colu L 22619)
(CyIL. 22624)
(CoI L. 22620)
(oI L. 22621)
(CoI L. 21724)
(CoTalie 9885,)
(CuIaL. 9862)
(published by

P.Courtot, B.a'Oe, 1933, pp 395394, )
Inscription to commemorate the bullding of a

.Tombstane

church in AD 309,

AD

309315

(unpublished, )
(unpublished, )



21,
22,
250
- 2h,
25
264
27«
28,
29.
30.
31
324

33

By

3D
364

37,

38+

39
1O,
ul.
h2e

EN
L.
b5,
Lé,
L7 a>

L&,

Tonbstone
Tombs tone
Tombetone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombetone
Tonbstone
Tombstone

Tonbstone

Tombatone
Tombatone

Tonbs tone
Tombhstone
Tombs tone
Towbstone

Tonbgtone
Torbstone

Tombstone

Tonmbstone

Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombstons
Tonbstone
Tonbstone
Tonbstone
Tonbgtone

Tombstone

s EBEBBEEEEEE

EEEE

g B

EEB8B588EE

AD
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311 (CoIaLe 21734)
32 (GoIelie 21750)
313 (unpublished)
309 %%8 (unpublished)
318 (CI.Te 9892 )
323 (unpublished)
323 (CeXolie 9855)
30l (C.I.L. 9868)
%26 (unpublished)
327 (CoT Le 9890)
329 - (unpublished) -
329, (published by M.Fabre
B,d'0,, 1928, p.32)
329 - (unpublished)
330 (unpublished)
330 (unpublished)

330, (published by P, Courtot
Bgd'O.’ 1929y ppo 13?”18303

—r————

331 - - (unpublished)

331, (published by P. Courtot
h.d'0., 1931, pps 371=372.)

332 (CoXoLa 9661)
333 (unpublished)
353 (CuToLe 9856)
333 (Cololie 21772)
333 (CuI.Le 21753)
%3l (CoLole 9851)
335 (unpublished)
335 (CuTolie 984O)

338, fublished by P. Courtot
3.270%, 1929 pps 186-187.)

339, (published by HU.Fabre,
» BQ&’O.’ 192&, Qqﬁﬁa)



49

50
51
52,
53
5hs
55.
56.

574
58,

594

60+

61.
62.

63,
6l
65,
664

67,
68.

69,
70.

71,

T2
7%
Tl

Tombatone

Tombatone
Tombstone
Tombgtone
Tombstone
Tonbgtone
Tombstone
Tonbstone

Tonbstone
Tombstone
Tombs tone
Tonbstone

Tombstone
Tonbsetone

Tombstone
Tombstone
Tonbstone
Tombstone

=
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340, (published by P. Courtot,
M.'_Q.!’o 1934y D 35l )
340-309 (unpublished)
E41 (unpublished)
aa (CuXLe 21769)
o (unpublished)
3 - {unpublished)
a3 (G I T 21735)

3443, (published by P. Courtot,
Bod'04y 1937, 1o 194)

By (unpublished)
b (unpublished)
3hl , (CuToLis 9850)

345, (published by P. Courtod,
Bid'ooy 19369 P 15‘)

345 {unpublished)

346, (published by P. Courtot,
Bed'0u,y 1957, Ii’¢19)

3&69356‘. {unpublished)
37 (unpublished)
37 1 (Cololis 9893)

37, (published by M.Fabre,

Dedication in honour of Constantius IL and Constans,

Tonmbstone
Tonmbetone
Tomba tone
Tonbstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombstone

AD 349-350, (published by P. Courtot,
Be@'00y 1935, ppe 193=197,)

AD 350 (CaTeL, 9889)

AD 350 (CoIloLie 21768)

AD 350-3%53 (unpublished)

AD 351 | {C,I,L, 21748)

AD 351 (C.I.L, 989L)

AD 351 ' (unpublished)

AD 351l-353 or 380-382,

(CoLaLs 21760)



75
76,
17+
78.
79 L
80,
81,
82,
83,
8li.
85,
86,
87.
88,
84,
90
21,
?32‘

95

ol ,
95,
a6,
874
98,
99,
. 100,
101

102,
103,
1 OL? *

Tombstone

- Tombstone

Tombetone
T6Mbst0ne
Tombstone
Tonbstone
Tonbstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tonbatone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Torbstone
Tomhs tone
Tombstone
Tomhstone

Poibe tone

Tombstone

Tonmbstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombsgtone
Tombgtone

Tombs tone
Tonbstone
Tombstone

AD 352

AD 352

AD 352

AD 35l

AD 354

AD %60

AD 361

AD 361,

AD 362

AD 362

AD 363%

AD 365

AD 37) or 372
AD 379-388
Al 82

AN, B3%

AD 38h

69

(CoI L, 21727)
(C.I.L. 21765)
(unuublished)
(unpublished)

- (CL.I.Le 21751)

(wapublished)
(unpublished)
(CQI oLb 98&47)

(unpublished)

(C.I.L. 9860)
(unpublished)
(unpublished)
(unpublished)

(CuT.L, 21763)

(Culiles 9672)

. (C'Iiur.(. ?Ifﬁi?)

{(unpublished)

AD 38L, (published by Camps in
Bed'04y 1945-Li6, D4 37.)

AD 385
AD %85
AD 387
AD 387
AD 308
AD 389
Al 390
AD 391

(unpublished)
(CuaTlie 21757)
{unpublished)
{ unpublished)
{unpublished)
(unpublished)
(Cololie 9878)
{unpublished)

AD 391, (published by F. Courtot,

AD %92
AD 393
AD 393

193k, Bad'0., ps355)

(GQ:{.I‘;. 9875)
(C.I.L. 9897)
(unpublished)
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105, Tombstone AD 353 (CoI.L, a8L8)
106, Tombatone AD 39% (unpu%lished}
107.  Tombstone AD 39l or 396 {CoToTie 21736)
106,  Tombstone AD 398 (0 TaTe 21752)
109.  Towmbstone AD 399 (Culolia 98LY)D
110, Tombstone AD 399, (publisbed by P,'06urﬁot,
| Bed'04, 193L, vp. 356-3574)
111, Tombstone. AD 400-129 (ColaLu 21754)
112, Tombstone AD 101 (GIiha  21766)
11%, ‘Tombstone AD L0l (unpublished)
1ilh. Tombstone AD 102 (unpublished)
115, Tombstone . . AD LO3 (unpublished)
116, Tombstone AD LO% (unpublished)
117. Tonbstone AD L0O6, (published by P. Courtot
A B0y 1957, PpalGesi. )
118,  Tombstone AD Lh06, (published by ¥. Courtot
| | | Bed'0cp 1956, pp 12-130)
119, Tombetone AD LO7 (un@uhlishea)

120, Tombstone AD 4,07, (published by Canal, Bed'O.,

1887 p.76 = not included in CoLluls)

AD 108, (published by ¥. Courtot,
, Ba@'O4p 19365 DPelBe)

122, Tmperial Dedication AD L0O8-L23, (Celolia 983, )

121, Torbetone

12%.  Tombstone AD LO9 (unpublished)
12li, Tonbstone AD boo (unpublished)
125.  Tombstone AD 410 (vnpublished)
106, p@nbstone AD 4lo (unpublished)
127. Tombstone AD 412 (CaTolie 2170E)
128, Tombstone AD 412 {unpublished)

120,  Tombstone AD 1412, (published by P. Gourﬁﬁts

Bed'0py L93h, ppe 556=357.
AD L12 {un. ublished. )

AD L13, (published by L.Leschi,
K’t.p&pc‘l‘», 1938 L] l}O, }).2090)

(unpublished)

1%0, Tombastone
151, Tornbstone

152, Tombstone AD 118



Tombestone
Tombatone
Tombstone
Tombgtone
Tonbgtone

Inseription

Tonbstone
Tonbstone
Tonmbs tone
Tombgtone
Tombstone
Tonbstone
Tomhstone
Tonbstone

Tombstone

Torbatone
Tombstone
Tonbstone
Tombatone
Tombstone
Tonbstone
Tonbstone
Tombstone
Tonmbatone
Tombstone
Towbastone
Tombstone
Tombstone

AD
AD

AD
AD
AD
AD
AD
AD

AD
AD

AD

AD
AD

AD
AD

AD

558

AD
AD
AD

L19
INRY
419
420
120
La3
L23%
L23
L2k,
L2k
L25
L28 or L4129
L29

(CeI.lie 9B65)
{unpublished)
{unpublished)
(C.X.Ts 9887)
(C.T.0L,. 21755)
(unpublished)
(CuIoLa 21740)
(C.LaLe 21777)
(CoL i 21770)
(unpublished)
(C.TuTie 21733)
(Cal.lie 21726)
{unpublished)

429, (published by ¥, Courtot,
Pod'04s 1937, ps.20.)

NSRS

129, (published by P. Courtot,
Bed'0,y 193h, 1pe357-359. )

e —t————

4130
1130
1130
L2
435
136
1138
Ll
Lh2
L3
L3
Lih

(CQIQLC Ql?h?o)
(unpublished)
(CoIeTe 9859)

(CuT oL 217045)

{unpublished)
{unpublished)
(wnpunlished)
(unpublished)
(CoIolie 98Y6)
(unpublished)
(unpublished)
(unpublished)

auh,(publighea by P Courtot
Bgd'Oﬁy 1(}369 ppq 16""1805



161,
162,
163,

16l.

165»'

166,
167.
168.
169,
170,

173,
172,
173,

176 .

17&&’

176.
1774
178,
179.
180,
181,

18z,
183,

180,
185,
186,
187,

Tonbatone
Tombatone

Tombstone

Tombatone
Tonbstone
Torbstone
Tombstone
Torbstone
Tombg tone
Tonbstone

Tonbatone
Tonbstone
Toubh e tone

Tombatone |
Tomhstone

Tonbatone
Tombgtone
Tonbatone

- Tonbstone

Tombstone
Tombstone

Torbstone

Tombstone

Tonbstone
Tombstone
Torbs tone
Tombstone

BE8E8

AD

AD
AD
AD
AD
AD

AD

Al

AD
AD
AD
AD
AD
AD
AD

AD
AD
AD

AD
AD
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Ly 6 (Cololio 20774)
L6 (unpublished)

L7, (published by L. Lesehi, and
included in Ltudes 4'Epigraphie
d'archéologie et d'Histolre
Africaines, Paris, 1957, DD.
UOY w 110)s

Ly (CaLloTa 9698)
) (Col L. 9866)
150 (Cololie 21729)
152 (C.Telie 9877)
153 (CoTl.La 9852)
156 (unpublished)

L6, (published by ¥abre, B.d'0,,
1928’ e :ﬁQOS

h62 (CaIoTis 9895)
L67 {unpublished)

168, (published by P. Courtot
LohoBe, 1058, Dpe 153=1564

————

562 {unputlished)
71 | (uﬁpﬂblighed}
L71 - {unpublished)
W71 {unyublished)
L8 (unpublished)
480 {C.T L. 21757)

180 ox L8l (CoI L. 9876)

480, {published by F. Courtot
Bed'O., 1936y pp 18-19. J

neo - - (unpublished)

180, (published by P, Courtot,
B.d'@e ’lQ%ég }). 16)

L8 (Celalie 21759)
Las (Colalis 21762)
L7 (unpublished)

1eG (Colalin 21719)



186,
189,
190,
191.

102,
193,

194,

195,
196,
197,
198,

1992,
200,
201,
202,

203,

20k,
205,
206,
207.

208,
209,
21c,

211,
242,
21%,
215,

215,

Tombstone
“Tombetone

Tombstone
Tombatone
Tombstone

Togbs tone
Dedlcation in ho

Tombstone
Tombatone
Tonbstone
Tombstone

Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombatone
Tonbe tone
Tombstone
Tombstone
Tombatone
Tombeatone
‘tombys tone

Yomb s tone
Tombstone
Tenbatone

Tombst ne
Tormbstone
Tombstone
Tombstone

Tonbstone

- AD

AD

AD

73

AD 492 (unpublished)
AD Lok {unpublished)
AD L95 (Colalin 21742)
AD L9y {(unpublished)
AD Lo8 {unpublished)
AD 507 -~ {unpublished)
nour ofKing Masuna
AD 508 (CeI L. 9835)
511 {(unpublished).
AD 521 (unpublished)
AD 529 (unpublished)
AD 53%0, (published by I'. Courtot,
Bed'0,, 1036, 1.18,)
AD 5307 (CoLaTia 21738)
CAD 63D {unpublished)
AD 532 (unpublished)
~AD 532 ‘ (unpublished)
AD 534 (unpublished)
AD 536 (CoIoL 9869)
AD %37 (unpublished)
AD 38 {(unpublished’
A 530, (published by P Courtot,
(Bod'Cyy 1936, nn19=20)
AT BLY (unrublished)
AD BL2 {unruhlished)}
aD 8h7%, (pudlished by P. Courtot,
: #,8'0., 19736, pp, 112 - 11%,)
AD Shly {unpublished, )
AD 5Ll (unpublished;)
Al Bhé ‘ (unpublished. )

562, (published by L.Leschi, and
included in Btudes d'Eplgraphie

d'Archéologie ot a'tigbire
Africaines, Paris, 1957, p.l10,

552 {unpublished, )



216,
217.
218,
219,
220,
221,
2224

223,
226

Tombstone

Tonbstone

Torbstone

Tonbstone
Tombstone
Tonbstone

Tonbstone

Tombstone

Tombstone

AD

AD
AD
AD
AD
AD

AD

557
558
561
575
579
590
532

593

599

0

(CeI Lo 9899)
(un@dblished)
(unpublished)
(CuIsLa 21773)
(umpublishéd)~
(unpublished)

(published by Fabre,
B.d'04, 1928, Do 31)

(CoTeL. 9870)

(published by P. Courtot,
LoA.F.,1958, ppe 156-160).



75

2l KAPUTTASACCURA .

~ Roman ruins of some importance formerly occupied
the site of the French colonisation village of Chanzy.
All trace of these ruins were degtroyed when the village
was constructed, and an examination of the airphoto~
graphic cover reveals nothing, '

Vigitors to the site in the early 19th century,
before the village of Chanzy was founded, describe a
rectangular enclosure 180 x 170 metres with walls 0,80
metres in thickness, The enclosﬁre, therefore, covered
an ares of spproxinstely % hectares. NHone of the early:
descriptions mention traces of buildings outside this
enclosure. _

Only eleven inscriptions, including three milestones,
have been discovered at or nesr Chanzy, and they are all
included in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum, (9826 - 30,
21716 - 18, 22616 - 22618),

1. The inscriptions provide us first of all with the
Roman name for this centre, Ksputtassccurs (CoTlelie 22616,
22617, 22618),

2, Two inscriptions (C.I.0. 2826 - 28), discovered at
Ain Skouna a short distance to the south of Kaputtasaccura,
attest the presence of the Ala I Augusta Farthorum between
AD 201 - 212‘, It seems highly probable, therefore, that
Kaputtasaccura was one of the permanent camps along the

limes established by Beptimiuvs Severus at the beginning of
the 3rd century. the exact date of the military foundation
is uncertain; but it may have been in AD 201 when the pro-
curator, Aelius FPeregrinus, inaugurated a large seéttion

of the new limes. Another inscription (C.I.L. 9829),
unfortunately undated, records the presence of either a unit
or a trooper of the Osdroenians.
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The enclosure described by visitors to the site
in the early 19th century probably represents the ramparts
of the original military camp, It was situated at a
height of 700 metres overlooking the Oued Mekerra at a
point where this river emerges from the Monts de Daya, and
enters the vast plain of Sidi bel Abbeés, Like the forts
at Altava and Pomaria to the west, Kaputtasaccurs wasgs es-
tablished on the edge of a piedmont zone at the point of
contact between the steep, heavily wooded slopes of the
Honts de Daya and the mono tonous plain of Sidi bel Abbés.
The valley of the Oued Mekerra proViaed easy communications
gouth into the Monts de Daya.

3y  Kaputtasaccura was linked to Altava aad Lucu by the
nova nraetentura, constructed at the beginning of the Bpd
century as part of the Severan limes. Other roads led to

Penira in the north-east and from there to Aquae Birenses

and to Tgsaccura on the earlier military line,

L, No traces of buildings have been recorded outside the
fort of Kaputtasaccura but two inscriptions, unfortunately
undated, do attest the presence of a civilian population
there, (C.I.L. 21717 = 18).,
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25, Ain Mekerreg

26, Ain Skouns

Ain Mekerreg

There were Roman ruins a short distance to the south
of Kaputtasaccura at Ain Mekerreg. No details of the
ruins themselves are available, but in the surrounding
area numerous canals to irrigate the valley of" the Oued
Mekerreg have been indicated. This site probably repre-
sents a Roman farm or village, but as it has produced no
inscriptions it is difficult to determine when the settle-
ment was established.

Adn Skouna

The Roman ruins at Ain Skouna, a short distance to
the west of Ain Mekerreg, have produced two inscriptions
which record the presence of the Ala I Augusta Parthorum
between AD 201 - 212, This site may represent a small
outpost of the camp of Kaguttasaccuraxto the north.
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27 o Palisey.

In 1931 Doumergue recorded the discovery of ten
dolia on the right bank of the Oued Mekerra near
Palissy,l between Sidi bel Abbeés and Chanzy. The dolia
were found in situ, but dovered by almost four metres of
alluvium deposited by the Oued Mekerra since the Roman
period, 8ix of the ten dolia have been preserved; five
are between 0.85 m and 1 m in height, and the sixth - the
largest - measures 1,20 m in height, According to
Doumergue, "La poterie est belle, solide, pas excesslvement
ébaisse, de meilleure gualité, et d'un plus beau galbe
que celle des dolia de Saint-Leu et de Lamoriclere que
possede le Musee d'Orang 1la surface, bien lissee, est
recouverte:. d'une engdbe;jaunﬁtre; les ouvertures sont
relativement €troites. L'examen des pieces ayant ete
assez rapide;~je n'al pas eu le temps meteriel de prendre
‘des mesures preécises, lesquelles,'d'ailleurs, n'offrent
qu'un médiocre inteéret. |

. . » Chaque dolium était ferme par un bouchon a
chapeau en terre culte, Pas uneseule de ces pileces inter-
essantes, dont le Musee d.'Oran ne'posééde aucun echantillon,
n'a pu dtre mise de ¢dté. Je n'en ai vu qu'un fragment,
remarqguable par son bord fostonne. Deux petites dalles .
de gres avaient aussi servi de couvercles", -

There are potters! stamps on two of the dolia, and
designs in relief on the others, The largest dolium

bears the following inscriptions cun deo. rogare dolia. sl
prosuntur. The form of the writing ls very similar to

p ) 3
that of the 'tablettes de Tébessa' and Albertini” would
date the dolia to the end of the Hth century. By this
date Christianity was so wide-spread in this part of
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Mauretania Caesariensis that one is not surprised to find

such an inscription on household objects of a rural
character, '

h believes that the dolia mark the site of a

Roman farm, and that they weﬁe used to store wine, oil, or
grain, The agricultural workers who firet discovered the
dolia also found carbonised cereal grains., We do not
‘know when this farm was founded but it was certainly
occupied at the end of the 5th centﬁfy. This evidence of
late occupation is interesting, as we know that one of -the
farms to the north of Altava5was occuplied at the end of the
Hth century and continued to be occupied at least until the
gsecond half of the 6th century. It would be extremely

- valuable 1f further investigations could be carried out

at either of these sites, to determine whether the farms
were established at an early date, or whether they represent
s Qispersed form of rural settlement which only came into
existence in these areas at the end of the Roman period.,

Dounergue

1. Doumergue, ., 'Decouverte de poteries romalnes sur le

e s s e

2. Doumergue,¥., 1931, idem., P=217.

%+ Albertini,f., 'Inscription, graveé sur un dolium de
PaliSSy,, Bod'On, V01052319315 PP A - 5750

L, Dounergue,f., 1931, idem., p.219.
5« Altavagm 2_'5’9;
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28, MINA,

. Therc were extensive Roman ruins situated 2% kilo-
metres to the south of Ighil-Izane, They occupied s
low hill (90 metres) on the left bank of the Oued Mina,
which rises in the southern High Plain of Sepsou, and
enters the Chelif twenty-vive kilometres to the north
of Ighil-lzanes

Rufer visited the Roman ruins in 1907. © He found
clear traces of the south and esst walls of an enclosure
(fig. 13)e¢ The walls were protected by projecting
bastions, and enclosed an area of 10 hectares which was
covered with worked stones, In the north-east corner of
the enclosure he discovered the ruing of a Christian
Church, and he made a plan of the building (figs. 13 and
1h) . There was a gateway in the east wall of the en-
closure, and beyond it the ruins of numerous houses,
over a distance of 700 metres on either side of an open
water condult, This conduit, constructed of dressed
stone, led water to the settlement from the Oved Anseur,
and was over twenty kilometres in length (fig. 15). At
the east end of the suburb, which must have covered an
area of approximately 12 heetares,2 there was a gecond
gateway. The settlement possessed two cemeteries, one
of the pagan period, situated a short distance to the
northwest, and another of the Christian period outside the
south wall of the town, (fig 13).

The ruins of the Roman town, which was known as Mina

y 4
after the nearby river, -

were used as a guarry by the
¥rench colonists from Tghil-Izane, who took large quantities
of worked stones to construct their houses, Although there

are now very few remains stending above ground-level, the
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site has not been built over, and is still available
For excavation.

In 1954 Cadenat paild o short visit to the Roman site
where he discovered a number of sherds of imported'gémian Jon
pottery of the late lst century. b '

B8ix inscriptions from Mina are included in the
Corpus Inscriptionun Latinarum (C.I.L. 9726, 21535, 21537-
10)s No other inscriptions from this site have been
pﬁhlished. |

What do we know of the origing and history of the
Roman settlement?

1. The discoveby of imoorted Samian pottery of the lst
century proves that this site was occupled hefore the
Roman mililtary oécupation of this part of Mauretania
Caesariensis, Cadenat has put forward the theory that
the city'originated as a Berber settlement, and that

gome of the wealthler inhabitants were influenced by
‘Romen civilisation, and were able to appreciate and purchase
Roman merchandise, 5 It is quite possible that a Berber
settlement of considereble size would attract Roman
merchanﬂs.. But there ig another possiblitya A Roman
civilian population, i.e. veterans and thelr families, may
have settled at Mina after the Kingdom of Mauretania was
annexed by Rome in the early lst century, but before
permanent garrisons were stationed in this area in the
first half of the 2nd century.

2 Mina was situated between Gadaum Castra and Ballene

praecsidium on the 2nd century military line, so that a
military unit may have been stationed there as part of the
re~-organisation of the defences of the province carried out
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during the course of the 2nd century, The inscription

«IuTe 21535 ig the tomwbstone of a veteran who may have
served in the garrison, Fowever it is equally possible
that he was a native of Mina who had been recruited for
service elgewhere in North Africa6 and had chosen to
return home when his period of service in the Roman army
nad been completed,

e It was during the early 2nd century that roads were
built linking Mina to Ballene pracsidium and Castra Nova

in the west, and to Gadaum Castra in the east, A Roman

road also linked Mina to Aquae Sirenses in the south-west
but this road.wag@robably congtructed in the first half of
the 3rd century.

I An impovtant civilian populdtlon continued to live

at Mina after the military occupaoion of this part of

Mauretania G&esarlen31s,8and the settlement no doubt

increased in sige during this period. The south and east

walls of enclosure A (fig.1l3) have projecting bastions

which suggégﬁ that they were constructed after AD Boo.ﬁkwﬂ i
¢ el e

The suburbs which grew up on elther side of the water wﬂd#w4,

Ye,

cnndu1t must have been protected by ramparts, but as only
one gateway has survived we do not know the exact size of
the area enclosed or the form of the defences. The city
was occupied at least until the early 6th centuryu9

5e There was a Christian community at Mine in the 5th
and 6th centuries, but we do not know when Christianity
first reached this area, In the esrly 20th century the
ruins of a Christian church were still visible at Mina,
We know the names of two bishops of Minas; a bishop
Caecilius attended the Council of Carthage in AD L84, and
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one of the bishops who attended the Council of AD 525
was Secundus, or Secundinus, of Mina,

6. At least a section of the inhabitants of Mina
must heve been farmers, cultivating fields outside the
town. Gsell has deseribed the remains of several
diversion dams on the Oued Mina (fig.15) which led
water from the river into irrigation canals. Traces
of these canale have been recorded in the plain surround-
ing the Roman centre, Gsell calculated that approximately
5,000 hectares could be irrigated by this techniques 10
As the dams were built to divert rather than to store the
waters of the Oued Mina, they can only have been effective
during the winter period because the regime of the Mina,
dominated by the seasonal variations of the climate, is
characterised by a poor summer flow as well as by an
annual discharge that varies drematically fram year to
year. Because of this limitation, irrigated sumner
crops would be excluded, and the farmers no doubt concen-
trated on cerealsll to supply the needs of the city,lg
together with some tree crops, e.g. the olive, and perhaps
2lso the vine, Herding mumt have been an important
secondary resource. _

Not all the Parmers lived in the city. Ruins of a
number of isolated farms have been discovered around the
Roman cehtre, 13 (figel5).



8l

1. Rufer,J., 'Etude sur les établissements romsins du
Bag-Chélif, de la tina, defl'oued Hillal et de
1'oued el A’bd'g B-d'()e, 1907! pp.ﬁ?ﬁl - 526&

o, The total area of the Roman settlement would there-
fore be 22 hectares,

%, The Oued Mina has retained its Roman name,

4o Cadenat,?,, 'Quiza et Mina (Oranie). Tessons de vases
sigillés', L.A.B., Vol.2., 1954, ®p. o213 - 248,

5., Cadenat, Pe, 195k, idom., pps 243 = 2L8

6. Like the soldier of the Jrd Legion who get up a tombstone
at Mina in memory of his father (CoT L. 21538).

7. ‘Three milestones have been dlscovered along this road.
Two were set up between AB 222 and 23D, (CeIalie
2069), - 95) and a third in AD 2hh (C.IeL. 22596)

GoloTia 9726,2153%7, 21539, o15h0 are all civilian tomb-
gtones.

©. A bishop of Mina attended the Council of AD 525

10, Gsell,S., Engquéte Administrative sur les Travaux
Hydrauligques Anciens en Algérie, 1902, ppe.ll - 19.

11, Cereals can of course be cultivated without irrigation
in this area but yields are generally low.

<0
&

12, A Roman corn mill has been discovered anong the ruins
(Pellet, s, 'Note sur les ruines de Mina',
B.d'0., Vol.36, 1916, ps 286).

1%, Gsell,S., Atlas Archéologique de 1'Algérie, Paris,
19119 Map 21, Nnose 50 = 35Q
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294 Bl Ksdr,.

There are Roman ruins at Bl Ksar in the Djebel
Bou Ziri, 11 kilometres to the south-south~west of
Mohamedia. This site is not included in Gsell's
Atlas Apchéologique de 1'Algerie',  Saloma 1 suggests
that the ruins at Bl Ksar represent a small fort on
the Roman road linking Castrs Nova and Aguae Sirenses,

1. Salama,P., 'Occupation de la Maurctanie Cesarienne .
occidentale sous le Bas~Bmpire romain',
Mélanges d'archéologie et d'histoire offerts
a_Andre Piganiol, Paris, 1966, p.13502
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304 OQued el Hammam,

In 1882 there were still extensive Roman ruins
situated 500 metres to the south of the village of
Oued el Hammam, at the centre of the fertile 'bassin de
Dublinesu's  They occupied a platesu which dominates
the right bank of the Oued el Hammam, snd from the
site there is an excellent view along this section of
the valley. By 1950 the site had been clesred fop
cultivation, and all trace of the ruins had almost
disappeared 1 although one can still £ind sherds of
Roman pottery 2 and a few worked stones there.

Three inscriptions from Qued el Ismmam are included
in the Corpus Inscriptiomum Latinarum; C.I.L. O7LT7 1is
an undated tombstone ; C.I.L. 9748 is a defaced msor»iption
vhich may have been a touwbstone; and C.I.L. 21581 is a dedw
ication set up in AD 261, Demacght published two in-
scriptions from Qued el Hammam in 1897 which are not
included in the Corpus,  They are both civilian tonmbstones
set up in AD 348 and AD 4L1h resmactively.j In 1966
Salama published the text of a milestone which was first
discovered at Oued el Hammam in 1947 and is now in the
Oran Museum, It is a milestone of the Later Empire, and
belongs to the years AD 333 - 55{.

The Roman centre at Oued el Hamman was situated
on the Roman rosd which linked Castra Nova %0 Aguae biranggg
and Lucu, and which wdﬁﬁrohahlv constructed in the early
Ard century. Salama has suggested that the centre
originated as a amall fort established to protect this
route, and that a civil settlemont grew up around the camp.
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Unfortunately there is no evidence to support this
theory, but we do know that there was a civilian
population Lliving at Oued el Hammam in the second
half of the 3rd century 7 and that the settlement 8
continued to be occupied by a Romenised and Christian
pooulation at least until the early 5th century. 9

1. Déjarding,V., 'La Commune de Dublineau', B.d'0.,
Vole73, 1950, ppe. 22 - 25.

2. In 1959 several amphorae and sherds of Roman pottery
were found among the ruins (Archives inédites
du Bervice des Antiquités de 1'Algérie -
dossier DLublineau).

%, Demaeght, 'Inscriptions inédites de la Maurétanie
Cesarienne', B.d'0., 1897, p.4l0,

li, Salama,P., 'Occupation de la Mauvretanie Cesarienne
occidentale sous le Bas-Bmpire romain',
nélanges d'Archéologie et d'Histoire offerts g
Andre Piganiol, Parils, 1966, pp. 1301 « 1302,

5o ColL. 2259% is a milestone which was set up to mark the
6th nile from Castra Nova 1o Agquae Sirenses.
It can be dated to AD 239, The milestone
published by Salama in 1966 points to road
repalrs along this route in the early Lith century.
(Salama,P., 1966, idem, ppe. 1301 ~ 1302, no. 1ll,

6, Salama,F., 1966, idem. p« 1302, Other ‘postes de
surveillance' on the same road include Bl Ksar,
11 kms south~south-west of Mohamedla, and
Guethna, 7.700 kms to the south-west of Oued el
Hammams

7 Calolie 21581,

8, Oued el Hammam was probably a small town,

9, Demaeght, 1897, idem,, p. 410,
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A1 Guethna,

There were extensive Roman ruins near the Zaouia
d'Abd~el~Kader at Guethna, which is situsted on the
southern edge of the "bassin de Dublineau' in the Monts
dess Benl Chougran, until the ares was occupled by
Furonean colonists wio used the stones to build their
farmhovses, Unfortunately, no descriptions of these
ruins have been published, and CGsell in his 'Atlas Archeo-
logicue de 1’A1gé}ie’ simply records that there were
‘ruins of o Romen town' ot Guethna.

In 1882 Julien, a colonist, discovered numerous
tombstones when ploughing near the site of the Roman
centre in what must represent one of the cemeteries, All
these inscriptions - a total of 22 -~ are published in the
Corpus Inseriptionun Latinarum (21582 ~ 21602 b - excluding
21602 a which was discovered st Oued el Hamman), They are
s1ll ¢ivilian tombstones ~ the earliest is dated to AD L1k
and the most recent to AD 52i, In 1945 - 46 Déjardins
publighed another inscrintion which, although found several
kilonmetres from Guethna, presents characteristiic s which

link it to the tombstones found in the Roman}cem@ﬁery~$heﬁe;1

The inscription’is a civilian tombstone dated to AD L39+,
Roman pottery and other small objects of the Roman
pariod have been found among the ruins. They are now in
[»] -
the Oran ¥Wuseum.”
The opviginsg of this settlement are obscure. It was
situated on the Roman roed linking Cagtra Nova to Aguae

Birenses, and Lucu, which appedrs to have been constructed

S ot s kg et

as a part of, or shortly after the reorganisation of, the
A
defences of the province by Septimius Severus,” Salama has

suggested that the Roman centre at Guethna, like Fl Ksar, and
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perhaps Oued el Hammam further north, began as a small

fort established in the early 3rd century bto survey a
section of this road, and that at a later date a civil
settlement grew up outside the :E’or‘_c..br The fact that

the earliest deted inscription from the site is of AD Lk
does not, of course, exclude the possibility of occupation
during the 3rd and Lih centuries. Déjarding, on the

other hand, believes that a settlement was not established
at Guethna until the beginaning of the 5th century. He
points out that, "il n'apparalt qu'au moment ol la
Maurétanic va etre soustrsite s la domination romaine,

il se prolonge en plein vi® siecle, alors que la

province était retombee depuls des années aux mains de
princes berbéres indépendants . . o On est tente d'imaginer
un petit groupe de familles romalnes occupe%s a leup terres,
loin des agitations du siecle." 2

[iowever, on the basis of the available evidence lse.
the epigraphic evidence, the only Lirm conclusion that we
are pernitted to meke is that there was @ civilian popula-
tion, many of waom were Christian, at Guethna, fron the
carly Hth century to the first half of the 6th century.

Lo D?J&Pdlﬂo,Va, 'Deux Lnscrlptiona Romaines d'Oranie',
B d O.g Vol, 66"‘67, 19L{-r) - “69 PP B )L)o

2. Demaeght, Catalogue RalSOHﬂO des Ob jets archéologilques
du Musée de la Ville d'Oran, Fart 1, 2nd edition
(by Doumergue,#.), Oran, 1932, nos. 250 ~ 251,
5329 757 had 3580

2, Salama,P., 'La Voie Romaine de la Vallee de la Tafna'
:Bi.z/'\;.-.tf\.o, VOI c.’.o, ].9()6"‘0(9 Do?‘-)g ﬂ()bp O

L. Salama,P., 'Occupation de la Meuretanie Cesarlenne
occidentdln sous le Basnumplre romain'
Melangesd Archeéologie et d'Histoire offerts a
Indre Pigseniol, PariSy 1966, Del302.

5, Dejardins,V., 'La Commune de Dublineau,' B.d'0., Vol 73,
1950’ ppt25"‘26
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32, AQUAE SIRENSES.

There are extensive Homan ruins on the right bank
of the Oued el Hammam, 500 metres to the south of Bou
Hanifia, they occupy the lower part of a spur
(250 metres) between two tributaries of the Oued el
Hammam, To east and west of the site there are a nume
ber of low hills, the Djebels Loutza (526 metres), bou
Chitane (486 metres), and Rakhmoun el Kebir (508 metres),
which form part of the Monts des Beni Chougran. The
valley of the Oued el Hummam was one of the important
routeways through these mountains during the Roman period.

tsell visited the ruins in 1899, He calculated
that they covered an area of 35 hectares, and he was
able to distinguish the remsins of numerous houses, and
a wall two metres thick, surrounding the Roman settlement,
A long canal led weter to the town from the thermal
springs 1,200 metres to the north.

There were still clear traces of the Roman settle~
ment in 1930, and Mme. Vincent carried out a preliminary
survey of the ruins.2 The wall surrounding this centre
could still be seen, and Mme. Vincent cslculated that it
enclosed an area of 22 hectares, This is probably a
more relisble figure than that given by Gsell, She has
also provided us with a useful vlan of the site (fig. 16).
This reveals not one but three enclusures; the first,
situated on the highest part of the spur, covers only 2 - 3
hectares; +the second, extending to the north and west,
covers over double the arca of the first; and the third,
situated on the lowest part of the plateau near the Oued
el Hammam, covers an area of about 1L hectares.

The outer wall of the settlement was two metres in
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thiekness, and of irregular constriction, In some
sections it wgs bullt of excellent dressed stone, in
others of roughly quarried blocks, and in a nudber of
places tombstones, some bearing inscriptions, had

been used in its construction. The ares enclosed by
this wall was covered with large stones including pillars,
columns, and fragments of cornices, many of which are
finely worked, and must have belonged to substantial
bulldings, These remains attest a certain luxury and
comfort among at least a part of the inhabitants of the
city."

Inside the first enclosure (fig.16,1), near the
east rampart, Mme, Vincent excavated a Christian
basilica which she dstes to the late 3rd, early Lth
centuries. In the north~east corner of the second
enclosure (£fig.16,2), was a bath«house, but she could find
no trace of the canal, indicated by Gsell, which led water
from nearby spriﬁgs to the Roman city. Two Christian
hasilicas situated inside the third cnclosure (fig,16,3)
were excavated. In the course of the excavation of the
first basilica, which measures 17,50 m x 11 m, numerous
fragments of fine pottery were discovered together with
three lamps « one pagan and the other two Christian -~ and
a dolium which was intact and in place, Many of the
pillars, capitals, and columns of the second basilica,.
which measures 18,80 m x 11 n, were of coarse manufacture
but were mixed with one or two much finer pleces. Thene
appeay to have been taken from earlier buildings. Madame
Vincent concludes that the two basilicas are of a late
date, perhaps as late as the 6th century.,

There are three vast cemeteries to the north, east,
and south~east of the city, (fig.16). Pagan tombsitones



have been discovered in the south-~eastern cemetery, which
is probably the oldest. The northern cemetery appears
to be the most recent, as it contalns tombstones of a
late period, as well as re-used %rd century lascriptions.

The Inscriptions feon Agquae Sirenses.

Bight insceiptions from Aguae Sirenses are included
in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarun (57h5. - 1,6, 21575 = 80),
together with three milestones discovered near Aln Tizmi,
7% kms, to the north-cast of the ruins (2259h -~ 96). In
1927 Mme, Vincent published the texts of L new inscriptions

vhieh had been used in the construction of a memoria in one
of the cemetories outside the Roman city. They are all
undated tombstones and one records a soldier serving with

5

the ala miliarisas, Mne, Vincent published & further five
inscripbions in 19376. Three of these inscriptions were
discovered in the northern cemetery; the first is a
fragnent of the base of a tombstone set up in AD 2hlyy  the
second is an undated civilian tombstone with = double

inscription;]

and the third is an undated Christian inscrip-
tlon which appears to be of a very late period, The other
two inscriptions were found incorporated in the north~cast
rampart of the city, and are both undated but pagan tonmbe
stones, probably 3rd éentury in date. Déjardins published
an undated dedicatﬁdn from Aquae Sirenses in 1945 - L6,

The text is as follows: Deo sancto seterno Iulius Botrius

votun solvit libens anime.8 To this 1list must be added

the inscription which Gsell discovered during his excavations
at Ala Miliaria in 1899.9' It is a toubstone sct up in
memory of Robba, who died at Ale Millaris in AD L3k, and who
wag the sister of lHonoratus, a bishop of Aguae Sirenses.
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This is not the first reference to bishop Honoratus of
Aguae Sirenscs, His name appecrs in the lists of
bishops who attended the Council of Carthage between the
Catholics and Donatists in AD L11, Honoratus belonged
to the latter group.

We do not have a very clear picture of the history
of Aguae Sirenses.

La The origins of the Roman city are obscures The
inseription C.l.L. 9745, recording the presence of &
numerus =2t Aguae Sirenses suggests that there may have been
a fort there, Mne. Vincent has suggested that a fort was

bullt at Aguse Sivenses in the 2nd century as a -southern
outpost of the military line established by Trsjan and

. . . . s s 10
Hedrian, and that enclosure 1 represents the nilitary camps

This is an interesting theory, Altiough the earliest refw
erence to Aguse Sirenses is during the reilgn of Severus

Alexanderll this does not exclude earlier occupation,
However, enclosure 1 looks more like a lote aitadel than a
nilitary camp. There is another possibility. :éggﬁg’
Birenses was situated on the road which linked Castra Kova

on the 2nd century military line to Lucu on the Severan
limes. This road wes constructed in the early 3rd
centu.x:’yl;2 and a fort may have heen estublished at Aquae
Sirengses al this time 4o protect the route,

Unfortunstely there is no evidence to support either of
these theories, and only a series of excavations, paying
close attention to stratigrephy, or further epigraphic dige
coveries, will throw new light on this problen,

24 In the early 3rd century, after the organisation of
the Severan limes, Aquae Birenses was an important focus of
Roman roads. We have already noted that the city was
situated on the road from Cagtra Nova to Lucu,l3
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. . | . . 1L .
It was also linked by road to Mins, i Tenira, Kaputta-
saccura, Hegiae and Ala Miliaria. ‘The rvoad from Ala

Miliaria -~ where/Cavalry unit 1000 strong was stationed
in the first helf of the %pd century - to Aguae Sirenses

must have been of the greatest importance strategically,
providing the most direct route from Als Miliaria to the
more northerly military line, and to the coaste Although
no milestones have been discovered along this mpoad, 1t

must have been constructed early in the 3rd century.

The fact that Aquae Sirenses became a focusg of Roman

roads in the early 3rd century suggests that at the tinme
of the Severasn re-organisation there may already have been
either a fort or & ¢ivilisn settlement of some importance
there,

3 Although the origins of Aguac Bircenses remain obscure

we know that there was a civiliasn population.living there
in the first half of the 3rd centunry,. The settlement
grew to a conslderable size (22 hectares), and Mme, Vincent
has suggested that cnclosures 2 and 3 (fig,16) represent
two stages in the development of a civil settlement,
outside the fort (enclogure 1).15 Against this interpre-
tation it may be argued that enclosure 1 looks like a

late citadel, and it seems more probable that the settlew
ment had reached its full extent before it was protected
by o wall, Later, perhapsg,during the disturbed conditions
of the Lth and 5th centuries, the inhatitents may have
found it impossible to defend the whole area of the city,
g0 that one or more citadels were constructed te which the
citizens could withdraw in time of danger or attacks. On
the other hand, 1t is possible that the settlement declined
in size during the lLater Empire, in which case enclosures
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now, 1 oand 2 nay represcent successlive attempts 4o
protect those areas that hod not veen oboadoned, The

urban centre conbinued o Lo cecupis :r% Least until

16

the late 6th comtury.

g A - T I e T I o
Aquas Slrenses was the lsegest oty in thav part

off western Haurctonin Caesapienses which lay 1o the
gouth of the 2nd century militery line, and 11 must have
gurely schieved indap@ndent status, Lt iy to be hoped
that further epipraphic digcoveries will give us cone

3

information sbout its uunic 1gl1 Oﬁ“anlsaiioﬂa

lia There was o Christian community st Acuae Sirenses

in the Sth snd 6th centuries although Christianity
probably reached this arca at an carlier date, We know
the name off one bighop of the ehureh st Agune Birvenses,

and the sites of three besilicas whore the community

vorshipped.

5 A wection of the Inhebitants of Acuse Sirenges were

frormers, cultiveting corn wnd oleVﬂ in fields outside

the eldye in 1953 lme, Canpg-Pabrer publlished the
vlan of & small Olive 1111l (hullerie) whiclh she had

‘ | 17
diagcovered ithero. /

£t is composed of two separate
parts (£ig.174) cach contsini ing two presses. There is
only one tsnh for esch press, snd the absonce of &

"in the walls of the mill prove that

'pierre & encoche
cach press must heve been attsched to o vertical pillap
fixed to the fleor and ecof of the bullding (Lig.1l7H).

The long stone which sevsrates the pressing floop

from the Pirst wnk 1n the southern part of the will is a

re-used tombstone, These &etalls indicate that the mill

was-bullt at a relatively late date. It may have belonged

(6]
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to a fsrmer who, having s larger holding, was able 1o
produce a regular surplus of olives. The oil that

had been extracted would no doubt have found a market
at Aguae Jirensecs itself, or in the surrounding ares.

On the other haand, the olive mill may have bheen bullt
for the use of a number of families who only produced
enough olives for their own needs. ividence that corn
was grown by the farmers is provided by the discovery
of the lower part of a Roman corn-mill, now at the QOran
Museum,ls and a silo containing grains of carbonised
wheat found during one of lme. Vincent's excaVations.%g

1. Gsell,S., Fouilles de Benian (Als Miliaria), publiées
sous les auspices de 1l'Agsoclation Historique
pour 1'Etude de 1'Africue du Nord, Paris, Leroux,
1899, op. 25-26.

e " 2 ’ ; s . N _-\ ~ >

2, Vincent,M.l., "Aquee D%renses’g Cincuieme Congres Int-
ernational A'Archeéologie, Alger, 1230, (Fublished
163%), pps 261-27L .

%, The Roman name for the city was Aguse Hirenses (C.I.L.
97UB, 2250, 22595, 22596).

i, Vincent, M.HM., "Aguac Sirenses', D,d4'0., Vol.58, 1937
ope 113 - 124,

5, Vincent, M.k., 'Aquae Sivenses’, Bed'Ol., Vol.u7, 1927,
np. 201-262, et

6. Vincent,M.M., 1937, idem., pp. 113-12L.

7 Both inscriptions had been re-used in a hypogeum of a
late period,

/ , . . .

. Dejardins,V., 'Deux Inscriptions Romaines a'Oranie’,
BQ(}.'.Q“!‘Q VC}].. ()6 hnd 679 19“5 il 14163 }?Pa L)l - BL‘“’

9, Gsell,B,, 1899, idem., DPp. 25 « 26,

10, Vincent, .M., 1930, idem, pp. 264 - 265,

11s CeleLe 22594 is a milestone recording I miles from
Aquae Sirenses. It was set up between AD 222 « 235,




12,

13,

14,

15..

16.

17

184

19.

CeIlolie P2593.

Cel lie 22593 is a milestone set up in AD 239 to mark
the 6th mile from Castra Nova to Aguae Sirenses.
A milestone found ot Oued el Hammam, 18 kilo-
metres to the north of Aguae Birenses, was set
up between AD 33% and %57, which indicates that
" this roszd was maintained during the Later Empire
(Balama,Pes 'Occupation de la Maurétanie César-
ienne occidentale sous le Laguhmplru romain’,
Mélanges d'Archéologie et d'Histolre offerts
a Andre Piganiol”, Paris, 1966, pps 1301 - ~ 1302,
no. i)
Three milestones have been discovered along this
road; two are dated to AD 222 ~ 235,
Eai.‘.z?J9u, 22595) and the third to AD zuu
C.I. L. 22596),

Vincent,M.M.,s, 1930, idem,, p. 26l,
C.I.L. 97U6.

Camps~F brev,ﬂ., I Oliv1af et 1'Huile dans 1 Afrigue
homaln@, Gouvernement General de 1° Algerle,
Service des Antiquites, Missions Areheologlques
.A.lger‘g 19539 }C)p- 57 - 600

H

Dounergue, M.F., Catalogae Raisonné des Ob jets Archée-
ologlques du Musee Municipale Demaeght & Oran',
B d Onz Vol 60’ ]()_}99 pt 210‘

Vincent,MiM., 1930, idem., pe 271.
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The Roman ruins at Timgilouine are situated on a
low hill which rises to a height of approximately 600
netres. - The land slopes gently to the north, and
nore steeply to the eust, down to the Oued Berbour.
some five kilometres to the noprth of Timzioulne this
river joins the Oued Sefioun to Lorm the Oued Hounet,
Both rivers rise in.the Monts de Daya to the south; the
Oued Sefioun to the south-west beyond Berthelot, and the
Oued Berbour to the south-east near Salda.

The Honts de Daye form part of the Atlas Tabulalres
They are lower bthan the Honts de Tlemgen and their high-
set summlte -~ which overlook the High Pleins to the |
south - only rise Lo between 1000 and 1300 nmehbres.
wnalie? is charscterised by plateau Fformatlons separated
by wide valleys, so that the area as a wholc ig much
nore asccessible than the Monts de Tlemgen further west.
Prench colonists esteablished a number of villages in
these mountsaing which are crossed by a network of seconds-
ory roade. Trom the nopth the Monts de Daya present a
less foemidoble sspect than the Monts de Tlemgen, and do
not form o real barrier to movement, Prom Timziouine
there are easy roubes south and east along the valley
+# the Ouned Berbour through the Monts de Daya and to the
Saida reglon; and towards Le Telagh and Bossuet in the
south-west along the Oueds Sefioun and Mezoua,

To the north of Timzioulne the Oued lounet crosses
the eastern part of the Plain of Sidi bel Abbés, and
west of Ain Fekan it joins with the Oueds Welrir and
Bahouat to form the Oued el Hammnam. The valley oﬁ/ggzd
gl Hammam was sn important houteway through the MHonts des



Beni Chougran during the Roman period. Three agmall
hills, the Diebels Kersout (845 ms), Hellet (757 m.),
and el Assa (845 m.), rise sbove the general level of
the plain of Bidi Bel Abbds some eight kilometres to
the north of Wimziouine. .

In the second half of the 19th century Captain
Graulle, the head of the 'Bureau avabe' of Salda,
visited the Koman ruins at Tinziouine and made several
trial excavations there. He discovered a low-relief
representing the god Mithras, which can now be seen in
the Oran Museum.l

De la Blanchére published a plan (fig.18) and a
short description of the ruins in 1883.° At that time
traces of a defenslve wall could be seen, ond within the

enclosed area there werc troces of buildings, mogt of
which were no longer standing above ground level, and
nunmerous scatibered stones, The walls of one bullding,
which was siltuated in the north-esstern part of the
ruins, was, however, still standing to a height of 5 orv 6
netres (£igeld A). ,

According to de la EhﬂuméreTslﬂﬁﬁ the perimeter
wall encloses an area of approximately 13%% hectares,

PR

Tn 1885 and 1886 Tapaine v iLea Timziouine and madc
a plan of the Roman ruins (Tlh. 9),”  This reveals two

enclosures; the larger enclosure covers an ares of
approximately 6 hectares, and the smaller enclogure an
area of ﬁppwoxjﬂatrly 14 hectaves, Lapaine described
four 'block-houses' situated to the south of the Roman
site, and an important building, which he bellieved to be
either o temple or a citadel, in the north-eastern corner
of the larger enclosure (figs. 19 4, 20). In this
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building there were a large number of brick pillars
between 1 m and 1.40 n. in height. During his
investigations therce Lapaine discovercd a nwiber of
glass philals, o ring, s buckle, o hook or Pastener,

nd forty Homan coins of the WOizns of Comnodus, Septi-
miuvs YSeverus, Carocalla, Beverus Alexander, Heximian
Gordian and Philip. Demaeght, in a note published in
1892, suggested that thé "eitadel' described by Lapaine
repregsented in fact a bath-house of the Roman scttle-
mnent., He points out thet "Les piliers dont 1L parle
soutenaient probeblement le parquet du caldarium et les
débris de poterie que 1l'on y remarque en tres grande
quentité sont ceux des tuyaux qui garnissaient les murs
et fournissaient 1'air chaud u cette étuve, Ce qui
semble confivmer nmon hypothese, c'est que 1'on voit
encore dang cette ruine les restes de fourneaux, ceux sans

doute sur lesquels reposalent les chaudléres qui contenai-
Iy

ent 1'eau pour les bains,!

The plan produced by Lapaine bears 1i%§%e rEse-
blance to that of de la Blanchdre, ulthough/&itadel’
which he describes corresponds to a building A on de la
Blanchere's plan,  The plans of this building produced
by de la Blanchere and Lepaine are almost identical, but
the dimensions recorded for the buildinges are very
different. According to de la Blanchere it is 26 m.
long and 22 m. wide, while Lapaine's measurements are
33,60 me X 29 m.

A short description of the Roman ruins at Timziouine
is included in the catalogue of the Oran Museum. Demaeght
wrote, "Les ruines de Lucu couvraient une superficie d'au
moing quinze hectares. On y voit les substructions d'une
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enceinte fortifieé, qui mesurait trois cents metres de
cote environ, des pans de mur qui se dressent encore
hxplus de dix-huit pieds au~dessus du sol, des restes
d'édifices en plerres de taille de grand appareil et
des débris, en grandequantité, de briques, de tuyaux,
et de poteries grossieres."

Since the late 19th century no further investiga~

- tions have taken place here. The Roman ruins are
situated some distance from the French centres of
Charrier and Berthelot, and do not appear to have attract-
ed the interest of archaeologists during the period of
French rule, The ruins at Timziouine have not been
entirely destroyed, and some of the walls can still be
seen at the present time,(1968),

The Inscriptidnsﬁfrqm Lucu,

The small-scale excavations carried out at Tim-
ziouine dﬁring the second half of the 19th century
produced no inscriptions, but 25 milestones have been
found between Timziouine and the Roman centre of Kaputta-
saccura to the west. Only 17 still bear an inscription
and they are included in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarunm
(22601 - 22618). In 1912 de Pachtere and Bouyssou
published two milestones found nine kilometres to the north
of Timziouine at Ain el Mathése. 6 Both record 6 miles
Trom Lucu; the first is dated to the reign of Severus
Alexander (AD 222 - 235); the second to AD 238.

De Pachtere and Bouyssou discovered two more milestones
five kilometres to the north-east of Charrier between

the ruins at Timziouine and the Roman centre of Ala
Miliaria, Both record 10 miles from 71 it; the first

is dated to the reign of Caracalla (AD 21l - 215); and the
second to AD 238 « 24l



The lack of inscriptions from Timzlouine itself
and the conflicting reports of the extent and character
of the Roman ruving make it very difficult to reconstruct

tite history of the Roman settloment,

L we know, first of all, that the Roman name for
Timziouine was Lucu. This name appeors on the mile-
stones Cu.lelie 22602 - L, 22607, 22609 -~ 1, and on the
two milestones discovered by de Pachtere and Bouyssou at
Ain el HathBsc. '

2 The earliest milestones discovered beiween Lucu and
Eaputtasaccura (C.T.0Le 22602 - L, and 22611) were set up

during the reign of Septinius Severus and his sons( AD 198 -
209). Col. L. 22602 - i records that the emperor ordered
milestones to be placed along a new frontier line, the

nova praectenturs. It seems certain, therefore, that Luocu

began as a fort on this nova praetenturd and was bullt as

part of the reorganisation of the defences of the province
hy Septimius Severus ot the beginning of the 3rd century.

B The unit stationed at Lucu at the beginaing of the

3rd century was the Cohors 1 Punnoniorun (C.l.0L. 22602 - L,
20611).

Lo Lucu was linked to Kaputtasaccura in the west and to

Ala Miliaria in the east by the nova praetentura. A road

along the valley of the Oued Sefioun led to Aguaec Sirenses,

and from this centre there were roads to Reglae, Castra Nova,

end Mina on the more northerly military line. There is
evidence that this voad system wes malntalned throughout
the 3rd century (C.T.L. 22615),

Se On the plan produced by Lapaine (£ig.19), the Roman
centre at Lucu covers an area of 6 hectares. The small



103

enclosure, with an area of 1} hectares, may represent

a late citadel, De la Blanchere's plan (fig.18)

reveals a wall enclosing an area of 13% hectares.

Demaeght states that the ruins at Timziouine cover at
least 15 hectares, FPaced with these conflicting

reports one can only conclude that the ruins at Timziouine
appear to represent more than the original military

camp, and that it is probable that a clvil settlement
grew up around the fort.

6 The Roman ruins have not been entirely destroyed,
and a preliminary survey to record accurately the
remains that are still visible would be of the utmost

. value. A plan for a serles of excavations at this site
should be high on the list of prilorities of the Depart-
ment of Antiquities.

1. Demaeght, Catalogue Ralsonné des Objets Archeologiques
du Muséde d'Oran - 2nd edition by Doumergue, M.F.,
Oran, 1932, p. 25, no. 32,

2o de la Blanohere, Rey Voyage d'Etude dans une partie de

' la Maurétanie Ceésarienne - Extrait des Archives
des Missions Selentifiques et Litteraires,
Troisieme Série, Vol. 10, 1883, Paris, p.68.

3. Lapaine, J., 'Fouilles de Timziouine', B.4'0., Vol.6,
1886, pp. 298 - 300,

Lo Demaeght, 'Inscriptions inédites de la Maurétanie
Césarienne', B.8'O.,, Vol. 12, 1892, pp. 275- 276.

5 Demaeght, 19%2, idem., P« 95.

6. de Pachtere and Bouyssou, ’Bornes milliaires de la
Région de Charrier', B,d Osy 1912, Vol. 32,
Pp. 245 « 253,
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3, ATA MILIARIA.

The Roman ruins at Beniane were situated on a
small plateau (560 metres) enclosed on three sides by a
meander of the Oued Benian. This river is joined by
the Oued Hasna three kilemetres to the west of the Roman
site, and together they form the Oued Taria. The
Djebels Kouk and 0lad Aouf rise abruptly to between 900
and 1000 metres to the north of Beniane while to the
‘south the Djebels Kodjel (1079 metres) and Bel Had}
(1008 metres) present more gentle slopes. These hills
form the western part of the Monts de Salida which are
lower than the Monts de Tlemgen further west, and do not
constitute a real barrier to communications,. There are
easy routes 1o the west of Beniane along the valley of
the Qued Taria; to the Saida region in the south along
the valley of the Qued Hasna; and eastwards through the
main part of the Monts de Saida along the valleys of the
Queds el Keblir and Mechira.

De la Blanchére visited the Roman ruins at Beniane
in 1883.1 ‘The walls of an enclosure 220 metres in ’
length could still be seen at that time (fig.21,) There
were gateways in the middle of the west and south walls
and each gateway was protected by two towers bullt of
good Roman masonry and measuring 5.10 m. in dianeter,
Inside the enclosure, de la Blanchere indicated traces of
walls and alignments, and the ruins of an important
building near the east wall, (fig.21 A), Beyond the
enclosure there were remains of several isolated buildings.
Outside the west gateway was a cemetery of the late Roman
period and beyond it an avenue bordered on either side by
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mausoleums. One mausoleum was still standing to a
height of almost 8ix metres (fig.22),

In 1899 Rouzies carried out excavations at Beniane.
He was assisted by Gsell who published the results in
the same year.z Gsell begins his account of the
excavations with a brief description of the Roman ruins
which only differs from that of de la Blanchere in one
respect; according to Ggell the enclosuwe was 240 metres
square (fig.23)

The area excavated was situsted in the eastern part
of the ruins and proved to be the site of a Christian
basilica 26,80 m, in length and 16 metres wide (flg.zh).
The wall of the apse rested on top of the foundations
of the east wall of the main enclosure indicatlng that the
latter had been demolished either some time before the

basilica was built or at the start of the building opera~-
tions,

Seven tombs were discovered and excavated to the
east of the church, and a number of inseriptions were
f‘c»umi.l‘L This appears to have been a small cenetery
Peserved for members of the clergy.,

Both the church and the tombs were situated inside
a small fortified emclosure, 34 mi long and 35.10 m., wide
(figs2h).  The main entrance to this enclosure was in the
middle of the west wall, and was only one metre wide,
Gsell found traces of two semi-circular bastions on
either side of the main gateway, ¥arly tombstones and
sculptured stones had been used in the construction of the
enclosure walls, indicating that they were built at a
relatively late date.
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Gsell worked out a rough chronology for these
constructionss He suggested that the basilica was
built in the first half of the 5th century and that
the small fortified enclosure was constructed after
the malin ramparts but before the basilica.

Leschi, the Directop of Antigquities for Algeria,
visited Benisne in 1935.5 By that date the Roman
ruins had been almost entirely destroyed and the area
was belng ceultivated by colonists from the neighbouring
village, A few traces of the basilica excavated by
Rouzids and Gsell were still visible, but Leschi predicted
that they too would soon be destroyed. At the present
time (1968) the area is still being cultivated and the.
last traces of the Roman centre have disappeared, '

The Inscriptions from Beniane.

Thirteen inscriptions from Bentane are included in
the Corpus Insceriptionum Latinarum, (9740, 9743, 21568 =~
21574, 22597). The inscriptions C.I.L. 21570 - 2157L
were first published by Gsell in 1899.,6 C.I.L. 21570,
21571, 21573 « 74 were discovered in the small cemetery
to the east of the basilica, and C.I.L. 21572 near the
porch of the basilica. Six inscriptions dliscovered by
Rouzies and Gsell during their excavations at Beniane are
not ineluded in the Corpus,

1., An undated tombstone set up by atrooper of
the ala miliaria in memory of his wife and two
of their children. This inscription had7been
used in the constructionof the basilica.

ii. An undated tombstone set up by a trooper of 8
the ala miliaria in memory of his mother~in-law.

iii.The undated tombstone of a retired soldier who
died at the age of 61 years, This inscription 9
had been used in the construction of the basilicsa;




ive. The tombstone of Robba, the gsister of the
" Bishop of Aguase Sirenses, who died in AD 43h..
This was discovered inlahe cemetery to the
east of the basilica.

v. The tombstone of a priest, Donatus, who died
- in AD Lh6. This was discovered in the
cemetery to the east of the basilica."

vi. The tonbstone of a deacon, Maurua, who dled in
'AD 439,  This inscripfion was found near the
porch of the basilica,”

A dedication made to Aelius Peregrinuas by the
centurion of a cohort was discovered at Benlane and
published in 1902. 13 The inscription can be dated to
between AD 198 - 201,

In 1912 de Pachtere and Bouyssou published two
milestones found five kilometres to the north-east of
Charrier, between Beniane and ngy&u Both milestones
record 10 miles from Tigiti the first is dated to AD 214 -

215 and the second to AD 238 = 241y,

A milestone discovered between Beniane and Cohors
Bpeucorum was published in 1919,1° It records 7 miles
from Cohors Breucorum to Ala Miliaria and is dated to
AD 201, '

In 1924 Varnier published three milestonesgs discovered
at Aowzalel to the east of Beniane;l6 All three inscrip-
tions record 7 miles from Ala Miliaria and are dated to
AD 222, AD 238 - 2L4l, and AD 2% -~ 252 respectively.

Leschi discovered three new inscriptions at Beniane
in 1935, The first is an undated tonbstone set up by a
trooper of the ala miliaria in memory of his mother;17
the second is a dedication by the duumvir of the city of _
Ala Miliapia end is dated to AD 286 - 305i° and the third
is a milestone first discovered two or three kilometres to
the east of Beniane, It records 2 miles from Tigit to Caput
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Urbe and is dated to AD 235 - 238,19

The earliest inscription from Beniane is dated to‘
AD 198 « 201, and the most recent to AD LL6.

As there are no visible remains at Beniane an
attempt to reconstruct the history of the Roman centre
must be based on the work carried out by de la Blanchére,
Rouziés, and Gsell at the end of the 19th century, and on
epigraphic evidence,

1. During the Roman period the centre at Beniane was
known as Ala Miliapia 20 804 8180 ;o qygis 21 pyoy4
appears to have heen the Beﬁber name for this locality,
and after the Roman military oeccupation it continued to be
useds The centre at Beniane was also known by the nane
of the military unit’ stationed there in the early 3rd
century = the ala miliaria.

2 The earliest inséription from Ala Milisria is a
dedication to Aelius Peregrinus, the governor of Mauretanis
Caesariensis, made by the centurion of a cohort, It can

be dated to between AD 198 - 201. 22  We know that in

AD 201 Aelius Peregrinus was responsible for the construction
of a large section of the new limes in Mauretania Caesar
iensis, inecluding the fort at Aras, the hiberna of the Ala
Gemina Bebastena, the camp of the cohors Breucorum, the

forts of Lucu and Kasputtasaccura and the roads linking these
forts. ?3 A milestone, discovered in 1919, records 7 miles
Trom Cohors Breucorum to Ala Miliaria and is dated to AD 2()1?LL

These two pieces of evidence suggest that a fort was bullt
at Beniane in AD 201 or perhaps a little earlier.,

Be We do not know whether the ala miliaria was the first
unit to be stationed at Beniane. The dedication to
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Aelius Peregrinus was made by the centurion of a cohort,
and it is possibie that this cohort, although we do not
kxnow its full name, was the first unit to occupy the
site, - But the fact that the gla milisria gave its name
to the fort and civil settlement at Beniane 25 suggests
that the unit was stationed there early in the 3rd cent-
UPrY s

4,  The enclosure described by de la Blanchére and Geell
(figs. 21 & 23) covers an area of between five and six
hectares, and appears to represent the fort built to

nouse the ala miliaria which was a cavalry force 1000
strong, and the 1argest'unit stationed in Mauretania
Caesariensis,. But this may not be the first fort construcw
ted at Beniane particularly if the site was first occupied
by a cohort,

On the basis of his reading of A.E. 1936, 63, Leschi
has suggested that only a part of the ala miliaria was
stationed at Beniene, and the remainder was split up into
small detachments stationed in other parts of the province.
He wrote, "La tombe de la aéfunte, qui a vécu 45 ans, 10
mois et 6‘jours a été faite par son fils, Caecilius.Victor.
Celui-ci était sans doute en garnison & Ala Miliaria . Il
est porteuetendard du détachement puisgu'il est dit Vex(illaw
rius)., Le vexillum, en effet, est 1'étendard d'une unité
detachee d'un corps de troupe. La présence d'un vexillaire

a Ala Miliaria prouve bien que, comme 1l'avait suppose Gsell,

une partie seulement de 1'aile etait casernée a Béniane.
But the

Le resteétait dispersé dans d'autres %arnisonsv
letters VEX have been misinterpreted by Lesch
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A number of inscriptions recording troopers of
the ala miliaria have been discovered at Portus Magnu§,27
Tasaécura,28 and Aquae Sirenses?’ This evidence cannot
be used in support of Leschi's theory. The ala miliaria
was no doubt responsible for patrolling the road from
its camp at Beniane to.Partus Magnus on the coast and,
therefore, it is not surprising to find several troopers

of the unit buried at centres along this route,

5s»  Ala Miliaris was linked to Lucu in the west and

Cohors Breucorum in the east by the nova praetentura .

A milestone recording the 7th‘mile from Cohors Breucorunm

to Ala Miliaria and dated to AD 201°° suggests that the
forts and roads are contemporary. This section of the
nova praetentura appears to have been maintained throughout
‘the first half of the %rd century.El Another road linked
‘Ala Milieria to Aquae Sirenses in the north-west, From
Aguae Sirenses a number of roads led to centres on the

2nd century military line, and to the coast. No milestones
have been discovered along the road from Ala Miliasria to
Aquae Sirenses. . |

6o Evidence from inscriptions proves that a civilian
population settled at Ala Miliaria soon after the fort was
built. Troopers serving in the gla miliaris married and
established families, who no doubt lived near the fort} 32
soldiers who had completed their period of service in the
als often preferred to settle down outside the fort where
they had been stationed;BBIthe presence of 1000 men, all
receiving regular pay, must have attracted some of the

local Berber population to settle down outside the fort and
to provide various services for the garrison, By'thé end
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of the 3rd century we know that the civil settlement at
Als Miliaria had achieved the rank of a chartered town
governed by its own council.

There is no evidence on the ground of a civil settle-

ment outside the fort. Barly descriptions of the ruins

at Beniane only refer to several igolated buildings to
the north of the main enclosure.35 This suggests that
the ala miliaria was withdrawn some time during the
gecond half of the 3rd century, when large field armies
were being created, leaving the fort vacant for cmvilian
‘cccupation. The city of Ala Milisria does not appear to
have grown beyond the walls of the original military
establishment, and was one of the smaller nrban centres
in this part of Mauretania Caesariensis.

7. ‘The Roman settlement continued to be occupied at
lesgt until the end of the Hth centurJ; There was a
Christian community there at the bcginnlng of the 5th
century, although we do not knowwMﬁylchristianty first
spread to Ala Miliaria. Geell excavated a Christian
pasilica in the eastern part of the city, built between

AD L3L and 439, and nearby he found a small cemetery
reserved for members of the clergy. Two bishops of Als
Miliérla, the sister of Bishop Honoratus of Aguae Sirenses,
and three priests, were buried in this cemetery.ﬁ The
undated tombstone: of another pisghop of the church of Ala
Miliaria and the tombstone of a deacon, who died in AD 439,
were found near the porch of the basillca.57 Bishop
Honoratus and his sister were members of the Donatist
Church, and 1t 1s probable that the other members of the
clergy buried in this cemetery were also donatists.38
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On the other hand the bishop of Ala Miliaria buried near
the porch of the basilica was a Catholic and Mensius,

s Catholic bishop of Ala Miliapia, attended the Couneil.

The small fortified enclosure surrounding the
pasilica and cemetery appesrs to represent a cltadel to
which the citizens of Ala Miliaria could withdraw in time
of danger. It was built at a late date 39 either at a
time when the main ramparts had already been destroyed or
fallen in to disrepair, or at a time when the townspeople
found that they could no longer defend the whole of the
settlement,

8. Rouziés and Geell discovered parts of several olive
presses during thelr excavations at Beniane, This
suggests that at least a section of the population of Ala
Miliaria were farmers.

1. de la Blanchere,R., Voyage d'Etude dans une partie de
1a Maurétanie Oésarienne - extrait des Archives
des Missions Scientifiques et Litteraires,

~

Troisieme Serie, Vol.1l0, Paris, 1883, pp. 66-68,

o, Gsell,S,, Foullles de Benian (Ala Miliaria), publiees
sous les auspices de l'Association Historique:
pour 1'Etude de L'Afrique du Nord, Paris, 1899.

3, Gsell,S., 1899, ideme, Da8,

i, Details of these inscriptions are given in the follow-
ing section, ’ ‘

5, Leschi,L., 'Inscriptions d'Ala NMiliaria', B,d'0., 1936,
pps 107 = 111,

6., Gsell, S., 1899, idem.
70 G‘S@ll, S.’_ 1899, idem., p'll.
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8 Gsell, S,y 1899, idem., pell.

9, Gsell,S,, 1899, idem., ps12.

10, Gsell,S., 1899, idem., p. 25.
11, Geell,S,, 1899, idem., Do 27+
12, Gsell,8,, 1899, idem., pe Ll
13, A.B. 1902, L.

e de Pachtere and Bouyssou, 'Bornes williaires de
1a Region de Charrier’, B.d'O,, Vol.?2,
19129 PP- 250 - 252.

15¢ BoA.Ges 1919, p. CCXIV no., L.

16. Varnier,As, 'Découverte de Ruines Romaines et de
trois bornes milliasires a Aouzalel', B,d'0O.,
Vol, uu9'192h’ NP« 280 - 285,

17. A, 1936, 63
18. AnEi 1936’ 62»’«:
19. AJE. 1935, L2,

20, Varnier,A., 1924, idem., PP 280 - 28% (the first
two inscriptions)., C.l.T. 21572
AJB. 1936, Ol

21. de Pachtere and Bouyssou, 1912, idems, pPP. 250 «
AJE. 1935, L2, . 252,

20, A, 1902, b,

n ) / - N
23, Salama,P,, 'Nouveaux femoignages de 1'oecuvre des
Severes dsns la Maurétanie Cesarienne', 2nd part
TofeBey, VoL3e, 1955, p. 358,

2lls BuALe,1919, pe CCXIV no, 1.

25, A milestone set up in AD 222 records 7 miles from
Ala Miliapia., (Varnier,A., 192k, idem., p.281),

26, Leschi,lie, 19306, idem., p. 110,
27, G I.L, 21617, 21618,
28‘ C;I.Lu 97500

29, Vincent,M.M., 'Aquae Sirvenses', B.d'0,, Volli7, 1927,
Pae? 2e

30¢ BQAQQ&’ 1919, De COXIV Noa1.
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32,
33

By
55

'36.
37.
38,

39,
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One of the milestones discovered by Varnier hetween
Ala Miliavria and Cohors Breucorum is dated to
‘AD 243 - 255 (Varnler,A., 1924, idems, D+283).

Gsell, inscriptions i and ii,A.E. 1936, 63

Gsell inscription iii,  Gsell also records that
Rouziés discovered the tombstone of a soldier
of the ala who, after 27 years of service, died
at Ala Miliaria aged 70 years, He does not
give the text of the inscription (Gsell,S., 1899,
idems, P.124) o S

A;Ep 19369 6“',

de la Blanchere, R., 1833, idem., D67
GSGll,S., 1899, ldeme, pu8.

GeIlsLe 21570 « Th, Gsell inscriptions iv and vQﬁ
Cel. L. 21572, Gsell inscription vi.

Courtois,C., Les Vandales et 1'Afrique, Paris, 1955,
p. 285, note 5.

Gsell,S., 1899, idem, p.ub.
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35 - 13, The Fortified Villas of the western Ouarsgenis.

35 The Fortified Villa at Kaoua,

A number of writers have described the Roman ruins
at~Kaoual situated 14 kilometres to the east of Ammi
Moussa and commanding the valley of the Oued Sensig, a
tributary of the Oued Riou (fig.25, 1).  They represeht _
the remains of a large country residence LO metres square
protected by three enclosures (fig.26). The villa
consisted of four ranges of rooms built around a central
courtyard and colonnade. © In the middle df the open
courtyard there were two cisterns 6,10 m x 7.30 m and 4 m
in height, The main doorway of the building was flankéd
by projecting towers, There was a semicircular arch
above the dborway decorated with Christian and Berber
motifs, and on the keystone of the arch was the inscrition
Spes in Deo Ferini Amen. Feprinus was no doubt the
proprietor of the villa, The only access through the
outer defénces to the house was along a long, narrow
corridor which led from a gateway in the outer enclosure
to the main doorway of the villa.

Although the villa was built of excellent Roman
ashlap, there are a number of irregularities and a
certain lack of precision in its construction. The vault
of one of the cisterns was built of re-used column shaftsg
which suggests that some of the stones may have come from
another building.

The irregularities in the construction of the villa,
the Christian and Berber decoration on the arch sbove the
doorway, and the style of the capitals, columns, and hases
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of the colonnade, all suggést that the villa was cone-
structed during the Later Empire. We: do not know how
long the villa continued to be occupied, but at a date
unknown it appears to have been destroyed by fire.

36s _Ksar Kebbsba (or Kbaba).

The rulins of the fortified villa known as Ksar
Kebbabs were situated on the right bank of the Chabet
Mahalla, a tribubry of the Oued Sensig,2 (£ige25,2)

The villa was 30 metres square, snd thers were projecting
bastions on all four sides (£fig.27)., In the middle of
the central courtyard were two vaulted cisternms. There
wag no evidence on the ground of a system of outer de~
fences,

37s..  Bedadja,

Marchand has described the ruins of a fortified
villa at Sedadja on a spur, to the north of Kef el Zeboudj”
(£igs25,3)s It had the same form as the villas at Kaoua
and Kebbaba and its dimensions were 20 m, X 30 m. (£ig.27).
The ruins of a house constructed of worked stone were
situated a short distance to the west of Sedadja, at the
foot of the spur.h There were traces of a large open
courtyard with rooms on two sides (fig.28).

38. . Ksar Dierane.

Marchand visited the ruins of another fortified
villa known as Ksar Djerane, situated on a spiur of the
Djebel Menkoura® (£ig+25,4)« In plan the villa is
similar to Kaoua, Kebbaba, and Sedadja, consisting of a
“rectangular enclosure protected on all four sides by
projecting bastions, There were a number of isolated
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buildings to the east of the villa6 (figq29),

39,  Kherba bou Zoula.

There were ruins of a fortified villa (36 m« x 27 m.)
at Kherba bou Zoula (fig. 25,5), When Marchand visited |
the ruins in 1895 the semiwcircular arch sbove the main
doorway was still standing,7

)4-0‘0 ~ Ben Afifs.

The Roman ruins at Ben Afifs asppear to represent a
small fortified villa® (fig. 25,6).

No inscriptions have been discovered at these sites
but like Kaouva the villas were probably constructed
during the Later Empire.

Evidence from inscriptions indicates that fortified
villas were constructed at Ammi Moussa and Ain Sidi el
Hadj (fige25, 7 & 8)s

Ll, Ammi Moussas

An inscription (C.I.L, 21531) records that a
fortified ville was constructed there in AD 339 by
M. Aurelius Vasefanes vir p(erfectissimus).9 When
Lacave -~ Laplagne visited Ammi Moussa in 1911 the ruins of
the villa had been almost completely destroyed, and only a
mosaic, whieh'had been incorporated in one of the bulldings
of the military hospital,vsurvﬁed‘lo . ’

Lhos Ain 8idi el Hedi.

In 1954 Salama published an inscription discovered
among the Roman ruins at Ain 8idi el Hadj, five killometres
to the north of Columnata. The text is as follows:
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eosAlureli(1) / [Innoléentis / Looo]ets

£i1i /  [ouwi plost  obi[tum  platris = fu /
[n])damenta / [dedi]cavit  cum / [F111(i)s]

suls a(nno) p(rovinciae) ©CC ~ / [eese]t

Becundo

He suggests that the 1nscription refers to the construction
of a fortified villa by Aurelius Innocens and his sons in

v 11
AD 3%9,

L3, Trumelet,

In 1954 Balama also published the text 6f an
inseription found a short distance to the east of the
village of Trumelet;lz It records that a fundus was
constructed there by the incolae, the decurion Saturninus
and Maximus, the son of Maximinus, Although the
inscription iglmdated, it is of the Christian period,
According to Salama the inscription may refer to the
construction of a Portified villa, the residence of a local
notable,  But there is another interpretaion ~ the fundus
was constructed by the incolae and the decurion Baturninus,
which suggests that the work was carried out on behalf of
a municlpal authority, and the inscription may therefore
refer to the construction of a villa on territory belonging
to a city.13

What conclusions can we draw sbout the foprtified

villas of the western Ouarsenis?

1. It is possible that all the villas are contemporary
and were constructed during the first half of the Lth
century. It is unfortunate thet there is no evidence to
indicate the length of time these sites were occupied.
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2+ . Salama has suggested that the villas were built
by local families who had benefited from imperial
favour. After his African war, the bmperor Maximian
needed to secure the srea of the western Massif de
1'Ouarsenis, and may have made alliances with local
families elther by consolidsting rights which they had
already acquired, or by actually establishing their
fortunes. h

Se 'The need for defence iuv this sres during the period
of the Later Empire did not exclude a certain luzury in
the sStyle of life of the local landowners. In plan the
villas are typicalvof the countrywhduses of Roman Africa,
but they were also strongly built, sidcd more than one
storey high, and at least one was protected by a series
of outer defences.

L, The economic fumtion of the fortified villas cannot
be igonored, They were farms and, being strongly built,
provided a measure of security during the Later Hmpire
which allowed the pesceful exploitation of some of the
most fertile valleys of the western Ouarsenis.

5 Finally one cannot disregard the similarity between .
these sites and the 'fortified farms' found widely in

the Gebel and pre-desert of Tripolitania,  Although

the fortified forms were smaller - on the whole under

30 metres sguare - and not so pretentious as the fortified
villas, they too were sirongly built, consisting of a
series of rooms built around an open courty:rd containing
one or more cisterns (fig.30)s ‘They stood move than one
storey high, and were usually surrounded by a broad ditch.
There is no evidence thot the fortified villas were sur-
rounded by a ditch, but the villa at Kaoua is protected
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by o series of enclosures, Hgny of the fortified
farms are Lth century in date but the only one that
can‘be rigidly dated belongs to the years AD 2Ll - 9,
and bharc are a number thot are clearly Islamic in
dates 15

The mausoleums (Gsell's Atlas, Uap 22, Nos, 68,
71, 73, Thy 75 =« 81, 106) were probably huilt by the
families who occupled the fortified villas at Ksar
Kebbaba, Sedadja, Kherba bou Zoula, Ksar el Kaoua, and
Ben Afifs (fig. 25),

l1s de la Blanchere,K., Voyage d'Etude dans une partie
de la Maurétanie Cesarienne - extrait des
Archlves des Missions Scientifiques et Litter-
aires, Troisieme Bérie, Vol,10, Paris, 1883,
pua 116 il 1?3@

HMarchand, 'Occupatlon romaine dsns le cercle d'Ammi
“fOU.&S‘clg Bgd 009 VOI 159 18959 p*o; ?09 ot 2100

Gsell,S., Les Monuments Antigues de 1l'Algerie, Vol.l9
Paris, 1901, pp. 102 - 106,

LacavamLaplagne, '‘Wotes sur queloues ruines rom@in@o
relevees dans la commune mixte 4'Ammi Moussa),
]’gﬁ. 099 VO]..Q 1 19119 PP 8 L )._{m_i)o

2, Derrien,'MNotes sur 1ea ruines romaines et berberes
du bassin de 1'0ued Riou', B.d' 4’06, V0le15, 1895,
p])a 681 hae 2 c.’za

Marchand, 1895, ldem., pPpe. 210 - 211,
Lacave~Laplagne, 1911, 1dem., p. li%.
3« Marchand, 1895, idem., p. 211,
o TLacave-Laplapne, 1911, idems, pp. 47 - L,

e Marchand, 1895, idem., phs 216 - 217,
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6;1 Lacaﬁe~Laplagne, 1911, idem.g ©Pe HL = Bl
79‘ M‘drChaﬁdg 18959 idemey pevgloo
8, Harchond, 1895, idem., p. 216,

9 We do not know whether this was an honorary
title or whether 1t had been obtained
by actual service, However, what it
does indicate is that Aurelius Vasefancs
was an extremely wealthy man and without
doubt a local noteble,

10. lLacave-~Laplagne, 1911, idem., p. 38.

11, Salama,P., 'A propos d'une inscription mauretanienne
de 346 apres J-C', Lsh.E., Vol.2, 1954, pp. 219~
2224

12, Salams,P., 1954, idems, pp. 217 - 219,

13s The clity may be either Tiaret, situated 15 kilo-
metres to the southwest, or (olumnata 7%
kilometres to the north-east, or Kherba des
Aouissat 6% kilometres to the north-west.
One of the persons who ordered the construction
of the fundus near Trumelet was Maximus, the son
of Maximinus or Maximianus, and it is interesting
to note that a certain Maximianus is recorded on
an inscription from Kherba des Aoulssat (Salama,
Pey 1954, idems, ppe 206 - 219,)

1. Salama,P., 1954, 1dem., p. 225.

15, (oodehild, ReG., 'The Limes Tripolitonus II',J.5.8.,
Vol 0, 1950, ppe 34 = 37. ‘
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L, Kherba Achlef,

The Roman ruins known as Kherba Achlef are
situated at a height of 801 metres on the southern
slope of the Djebel 8idi Mahrouf, and close to the
Oued Hachlef which flows south to. join the Oued
Tigulguest, The ruins asre near an sbundant spring,
and cover an area of 13 hectares. Marchand visited
the site in 1895 and indicated a large number of worked
stones, 1 Cadenat discovered a capital decorated with
Christgan notifs among the rulns at Kherba Achlef in
1957.

Only two inscriptions have been found theﬁe; the
N A N
first is a tombstone set up in AD 372 Y and the sccond
is an undated but Christian tonbstone,

We know nothing of the origins of the Roman town.
It was situated a short distance to the north of the
Severan frontier, and there was a civilian population at
Kherba Achlef in the late Lth century.

1. Marchand, 'Occupation romaine dans le cercle a'Ammi
HMoussa's Bed'C., Vol.15, 1895, pp. 115 - 116,
2. Cadenat,P,, 'Vestiges palco-chretiens dane la region
de Tial"e‘t,' IlvoEtg V01.59 19579 De 98»
Dounergue, ¥., Oata;pgue raisonné des ob jets archeolo-
giques du Musee de la Ville d'Oran, Part 2, Oran,
1938, p. 140,
s Cadenat,P., 'Inscriptions latines de la wégion de
Ti&l]ﬁ’@‘t,' LQAQEQQ VOlelg 19539 P 1720

i
L g
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L5, Ouekki,

There were Roman ruins at Ouekki, situated a
short distance to the north of the Djebel Lesba, which
rises to over 1100 metres, and forms part of the water-
shed between streams flowing north 4o the Oued Riou
and south to the Oued Tiguiguest. Since Gsell visited
Ouekki the ruins have been used as a guarry for stone
to build a farglbelonging to the Ghlamallah family,
In 1953 Cadenat discovered an inscription built into the
wall of one of the farm buildings. It is a civilian
toubstone set up in AD 3L, In the course of the same
visit he discovered two capitals of a late period
decoraged with Christian and Berber motifs. In 1959
Lagsus indicated the discovery of a sculp tured capital,
an octagomal pillar without decoration and a worked
stone decorated with Christian and Berber motifs at Ouekki.

We know n@thing about the origins of #he small Roman
settlement at Ouekki, There was s civilian population
there in the middle of the Lth century, and the discovery
of a number of decorated capitals and other sculptured
stones shows that this small centre possessed some fine
buildings. ’

1, Cadenat,P., 'Inscriptions latines de la Région de
‘ Tial‘@t,' LQ.-A.’EC, 'Vol.l, 1955, P 168.

‘24 Lassus,J,, 'L'Archéologie Algérienne en 1959', L.A.E.,
V.Olg8gg 1960’ p.S;
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L6, Douar Commune Ouled Lak?ed.

In 1956 Cadenat discovered an inseription 6 kilow
metres to the north-west of Colummata, in the Douar
Commune Ouled Lakred.: The stone is very heavy and
can hardly have been displaced. The inscription fg
undated, but of the Christian period,® and probably
marks the site of a small Roman settlements

1. GsellyB., Atlas Archéologique de 1'Algérie, Paris,
1911, Mep 22, near site no. 125,

2, Cadenat,Ps, 'Vestiges pdéo»chrétiens dans la région
de Tiaret', L.A.E., Vol.5, 1957, Ds 97
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47. COLUMNATA,

There were extensive Roman ruins approximately one
kilometre to the south of the village of 8idi Hosni.
The Roman centre was situated at a height of 846 metres
on the northern slope of the Kefs Bourchafa and Smaar,
overlcoking the wide wvalley of the Oued Mechra el Khil.,
The Kefs Bourchafa and 8 Smaar, which rise to almost
1000 metres, form an important watershed betwwen the
streams flowing south across the northern Sersou to join
the Nahar Ouasscl, and those flowing north to the Oued

Tiguiguest which drains part of the south~west¢rn Ouar«~
genis,

Until the early 20th century, the ruins were still
standing above ground level, but as no description of
the Roman site was pubiished we know nothing of their
extent or character, When the village of Sidi Hosni was

established, the nearby ruihs were used as a quarry by
the Buropean colonists who took the stone to build their
houses, The rulns were rapidly destroyed, and all
visible traces finally disappeared when the area was
cleared for cultivation,

Five stones decorated with Christian and Berbep
motifs can still be scen built into the wall of a house
at Sidi Hosni‘l In 1911 three large stone troughs were
discovered in the village; one of the stones was decorated
with a 'chrisme' on elther side of which were the outlines
of a bird, and a small column in reliefi the other two
stones were decorated with Christian and Berber motifs,?
Cadenat discovered three stone coffing at 91d1 Hosnij;
the firgt was decorated with Berber snd Christisn motifs;5
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the second with a 'chrisme' and the outlines of two
birds in r’el:?.e*f;LL and the third was almost identical
with the sccond, and part of a decorated cover was still
in place.-

Deep ploughing over the area of the Roman site has
led to a number of interesting discoveries. Charles
and Aimé Martin discovered a complete fenestella
confessionis,6 together with a long, flat stone, decor-
ated with a 'chrisme';7 and a pillar, 8, 1500 metres to
the south of 8idi Hosnis Cadenat believes that these
discoveries may mark the site of a Christian church,

In 1956, in another part of the ruins, the plough
revealed a number of c¢rudely worked capitals, including
one on which the letters QVINTASI had been engraved-g |

Towards the end of 1956 deep ploughing in the south-
eagtern part of the ruins revealed traces of walls
congtructed of sxcellent dressed stone, Cadenat began
a series of excavations there in December 1956, 10
They revealed a room, 5.20 m., square, enclosed on three
sldes by walls 0495 ms - 1 m. in thickness, while on the
four th side there was a wide entranewith a nunber of
steps leading down into the room (fig.31l)., Two of the
steps were well preserved, and were found to be constructed
of two rows of bricks, separated by a small pubble and
mortar core, This room, which appears to be a Roman
bath, was situated at the north angle of a building complex.
Immediately to the south-east, Cadenat found traces of a
large paved courtyard surrounded by walls which were also
constructed of good Romen masonry (fig.3l) - and there
were traces of a second room to the west (fig.3l). The
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‘building probably represents the bath«house of the
Roman centre, but its full extent is unknown.

During the course of the excavations Cadenat found
the following objects:
1. a number of tiles,
1is« fragments of dolia_and amphorae,

iii. sherds of coarse pottery of‘local mans-
facture with simple decoration - one of
the fragments is engraved with the letters
VRINI,

ive a small guantity of fine red imported
pottery..

Ve fragments of a number of lamps.
vi, small pleces of Roman glass.

In 1959 Cadenat investigated the area to the southe
west of the Roman bath which was excavated in 1956.11
Here he found the hot rooms of the bath-house, During
the course of the excavation fragments of a number of
lamps, and seven Roman coins were discovered.

The Inscriptions from Sidi Hosni,

No inscriptions from 8idi Hosni are included in the
Corpus Inscrivtionum Latinarum. In 1912 two inscriptions
were discovered amohg the Roman ruins, The first is an
inseription set up between AD 290 - 292 by the procurator,
Aurelius Litua, to commemorate a victory over a famous
Berber tribé;12 and the second is a milestone recording
rebuilding and road repairs in AD 212.13 In 1953
Cadenat discovered a decorated archway on which an undated
but Christian inseription naming a magister had been ene-
graved.lu Two inscriptions were found at Sidi Hosni in
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1956, One is a Christian tombstone set up in AD L63}
and the other is part of an inscription engraved on a
dolium, 12 |

What do we know of the origins and evolution of the
Roman settleoment?

1le A milestone discovered between 5idi Hosnli and Tisw-
semsilt is included in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum
(22587), It was set up to mark the 15th mile from
Columata,*® Tn 1911 Gsell identified Colummata with
the Roman ruins near Bourbaki.l7- However, from
Fourbski to the point where the milestone was discovered
is at lemst 16 Romen miles, Later, in 1928, Gsell 10
and Albertini 19 suggested that Golumnata was to be found
to the west of the milestone near the village of 8idi
Hosni, The Roman ruins there are exactly 15 Roman miles
from the point where the milestone was discovered.

-~ Although it is still not absolutely certain, this theory
has been accepted by most archaeclogists and historians.zo

24 Pabre discovered a milestone at Columnata recording
rebullding and road repairs in AD 212.21 This suggests
that a fort was bullt there before AD 212 and probably

at the beginning of the 3rd century as part of the re-
organisation of the defences of Mauretsnia Caesariensis by
Septimius Beverus, Tt is possible that the fort was
oceupied throughout the 3rd century 22 but we do kot know
the name of the military unit stationed there, The
Notitia Dignitatum records a praecpositus limitis Columna-
tensis; during the Lth century Columnata must have been
the command post of one of the frontier districts of the
province.
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The fort of Colummata had a commanding view north
across the valley of the Oued Hechras el Khil, but was
cut off from the High Plain of Sersou'to.the gsouth by the
Kefs Bourchafa and Smaar which rise to almost 1000 netres.
This contrasts with the location of the Hiberna Alae
Sebastenae and the forts of Bourbaki and Boghar, all of
which were situated at the southern foot of the Ouarsenis
mountains,

Fe The Romen ruins at Sidi Hosni covered nany hectares
and must have represented not only the military camp but
also the civil settlement that grew up around it. An
undated hut Christian inscription from this site records

a magister and Courtols believes that this was the title
of the chief official of the Roman settlement during the
period of the Later Empire, 256 The settlement continued
to be occupied at least until the late 5th century. 2k

Mo There is evidence of a Christian community at
Columnata in the 5th century, 25 although Christianity
probably reached the town at a much earlier dates A
bishop of Columnate attended the Couneil of Carthage in
AD U8h, |

5 art of an olive press has been discovered among the
ruins of Columnata, 26

1. Personal observation.

2 Fabre,S,, 'Decouverte a'une inscription romaine a
Wa]dOCk“hQUuue au', B.a' Be& 0oy Volo31l, 1911, pps
561 - 562,
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Cadenat,P,, 'Vestiges paléo-chrétiens dans la région
de Tiaret', L.A.E., Vol.5, 1957, p. 92.

Cadenat,Ps, 1957, idem., p.92.

Lassus,Js, 'L'Archéologie algerienne en 1959',
LafoFsy Vol,8, 1960, ppe 4 - 54

Cadenat,Ps, 'Waldeck-Rousseau - Fenestella Confession-
8'y Lo, Vol,1, 1953, pp 286 - 7,

Cadenat,P., 1957, idem., p. U,
Cadenat, p., 1957, idem, p. 97.

Lassus,J., 'L'Archéologie algerienne en 1956,
LCA‘C"A‘UQ V01059 19579 Po 126,

Cadenat,¥s, 'Foullles & Columnata 1956 - 19571,
LcAoi'j., V01o6, ]958, PPs 69 - 98,

Liassus, d., 19609 idemss pp 2 - U

Aslhs 1912, 24,

Fabre,8,, '"Une nouvelle inscription a Wwaldeckw
kousseaun', B,d'0., 1912, p. 127,

Cadenat,Ps, 'Inscriptions latines de la Region de
Tiaret?, L.AJE,, Vol.1, 1953, pp. 167 -« 168,

Gadenatgpég 19579 idem.; PP 95 had 97'

According to Gsell and Albertini the milestone was
set up between AD 196-211 (Gsell,S,, Atlas
Archéologie de 1l'Algérie,Paris,1911l; and
Albertini,®,, 'La route~frontiere de la Mauré-
tenie Cesarienne entre Boghar et Lalla~Maghnia'
Bsd'0sy 1928, ps 34)s  Salama on the other
hand dates the inscription to between AD 217 - 218
(Salame,Pi, Nouveaux temoignages de l'Oeuvre des
Severes dans la Maurétanie Cesarienne!, LeAoB.,
Vole3, 1955, p. 358 note 123,

Geell, 8s 1911, idem. Map 23, site 27,

Geell, 8., 'Le Christisnisme en Oranie avant la conguéte
arabe', B,d'0,, 1928, p. 25, note 1.

Albertini,&,, 1928, idem, pp. 34 - 35,

Notably Courtois,Ce, Les Vandales et 1'Afrique,
Paris, 1955, p. 85, notes 1 - 3, and pp. 87, 88,
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2., Fabre,S., 191?, ideme, Do 19/
22« AJl, 1912, au
2%, bourfom 3Cey 1955, idems, ps 89 and note 3,

2. Inscription dated to AD L63 djocovered among the
ruins (Cadenat,P., 1957, idem., pp. 9% m 97) .
A bishop of Columnaua attended the Council
at Carthage in AD L8l

25s Cadenat,P., 1957, idems, pPp« 96 - 97.

26, TLassus, J., 1957, idem,, p. 126,
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48,  Xherbe des Aouissat, (Kherba des Ouled Bouzlane).

There were‘Romanvruins at Kherba des Aoulssat, a
short distance to the west of Columnata. They covered
an area of six hectares, and Gsell recorded numerous
worked stones, including csepitals and column shafts,
together with stones”decorated with Christian and DBerber
motifs, Since the early 20th century the ruins have
- been destrdyéd, and a small native village now occuples
the site of the Roman settlement. In 1959 a capiltal and
the fragment of an octagonal column decorated with Berber
and Christian motifs were discovered at Kherba des Aouie

ssat‘l

The Inscriptions from Kherba des Aouissat.

No inscriptions from Kherba des Aouissat are includ-
ed in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum., - In 1899 a
Christian torbstone set up in AD 459 was discovered there.
An inscription from Kherba des Aouissat was published in
1900 and a second in 1908, They are both Christian tombe
stones; the first was set up in AD L62 - L1.673 and the
~ second in AD uoo.“» In 1953%, Cadenat published four in-
seriptions from Kherba des Aouissat; the first records
the construction of gates and ramparts by order of a certain
Maximianus in AD 3463 the second is an undated but Christe
ian tombstone; and the third and fourth are also Christian
tombetones set up in AD 429 and AD LO7 - LL6 resPectively.5

2

There is very little evidence with which to reconstruct
the history of the Roman centre at Kherba des Aouissat. It
was situated either on, or close to, the Severan frontier,
but we know nothing sbout the origing of the settlement.
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In the lth century there must have been a considerable:
civilian population there, and an inscription records
that in AD 346 the town was protected by'ramparts,'by
order of Maximianus. In the text of the inscription
the letters P.P, follow the name Maximianus and appear
to be the abbreviation for a title. Salama6 has

. suggested that Maximianus was the p(rae) plositus),
i.e. the chief officisl of the town or a local worthy.
On th@ other hand, the letters P.P. may be an sbbreviation
for plrae) plositi) [limitiéj in which case Maximianus
would have been the officer in chavge of one of the

Prontier sectors of the province.

There was a Christisn community at Kherba des Aoui«
asat in the early 5th century although Christianity no
doubt reached the area at a much earlier date. The town
continued to be oceupied at least until the late 5th
century.

1. Laasus.,J.,'L'Aréhéoldgie Algérienne en 1959', L.A.E.
Vol.8., 1960, ps 64

5, Derrien, 'Inscriptions inédites de la Maurédtanie Cesw-
arienne!, B.d'0s, 1899, p. L97.

%s Derrien, 'Inscriptions ingdites de la Maurétanis Cege
ari@nﬂe, ,....E...‘.Q"O" 19009 Pe 172,

I.L. 'BQAQC:, 19@8; - D& 201,

P

5, Cadenat,P., 'Inscriptions latines de la Region de
Tiaret] 'LeAdB.,Volal, 1953, ppe 169 = 172.

6, Salama,P., 'A propos d'une inscription maureétanienne
de 346 apres J-C'y LsAJH., Vol2,. 195l, Bpe 213 - 217.

7. An inseription from Volubilis in Mauretania Tingitana,
dated to 4D 655, records that Julius vice~praepositus

was second-in-command of the defences of the town (Carcopino,
J., Le Maroc Antioue, 7th edition, Paris, Gallimerd, 19438,

p+29%
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49. . Djebel Guedale (or Guedal).,

In 1960 Lassus reported that two inscriptions
had been found near a French army outpost in the
Djebel Guedale, ! The first inscription is a tomb=-
gtone of Aurelius Tesilasen and from the style of
the letters it appears to be 6th century in date. .
The second is an undated tombstone, somewhat defaced,
although the name Iulia Venusia is still visible.

She may be either the deceased or the person setting
up the inscription, '

-The two inscriptions do not appear to have been
displaced, and probably mark the site of either a farm
or a small settlement which was certainly occupied at
2 late date (probebly as late as the 6th century.)

1 LassusyJd., ’L’Archéologie Algérienne en 19597,
IIQAQE';Q Vol 89 19609 PPe 9 - 10.
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50, Les Sousma de Mecherasfa.

The ruins known as Les Souama de Mecherasfa are
situated some Lt kilometres to the west of the village
of Mecherasfa, on a spur sbove the Oued Mina, The site
is naturally protected to the north and east by the steep
slope of the land down to the Oued Mina, which encloses
the spur on three sides.

According to de la Blanchere who visited Les Souama
in 1883, "Les ruines couvrent un grand espace. 1 Toute
1la pente du promontoire et le plateau gqul le surmonte
sont enfermés dans 1'enceinte extérieure et couverts des
debris des naisons, Celles~ci, comme partout dans la
contree, etaient faites de mo€llons; aucune trace de
briques, nl de tuiles, ni de matériaux précieux, ni 4'objets
d'arte Le seul  reste d'ornementation qui apparaisse est
une rosace, de style des bas-temps, sur une plerre qui
para@t venir d'un tombeau, Les fragments de vases ne
sont pas rares; c'est de la poterie romaine et berbere de
qualité'commune, sang rien de particulier. Les maisons,
petites et serrees, comme dans les autres villes du pays,
etaient groupees en quartiers separes par des murs; clest
une disposition ordinaire . . Tes pierres des murs, super-
posees a sec n'ont ete renversées par personne depuis
1'abandon de ces lieux, D! ailleurs, pas une plerre de
taille, sauf l'exception qu'on verra plus loin," |

The southern slopes of the spur were included within
the main enclosure, but separated from the rest of the
settlement by a wall, De la Blanchere described in some
dgtail the constructions which covered the whole of this
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ares . He wrote: "Elles sont formees de deux murs

et a'un toit. Le fond de la chambre ainsi obienue

est la paroi méme du rocher, taillée verticalement

par la nature. Tpes souvent celle-cl a eu besoin

a' otre aidee: on l'a fait en cassant simplement les
saillies des couches de plerre. Presque sang aucune
exception, le monument est en demi-sous-sol, une paptie
des murs lateraux etant formee par la roche meme et
1'emplacement de la piéoe creusé pour supprimer la
pente et obtenir un plan horizontal. A peu pPres
toutes les constructions sont dépourvues de fagade et
gemblent n'en avolr jamais eu. Leurs dimensions
n'excedent guere 5 ou 6 metres, en aucum Sens; 11 est
rare qu'on y tienne debout; 1l'aspect général est celul
d'sutant de grottes artificielles."” 5  fhere were at
least a hundred of these constructibns which de la
Blanchere believed to be tombs. The largest was con-
structed of excellent dressed stones, and on two stones
built into the facade he recognised the outlines of &
lamp, a dove, and a fish'in relief. The discovery of
these essentially Christian symbols suggested to de la
Blanchére that this area was a Christian cemetery.

Another much larger cemetery containing small Berber
dolmens was situated on the right bank of the Oued Mina,
opposite Les Souamas

The Inscriptions from Les Souamas

8ix inscriptions discovered among the ruins are
included in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum ( 21551 =
21556).,  The inscriptions C.I.L. 21551 records that in
AD LO8 a chapel was constructed at Les Douama by Umbius
Pelix, who has the title of maglster; C.l.L. 21552,
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- 21553 and 21555 are Christian tombetones dated to

AD 397, UL3L, and L0OS vespectively; OCI.L. 21554 is an
undated but Christian towbstone; and C.I,Ls 21556 is
only a fragment. In 1953 Cadenat publighed three
inscriptions'found at Les Sauama.” The first is an
undsted tombstone which he dates to the early 5th
centurys the second appears to be the fragment of a
tonbstone; and the third is a Christian inscribtion
but only a few letters can be identified. The last
two inscriptions were discovered in the cemetery to
the gsouth of the settlement, Two tombastones without
inscriﬁtions but decorated with Christian symbols have
also been dlscovered there.5 "

What do the ruinsg at Les Souana represent?
According to de la Blanchére they are the ruins of an
important ﬁown occupled from pre-~Roman times - when
this area was part of the Kingdonm of Mauretania - to
the Christian period, The two cemeteries, Berber
and Christian, correspond to the two periods of its
nistory.. Since de la Blanchere put forwsrd his
theory the inscriptions dlscovered at Leg Souama confirm
that the gettlement was occuplied by a Romanised and
Chiristian populationiin the Lth and'Sth centuriess On
the inscription C,I.L. 21551 Unbiuvs Felixz has the title
of magister. According to Courtois this title implies
that Unbius Felix was the chief official of the settle-
ment which nay even have had a Roman form of nupicipal
government,
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Recent discoveries cagst no new light on the

sarlier occupation of Lesg Souama, Howevér, the
siting of the ettlcmont on @ soup proteéted on three
sldes by steep chpﬁﬁ and the Oued Mina, and the
enclogure wall and houses built of unworked stone withe
out the use of mortar, are rceminiscent of the ruins of
Berber habitations found throughout the ﬁtlau Tabulaires
A number of Berber scihtlements in the Atlas Tabuléires
were influenced by Rome, Roman pottery has been dig-
covered at some sites, and Roman influences on bullding
teehniques are apparent at others. But only one site
nas prodvced Tragments of a Roman inscription, It is
unfortunate that de la Blanchére did not meke a plan of
the ruins, as this would have been of congliderable value
for comparison.

The ruins ot Les Souana should be bigh on the list
of priorities for further investigation, and the aim
should be to detﬂmmiﬁc whether or not the site does
represent a Berber settlement profoundly influenced by
Roman civilisation,

1. Seven hectares accordlng to Demacpht, (Demaeght,
"Notes ~ (dographigues, Archéologiques et
Higstorliques concernant la partie de la Mauretanie
Césarienne correspondant & la Province d' Oran',
Bed'0,, Vol,7, 1887, D LNQ.

2+ de la B]qachewu,R., Voya e d'tude dans une partie
de 1a MQU?@bﬁﬂlP Gesariennp, extrait des Archives
des MlSSlonq Beientificues et Litteralres,
Troisieme 8drie, Vol,10, 1883, p., 112,

3, de la Blanchere,R., 1883, idem.y pp. 112 - 113,
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Ly Cadenat,P,, 'Inscriptions latines de la Réglon de
‘i‘iare’u‘,' LeAelley, Volsl, 1953, p. 179.

5« Cadenat,Vs, 'Vestigés paleo-chrétiens dans la region
de Tiaret', L.AJl., Vol.Hy 1957, pe 86.

6e Courtois,Cs, Les Vandales et L'Afriaguey. Paris, 1955,
Ps+89, note 3,
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51l Ailn Sarb,

In 1903 Derrien discovered an inscription at Bidi
Alil ben Amarl, on the road from Tiaret to Mecherasfa,
near Ain Sarb. The text is given below:

ot

S DEABVSQUE D
RO SALVIE  ATQ
VE T COLVMIT
aTiC / C /  ///SANC
TISS I / // M

IULI  PHIILI P PIL FELIL
CIS INVICTLI AVG BT
M. IULI PI // ILIPPINORI
ClissiMI CAKS AVG BTH
CAT  OTACILIAK 81

verae AVE CONIVGIS

I /777

/// FEC

The inscriptlon is incomnlete but 1t appesrs to he a
dedication nmade between the yvears AD 2L - 249,

In 195. Cadenat, the director of the 16th srcheeo-

logical divislon (Tiaret), reported that Domeck, a

armer, had discovered the ruing of a smell villa of

the late Roman period some distance to the west of 8idi
All ben Amar.2 The villa was bullt on a small hillock
and it had a commanding view of +the surrouanding country-
side, The outline of an interior courtyard could be
seen marked by lines of large stone blocks which were the
foundations of a colonnade, Seven column bases were
still in place, and Domeck has discovered the shaft of s
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column, a capital, the fragments of a cornice, and a
small amount of painted pPlasters Rainwater draining
into the couvtyard was able to escape through a hole in
the centre, into a small underground canal, Four rooms
to the west of thls courtyard or peristyle were excaVaﬁed
by Cadenat in 19bbo No detalls of the excavation have
been published., In 19%9 Cadenat reported that the walls
excavated in 1955 had been destroyed although the blocks I
of the peristyle and the column bases were still in place.
This was still the situation when the site was visited in
1968,

In 1953 Cadenat discovered a capital (49 - 50 cms.
high and 42 cms. wide) near Sidi All ben Amaruﬁ The
capltal was decorated with a 'chrisme' and the letters

‘D*N*S had been engraved on it, At least three more
capitals decorated with Christian motifs were found in
the same place, Cadenat believes that these stones
belong to a Christian building.6

The discoveries made near Ain Sarb are interesting
but difficult to interpret and there appesrs to be
1ittle or no connection between them.

1, The name of the person or persons making the déd1~

cation set up between AD 24l - 249 has been defaced; it
could have been made elther by a mllltdry unit or by an

individual,

2 We do not know when the villa was built or how long

it was occupied. Cadenat believes that it was constructed
during the late Roman periods. On the other hand, the
villa appears to have been unprotected, and is very
different from the large fortified villas fusther north,
which were built in the early Lth century. It is there-
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fore possible that the villa at Aln Sarp was built at
an earlier date.

e The capitals decorated with Christien motifs
discovered by Cadenat in 1953% must héve formed part

of a building of the Christian pericd, snd it is
possible that this building and the villa were contemp~
orary. But as Cadenat can find no trace of the
biilding we do not know whether it stood alone or in a
settlement,

Farther investigsotionsin this srea might cast new
light on these problems. ’

ls Derrien, 'Inscription de Sidi Ali', Be@'0., 1903,
. pI)tlﬁS had 139.

« Leglay,Ms, 'L'Archdologie Algérienne en 1954', L.A.R.,
VOng)g 19559 }Qo 18*70

%« Lassus,J,, 'L'Archéologie Algerienne en 1955', R.A,,
1957, p. 188,

lie Lassus,J,, 'L'Arehéologie Algdrienne en 1959, LuAJB.,
1960, p, 10.

He The exact location is not given.

. Cadenat,’,, '"Vestiges paléb»chrétieﬂs dang la région
de Ti&:ﬁ’e’tt, }.L‘!..:/L:.ﬁ:,ﬂ V01b55 19579 De 87¢



143

52¢ Ti&x‘et«

The ruins of a Roman e@ttiem@nt were still visible
vhen the Freneh army arrived st Tiavret in the onrly
19th century, The Roman ruains oceupied a plateau
(1050 « 1100 metres), situnted at the southern cdge of
the Djebel Guezoul, The site 1s naturally protected to
the west and south-east by the steep slope of the land,
but there is little natural vrotectlon to the north,
north-cast and south, where the land slopes morve gently.
From this site theve ig a comnanding view south across
the Hlgh rlain of Sersou as far as the Djsbel Wador,
The col de Guertoufa to the north provides an easy route-
way through the Djebel Guezoul, which rises to ovep 1200
Jmetrea, and forms an important watershed betwaen the
streams flowing north o +the Oucd Tiguiguest and south to
the Oueds HMins and Nahr Ouassel,

The military authorities made a plan of the ruins
which was »ublished by ¥abre in 1900.1 This reoveals
the exlstence of three enclosures (Flga52), The smallest
enclogsure (D) was rectengular in shope (95 % L5 metrés)
end covered an ares of under half a heetave, It was
protecited by mounre bastions at the angles ond the gate-
WEaE The second enclosure (C)‘wag mere lrregulsr in
shope and covered an ares of 1% hectares, They were
both surrounded by the third and largest enclosure (B)
which formed an irreguler rectangle L3%0 metres from north
to south, and 225 uetres from esst Lo west, A nunber of
1solated bulldings were indlceted to the south of the
third enclosure.
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This plan is our only record of the ruing, in
1842 the French army constructed a fort at Tiaret
comnletely destroying the northern half of the ruins
(Figa32), The French colonists, who came to Tiaret
soon after the fort was built, used dressed stones from
the remaining ruins to build their houses. In a short
tine, all trsce of the Koman ruing had disappeared, and
the modern town of Tiaret now extends over the site of
the Roman settlement, |

In 1929 workmen, laying the foundstions of a housé
at Tiaret, discovered three stone corbels decorated with
Christian and Berber motifs, two undecorated pilasters,
and a2 stone seat of simple design, without decoration,
The discovery wes made outside, but close to, the rampart
of the second enclosure (C)s Cadenat suggests that this
was the site of & Christian church.2

The Inscrintions from THavet.

Eleven inscriptions Trom Tiasret are included in
the Gorpus Inscriptionum Latinarum (9727 - G735, 21543 -

L) Ia 190L Derricen published an inscription dis-
covered at Tisret; it is a dedication made by

[~~m{] Vervs, procurator of the two Augusti.j Pabre
snd de Pachtere puclished an inscription from Tiaret in
1912;“ it is an undated dedication made by an gedile.

Whaot do we know about the historv of the Roman

gettlement at Tisret?

Lle In 1904 Dervien published & dedication made by
[~~~~] Verus, procurator of the two Augustel, discovered
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at Tiaret.” On the basls of this inscription,
which he dates to AD 211, Salama maintaing that a
fort was established at Tiaret, at the beginning of
the 3rd century, as one of the permanent camps on
the Severan frontier.6 But this inscription is insuf-
ficient evidence on which to base such a theory, and,
although it isvpossible, it is by no means certain
that the two emperors referred to are Caracalla and
Getas. The Romans may have recognised the strategic
value of this site, from which there is a commanding
view south across the vast High Plain of Sersou,

but at the moment there is no evidence of a military
camp at Tiaret.

2e “Although the origins of the Roman settlement at
Tiaret 7 remain obscure, there was a civilian population
living there in the late 2nd century. 8 No dated
civilian inscriptions of the 3rd century and only one
inscription of the Lth century & have been discovered,
but there must have been a considerable civilian.
population at Tiaret during this period. The inscrip-
tion A.E. 1912,156 proves that the settlement achieved
the rank of a chartered towny it is undated but looks
early rather than late. The town grew to cover an

area of over 10 hectares, and was protected by a wall,.
The main ramparts have projecting bastions which
suggest that these defences were constructed after AD 300.

3« ©~ The town continued to be occupied throughout the 5th
century,lo but we know very little about its lster history.
The two smaller enclosures ( C and D ) look like late
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citadels, At some time during the Later Fm-ire it may
hove become impossible to defend the whole settlement
agalnst atlack, so that a citadel was built to which the
townspeople could withdraw in time of danger. On the
other hand, the small enclosures may represent two
stages in the decline of the town, snd an abtempt to

protect those aress that hafdl not been abandoned,

e There was a Christian community at Tiaret in the
Lth and 5th centuries. CoI Ly 9728 is a Christian
inscription of the Uth century; C.I.L. 9731 is the tombw
stone of a priest, Bonifatius, who died in AD 46l; and.
CoT.Le 9735 and 21543 are Christian tombstones set up in
AD L71 and A?G respectively. - The stones decorated with
Christian symbols discovered at Tiaret in 1929 may mark
the site of a Christian ghurch, 1l

5.  The inscription C.I.L. 2154k was discovered three
kilometres to the north of Tiaret, built into the wall
off a farmhouse.lz It 1s a Christian tonmbstone set up
in AD 509, and may have been transported from the Roman
ruing at Tiaret. Howover, if it was found close to the

house, it may mark the site of a Roman farm or hamlets

1. IFabre,S., 'Wote sur la ville romoine de Tiaret!,
B,d'0.,1900, p. L7.

2, Cadenat,P., 'Vestiges palédo-chrétiens dans ls region
de Tiaret', L.A.B., Vol.5, 1957, pp. 87 « 90.

5«  Dervien, "Découverte Epigraphique a Tiaret',
Vol. 2L, 190k, p.15.

L. Pabre,S., snd de Pachtere, FuG,, '"Houvelle inscription

- de Tiaret,' Bsd'0., 1912, pp. 547 = 8. = AR,
1912,156,

B.d,O: L]
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11l.
12,
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Derrien, 1904, idem., p. 15,

Solana, ié, "Wouveaux témoipnages de 1'osuvre des
Séveres dans la Maurcbanie Cesarienne', (Part 2)
L.AWT., Vol.3, 1955, p. 359 note 124.

We do not know the Roman nane Eor the settlement at
Tiaret,

The inscription C.L.L. 9727 is a tombstone set up by
8 husband and wife in memory of their infant
daughter and, although undated, it appears to be
of the late 2nd rather than the 3rd century.

C.I.%L. 9728,
Cololi. 9731, 9732, 973L, 9735, 21543,
Oadenat,l)e 9 19579 idem, s P 89,

Canal, J., '"Tfiaret - Monographie Ancienne et Moderne,'
J» Oax VOl.ZO, 19005 }')Q ).!..
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CONORS BREUCORUM,

93]
A
-

The Romon euins st Henchir Soulk are situvated on
the left bank of the Ouved el Abd, a short distance to

o

the gouth of Tagremaret. The Oued el Abd,emerges from
the Djebel Touskiret (800 metres) two kilometres to the
gsouth of Henchir Souik, flows north across the small
vlain of Tagremoret, and then crosses the'northern part
of the Monts de Szida before jolning the Oued lUina near
Uzés-le~Duc, To the east of Henchir Soulk a broad
corridor between the Monts de Frenda and the Djebels
Touskiret and Bl Gada leads to Tiaret, and the western
Sersou, The velleys of the Oued HMechria and the Oued
el Xebir provide an easy route-way through the western
Monte de Saida to the High Plains of Mascars and Sidi bel
Abbeés. ' |

When de la Blanchere visited Henchir Souik in 1883
the Roman ruins had already heen used as a guarry by a
French colonist from Tagremaret, and no part of the
ruins was standing above ground level, e was gble to
identify the outlines of a rectangular enclosure (145
metres from east to west, and 90 metres from north to

i

south) with a round tower 4,80 m. in dismeter ot each

angle (fig.33), There were two gateways 6 metres wide

in the east wall. The walls of the enclosure, which were
between 1,95 n. and 2 m, in thickness, were constructed of
large querry stones and mortar, and faced with good Roman
ashlar. Several tombstones had bheen used in the facing
of the pampart. To the west of the enclosure de la,
Blanchere recogﬁised traces of a number of bulldings.
There was a cemetery near the north-west angle of the en-
closuve¢1 '
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The Inscriptions fron Henchir Souik,

Eleven inscriptions discovered. at Henchir Soulk
are included in the Corouvg Inscriptionun Latinarum
(21559 - 21566, 22598 - 22600),  In 1908 Fort
recorded the discovery of a milestone of the reign

of Caracalla near Hartimprey, between Henchir Souik and

; : . w2 A w N . '
Aloun 8biba. agnat in 1919 published the texts of
three milestones found between Henchir Souik and Ala

Miliariqij the precise place of discovery was not
given, The three milestones were set up to mark the

7th mile from Henchir Souik to Ala Miliaria snd are

dated to AD 201, 212 and 222 - 235 pespectively.
Albertinih, who was convinced that the Roman road from
Henchir Boulk te Ala Miliaria passed by Ain Balloul and
the valley of the Qued WMimoun, suggested that the
wilestones were probably found a little to the east of
Atlas 2 map‘32, site 130, between Henchir Souvik and Aln
Balloul,. This theory was disproved when Gauthier

rediscovered the three milestones & kilonmetres to the
north-west of the site suggested by Albertini, and two
kilometres to the south~east of the Zaoula de 8idi
Boudall, in the narrow valley which separates the Makrnez
from the northern spur of the Djebel Tguta,6 The
dbtance from the ruins st Henchir Souik was exsctly seven
Roman miles. Géﬁthier slso discovered two new milestones
which oripginally came Trom the same place, The Tirst was
completely defaced and only two lines of +the second in-
A seription were visible: .

SPR

A KAPUTDJRB@[
This appears to represent a fourth milestone

msrk the 7th mile from Henchir Souwik,’

set up to
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1, - The Roman name for the centre at Henchir Souik was

Cohors BreucorumB but it was aleo known as Kagutuﬁbe;g
The latter may represent the Derber name for this
locality before the Roman mililtary occupation, When
the area came under Roman rule the name continued to be
sed although the Homon centre also became known by the
neme of the military unit stotioned there - the cohors

24 One of the milestones discovered in 1919 and seb up

to nmark the 7th mile from Cohors Breucorum to Ala Miliaria

i dated to AD 201.7°  This suggests that a fort was

established ot Cohors Breucorum, as part of the reorganiw-

cation of the defences of the province by Beptimius

Severus at the beginning of the 3rd century. The fort
was linked by the nova practentura to Ala Miliariall in
the west and Aloun S’bi’bal2
appears to have besen maintained throughout the 3rd century.13

in the east. Thig road

e Phe Pirst military unit stationed at Henchir Souik

_ - 1h . s .
vias the cohors Breucorunm b and it continued to occupy the

fort throughoutl the first half of the 3rd century‘15

e The enclosure described by de la Blanchere (fig.EB)
mist represent the fort built to house the cohors
Breucorun.  The dimensions of the fort are 1L5 x 90 metres,
sn area of 1.5 hectares. '

56 Cel.L, 2156l is the only civilian inscription from
Uohors Breucorum, and it is undated. There is no evidence
on the ground that a civil'aettlement grew up outside the
forts De la Blanchére found traces of only a few isolated
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ﬁuildings beyond the west wall of the fort. Desplte
this negative evidence, the presence of 500 troops
recelving regular pay must heve sttracted soue
elvilians to Cohors Breoucorum, but we do not know
whether the civilian population remained when the unit
was withdrawn.

6, No inscription later than the %rd century hes been
discovered at Gahers‘ﬁreuccrum, and the later history
of the site is unknown. '

Te The rulng of a large number of lsolsted farms are
indicated by de la Blanchére in the area around Cohors
Breugorum and particularly along the volley of the

Oued el Abd.16 Alibert, the first French colonist to
settle in the valley, c¢ounted more than a hundred Pfarns
but thelr exact position was not calculated, and it is
impossible to mark them on o map, Bach Parn possessed
a large cistern and & round tower 6 - 7 metres in dige
meter, which was probably used as a granary. The
ciasterns and towers W@re'huilt of dressed stone which
suggests that the farms were occupied during the Roman
period, However, we do not know when they were first
established or now long they were occupied.

1, de la Blanchér&,ﬁ., Voyage d'Etude dans une partie
de la Maurétanie Césarienne - extrait des
Archives des Misslons Sciemtifinuee et Litter-
aires, Troisieme Serie, Vol.10, Porig, 1883,
o PP 69“‘70:
2. Fort, 'Nateg pour servir a la restitution de la
frontiere romaine au sud de la Mauretanie Cegapy-
1@nn€<p B.A.G‘,, 19083 De 260,
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Cagnat, RQ’ B.A'C., 1919’ PP CCXIV -~ CCXV,

Albertini, E.,, 'La route-frontiere de la Maurétanie
Césarienne entre Boghar et Lalla Maghnia',
Bbd'O., 1928, p.38-

Gsell, S., Atlas Archéologique de 1'Algérie, Parii, L
gll.

Gauthier, R,, 'Contribution & 1'étude tracé de la route
frontiere de la Maurétanie Cesarienne', R.A., 1923,
Pe 530

Gauthier, Rsy 1933, idem., p.l55.

84CeIoLe 21560, 21561, 22598, 22599, B.A.C., 1919

9.
10.
11.

12,
13,

1.

15.

16,

e

pPpe CCXIV - V nos. 1 ~ 3.
CoIeL. 22600 and Gauthier, R., 1933, idem., p.455.
Cagnat, Re, 1919, idem., p. CCXIV no I.
Cagnit, Rey 1919, idem., pp. CCXIV -~ V, nos.,

Gauthier;'R., 1933’ idemcg Pe u550
C.I.L. 22598, 22599, 22600,

ColeLs 22599 records 5 miles from Cohors Breucorum
to Aioun Sbiba, and is dated to AD 283 ~ 28I.

CaloLloa 21560 &hd CeT Lo 215610

C.I.L. 21560 is the tombstone of a decurion of the
cohors Breucorum who died in AD 243,

de la Blanchére, R,, 1883, idems; p.69,
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5l Martimprey.

In 1955 Salama published the text of an inscrip-
tion discovered three kilometres from Martimprey, 1
between the Roman centres of Aioun Sbiba and Cohors
Breucorum,. It records building work carried out
during the reign of Caracalla, in either AD 212 or 213,
It is possible that the inscription refers to the |
reconstruction of a fort or perhaps a watch-tower,

1. Salama, P.,'Nouveaux temoignages de l'oeuvre des
beveres dans la Maurétanie Cé&sarienne', (Part 2)
CLeATe, Voli3, 1955, p. 329.
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55, Aloun Sbilba.

57 _ Ain,Gregé.

56, Taugagzoutis

Aloun Sbiba is situated seven kilometres to the
southweast of PFrenda, at the eastern end of a broad
corridor between the Monts de Frenda and the Djebels
Touskiret and El Gada, and at the entrance to the
vast High Plain of Sersou. The ruins occupy a broad
plateau which rises to a height‘of 1,200 metres. The
site is naturally protected to the south by the steep
glope of the plateau down to the Ouved Draham but there
is 1little natural protection to the north and west
where the land slopes gently to the Oued Sbiba. The
platean becomes wider towards the east and there is a
very gentle slope to the Oued el Rhezlia.

Fort visited the ruins in 1908. He described an
irregular enclosure 3400 metres from east to west, and
1400 metres from north to south (fig.34 D).  The
ramparts had a double revetment cut at intervals by
large worked stones. Inside the vast enclosed ares he
found traces of a second enclosure (fig. 34 E) which
formed a rectangle 500 x 3L0O metres. There was a square
or forum at the centre of the smaller enclosure, and from
this point roads led west towards Taugazouth, south to-
wards the edge of the plateaun, and south~east towards Ain
Draham.l

A number of springs, which rise along the northern
edge of the plateau, were included within the enclosed
area at Aloun Sbiba (fig. 35)y and at least four were
captured to provide o regular water-supply for the
settlement . Three cisterns, constructed outside the
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main enclosure, supplied a bath-house where Fort carrled.
out a series of excavations (fig.36)s He was able to
produce a detalled plan of this building, (flg. )7)o

Fort 1dent1fied several small forts around the
settlement at Aioun Sbiba (fig. 38), and described two of
them in details The 'fortress' of Taugazouth (56), a
short distance to the west of Aioun Sbiba, was built on
a spur above the Oued el That, at s height of 1200 metres
(fig; 39), The main enclosure, 90 metres square, was
constructed of large worked stones fixed together with
iron c¢ramps. Within the enclosed area there was a
courtyard (LO metres sguare). Fort found traces of a
range of rooms and a narrow goteway on the east side of
the courtyard, and the remains of a rectangular tower at
the north-west angle. There were trades of a second
enclosure between the main rampart and the central court-
yard. The fort at Ain Grega, (57) to the south, was
situated on a plateau above the left bank of the Oued
Draham, at a height of 1218 metres. The ramparts,
built of excellent dressed stone, Tormed a gguare
(15 me x 15 ms ) flanked by a round tower at each angle
(Pige. LO).

In the course of his investigations at Aioun Sbiba
and Taugazouth, Fort discovered the following objects:
From Aln Sbiba:

1 An inscribed stone, unfortunately defaced, on
which only the letters AVGVSTA are visible.

iil. A lamp marked with the letters FVLLAENI.

iii. Roman pottery

ive Coloured glass

Ve Two large amphorae
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vie Three capitals and a column base.

vii. Two silver coins of Juba II, King of Mauretania,
viii. Two bronze voins.

ix. A coppervooin of ttordian III

Xe Several coins of the Arab period,

'pom Taugazouth.

i, A number of Roman corn mills (mola manuvaria).

ii, Part of an earthenware Jar bearing the inscription
J LER

iii. Fragment of fine Roman pottery.

ive Two column shafts and two crudely worked column
bases, L;.

Since Fort carried out his researches at Aloun Sbiba,
this extensive site has been neglected by the archaeologists.
The ruins have been used as a quarry and colonists from a
nearby farm cleared part of the site for cultivation., At
the present time (1968) there are few remains of the
settlement still vigible.

" The Inseriptions from Aloun Sbiba.

Only two inscriptions from Aioun Sbiba are included
in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum, (21557 = 8). )
Three inscriptions were discovered at Taugagouth in 1908:b
two are undated tombstones set up by a decurion and the
third inscription is the tombstone of a trooper who had
served for 13 years, and who died at the age of 35 years,
In the same year, Fgrt recorded the discovery of a mile-
stone of the reign of Caracalla near Martimprey, between
Aioun Sbiba and Cohors Breucorum to the west.6 In 1953
Cadenat published two inscriptions from Aioun Sbfba,7
The Pirst is only a fragment, recording the name of Sep=-

timius Severus and his sons (AD 198 - 209); the second
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inscriptién is also incomplete and records the

career of an officer in the Roman army who may have
been a native of Aloun Sbiba,. The inscription can be
dated to between AD 260 - 268, Balama published three
Inscriptions from Aioun Sbiba in 19553 two are mile-
stones, recording one mile from CEN., and set up in

AD 239 and AD 244 - 249 8 respectively; and the third
is an inscription in honour of Caracalla dated to
between AD 213 and 217 2, In the same year (1955)
Leglay reported that two more inscriptions had been
discovered at Aioun Sbiba lO. The first is only a
fragment but records the name of the procurator P.
Sallustius Sempronius Viector and can therefore be dated
to AD 235+/~3 the second is an undated Christian in-
scription which may be donatist,

Vihat do we know of the history of the settlement?

1; -~ There is some evidence to suggest that a military
unit was stationed at Aioun Shiba during the 3rd century.
Salama has published an inscription recording reconstruc-
tions carried out at Aioun Sbiba between AD 213 and 217
for'the alavParthorum.ll Three inscriptions, unfort—

unately undated but probably of the 3rd century, name a
12

duplicarius, a decurion, and an gques. These men may
have been members of the ala Parthorum but it is possible
that this was not the only unit stationed at Aioun Sbiba

during the 3rd century.

2 A military unit may have been stationed at Aloun
Sblba as part of the reorganisation of the defences of
Mauretania Caesariensis by Septimius Severus at the begin-
ning of the %rd century. Although the exact trace of the
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Severan limes between Columnata and Cohors Breucorumn
is uncertain, it certainly passed through or close by
Aioun Sbiba. Furthermore, an inscription set up in

honour of Septimius Severus and his sons (AD 198 - 209)
’ 13

has been discovered among the ruins.

3 A Roman road, which must represent a section of
the nove practentura,linked Aioun Sbiba to Cohors Breu-
corum in the west.lu The two milestones discovered by
Salama were set up to0 mark the first mile along a road
which ran from Aioun Sbiba in an eanterly direetion.15
It is uncertain whether this rcad ran along the valley
of the Mina via Kherbet - bent - Sarah to Tiaret, or
whether it followed a more southerly route and linked
Aioun Sbiba to the fort at Temordjenect.

e The exact site of the fort which was built to

house the military unit is unknown., The fort at Ain
Grega is too small and the projecting bastions at each
angle indicote that it was constructed at a relatively
late date, ‘The ruins ai Taugazouth 4o not appear to
represent a military establishement, This implies that
the camp was constructed at Aloun Sbiba itself, although
there were no visible remains of it among the extensive
ruins there when Fort visited tne sité at the beginning
of the ZOth’century.

5 The ruins at Aioun Sbiba cover an ares of at least

476 hectares, and are too extensive to represent the

civil settlement that grew up around the fort, It seems
more probable that the ramparts described by Fort (fig.34 D)
were built to protect a.pre~Roman settlement, Thére is
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some evidence to support this theory. The walls
of the main ramparts do not have projecting bastions
which suggests that they were constructed at an early
date; coing of one of the Kings of Mauretania have‘been
discovered among the ruins; and at Iol-Caesarea, which
became the capital of the Roman province of Mauretsnia
Cacsarlensis, the city Walis enclosed an area of 370
hGCtaresl6 and were erected during the reipgn of Juba II.
Considering its size, the settlement at Aloun Sbiba may
have been a centre of some importance in the independent
Kingdonm of Maureﬁania,'but when the kingdom was annexed
by Rome it evidently did not attain the political impor-
tance of lol-Caecsarea.

6. If the settlement was still occupled at the beginning
of the %rd century AD the inhabitants may have been ex-
pelled by the Roman army when Aloun Sbiba was chosen as
the slte for a permanent camp on the new frontier, No
doubt some of the original inhabitants returned and
settled around the fort, together with the families of
soldliersserving in the garrison, It is possible that
enclosure B (figs 34), covering an avea cf 17 hectares,
represents the c¢ivil settlement that grew up around the
nilitary camp, and wes iiself protected by a wall.

T A Christlan inscription discovered at Aloun Sbibal7
proves that the Roman settlement continued to be occupied
during the Later Empire.

8, During the Roman period, aloun Sbhbiba was known as
18 This may not necessarily be the complete form of
the name, but an abbreviation.

Cene
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1. Fort,'Les Kuines Romaines 4'Ain Sbiba', B.d'O.,

1908, pp. 22 - 23,
2e¢ Fort, 1908, idem., pp. 23 - 24.
3« Fort, 1908, idem., pp. 26 ~ 27.
Le PFort, 1908, idem,, pps 31 32,
S5¢ FPort, 1908, idem., pps 30 - 31.

6. Fort, 'Notes pour servir a la restitution de la
frontiere romaine au Sud de la Mauretanie
Cesarienne', B,A.C., 1908, p. 268.

7« Cadenat,P., 'Inscriptions latines de la région de
Tiaret', L.A.B., Vol,1l, 1953, pp, 176 - 177.

8+ Salama,P,, 'Aloun Sbiba: Identification de la ville
romaine,' L,A.B., Vol.3, 1955, ppe 173 = 175,

9. BSalama,P,, 'Nouveaux témo;gnages de l'oeuvre des
Severes dans la Maurétanie Césarienne'’, (Part 2)
IJOA.EQ, VOJ.QBQ 1955’ pp' 3“3 - 5510

10, Leglay,M., 'L'Archéologle Algerienne en 195L', L.AJE.,
Vol. 3., 1955, p. 187, -

1l. Salama,P,, 'Nouveaux teémoignages de 1'oeuvre des
Severes dans la Maurétanie Cesarienne', (Part 2)
LQAQ,E.’ VOlaB, 1955, pp? 350 - 351‘

12. Tort, 'Les Ruines Romaines d'Ain Sbiba', B,d4'0., 1908,
pp. 30 - 31,
C.I L, 21558,

13« Cadenat,P., 1953, idem., p. 176.

e Fort,"Noteg pour servir ala restitution/de 1la
frontiere romaine au Sud de la Maurétanie
Cesarienne', B,A,C,, 1908, p, 268,

CoXeL, 22598, 22599, 22600,

15+ Salama,P., 'Ajoun Sbiba; Identification de la ville
romaine,” L,AJE,, Vol.3,, 1955, ppe. 173 - 175,

16, The built-up area covered only 100 hectares (Courtois,C, :
T.es Vandales et lAfrique, Paris, 1955, p. 108 note 1)
17. Leglay,M.y 1955, idem., p. 187,

18, Salama,P., 'Aioun Sbiba: Identification de la ville
romaine', L.A.E., Vol.3, 1955, pp, 173 - 175,
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58,  Ain Draham,

Fort made a plah of the koman ruins at Ain Drahat,
(fig.hl), Situsted at a helght of 1220 metres, the
ruins occupy a pluteau abave the left bank of the Oued
Drahamn. Near the northern edge of the plateau Fort
found traces of an.irregular enclosure (250 x 450 metres)
and the ruins of an unfortified 'settlement', covering
an area of 3% hectavss, a shorb dlstance to the south.l

With so 1ittle gvidence it is impossible to
determine what the ruins at Ain Draham represent.

There are traces of three isolated buildings between

Ain Draham and Aioun Sbiba. One of these sites has pro-
duced two sculptured capitals.2

1. Fort, 'Les Ruines Romaines d'Ain Sbiba' Bsd'O.,
19083 DD« 34 - BLH

2, Fort, 1908, idem., ps 3l
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59,  $idl Bou 7id,

There are Roman ruins at Sidi'bau Zid, six kilo=

metres to the north-east of Aloun Sbiba., Fort found
traces of a number of rectangular buildings, covering

ah area of over a hectare; and surrounded ity an

ifregular enclosure, 300 metres from east to west and

260 metres from north to south ~ a total area of almost

8 hectares, There was a narrow gateway in the east
wéll, and the remains of a rectangular tower at the
nbrth~west angle of this nnclosurel (figs L2)s The text
~of an inscription discovered among the ruins was pub=
lished by Fort:

¢ 1). MQ‘ S.
TITINIVS FVBCVS. VET. VIXIT.

[N AN IS BEE S A S BN B AU BERNE NN R R BN BB IR A A A

Tt is the tombstone of a veteran and, although undated,
is probably of the 3rd centur‘y.3 '

It has been. suggested that the ruins at Sidi bou Zid
which are situated near the Severan frontier, represent
a. large village occupied at least in part by veterans,
Unfortunately, there is no evidence to indicate when it
was established, or how long it continued to be occupled.

1. Fort, 'Les Ruines Romaines d'Ain Sbiba', Bs«d'0.,
1908, ppe 34 - 35,

2, Fort, 1908, idems, ps 35

3. Salama,Py, "Wouveaux temoignage de l'oeuvre: des
Severes dans la Maurétanie Cebarienne', (Part 2)
Lialle Eug VOlo,)p 19b5g P jBQa

lis Fort, 1908, idem., Ps 35



FlG 42

THE

ROMAN

RUINS

AT SIDI-BOU-ZID

MAIN ENCLOSURE

REMAINS OF RECTANGULAR W.C::U_ZOm
GATEWAY

TOWER

WALLS

SPRING

o 100 200

N ——————

METRES




163

6Q0s . Kherbet - bent = Sarah,

In the early 20th century there were still extensive
Roman ruins at Kherbet « bent ~ Sarah, situated on the
left bank of the Oued Tousnina near its confluence with
the Oued Mina." No description of the site has been

published, and all visible remains of the Roman centre
' have now disappeared; Only one inscription has been
discovered theres, It had been used in the constrﬂction'
of a building of a late period, and it is very badly
defaceds The text was made up of at least three lines
but only five letters of the second line have survivedg’

INI AV, _

The letters, which are carefully cut, are 5 - 6 cms, wide
and 8 « 9 cms. high. Lassus suggests that this is an
imperial inscription, set up in the 3rd cenﬁury.z
Several worked stones have been found at Kherbet - bent =
Sarah and on one stone there is the outline of a Javelin
or spesr in relief.- ' '

The Romen settlement at Kherbet - bent - Sarah was
situated either on or close to the Severan frontier, and
as Salama has suggested,” 1t was probebly both a military
and a civilian establishment. '

1. Fort, 'Notes pour servir a la restitution de la
frontiere romaineau Sud de ls Maurétanie Cesar—
ienne’, BchCbg l908, PO« 283 =~ 28l

2. Lassus,J., 'L'Archeologie Algeriennes en 1959', LA.E,
19609 pp1‘10 - 11,

3« Lassus,J., 1960, idem., p. 11,

e Salama,P., '"Aioun Sbiba: Identification de la ville
romaine', L.AnE‘, Vol.3, 1955, p« 175.
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61, Ben Beha.

In 1908 Fort visited the Romen ruinsg at Koudiat
8idi ben Beha, situated on the right bank of the OQued
Mina, a short distance to the southweast of Kherbet -
bent -~ Sarah, The ruins covered a considerable area
and, at the centre of the Roman site, there were traces
of a large building (55 x 30 m@tres).l

In the absence of a more detailed description, it
is difficult to determine what the ruins represent.
Like Xherbet ~ bent - Sarah the Roman centre at Ben Beha
mist have been situated on or close to the Severan ‘
frontier, Salama believes that this is the site of an
important fortress 2 but there appears to be little

evidence to support this theory.

1. Fort, 'Notes pour servir a la restitution de la
frontiere romaine au Sud de la Maurétanie
 Cesarienne', B.A.C., 1908, pp. 280 -~ 281,

2. Salama, P., 'Aloun Sbiba; Identification de la ville
I'()maine', LoAnE:-g VOlaB, 1955, Po 1751:
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Roman ruins are recorded at Temordjanet, five
‘kilometres to the south-east of Trezel, not far from
the head of the Oued SouSSelem.l Only one inscription
has been discovered among the ruins.2 It is &
dedication made by the Italian commanding officer of an
auxiliary unit for the health of himself end his fellow
goldiers, Though the inscription is undated, it can
confidently be aésigned to the first half of the 3rd
century. ‘ '

It seems reasonable to assume that there was a -
military camp at Temordjanet which was garrisoned
during the early 3rd century. Temord janet, which is
sltuated to the east of Aioun Sbiba, may have been an

outpost of' the Severan frontier, or actually on this
frontier line,

le Gsell,8,, Atlas Archéologique de 1'Algérie, Paris,
1911, Map 33, site no. 130,

2+ Delatre,A-L.,, 'Une inscription de Tiaret', B,d'O.,
VOl,Zl.L, 1902—{»’ :pt 2215
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6%, Farm Jean Cuzange,

In 1953 Cadenot published aa inscription dig-
covered during agricultural work near Faprm Jean.Cuzange,
at a place called R@djem bhen Rahél.l The stone,
which had been broken into five pieces, was inscribed
with the words meximus = istructor. It is certainly

of a late period, either the Lth or the 5th centuries.

I the stone was found in situ it may mark the
sgite of & small Roman settlement,

1. Cadenat,P., 'Inscriptions latines de la Region de
Ti&lretg ] IJ l.l\,cl.ﬁ:‘:-, VOlal, 195:{)g po 1780
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6li.  Aln Disbeha,

In 1953% Cadanaflpublishea the text of an undated
tombstone which he discovered bullt into the wall of
a stable at Farm Lleu, near Ain Djsbcha. The text of
the inscription is as follows:

D(is) M(anibus) S(acrum) Mesis puella an e
desponsa

Mitrati «se / «ss llis concupiscentie e /
‘ Gratie

consecuta ... / it exinde arcessita es /

No Roman ruine are indicated at Ain Djabcha, and it is

possible that the inscription has been transported from
one of the Roman sites in this area,

1¢ Cadenat,Ps, 'Inscriptions latines de la région de
~Tiaret', Lo‘AbEbg VOlal, 1953, P 17)-!-0
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6h. Tissensilt.

There were Roman ruins, covering an area of two
hectares, o short distance to the south~west of Tig-
gsemsllt, They were situated in the southern part of
the Vialar bssin which is enclosed on three sides by
sandstone hills, The hills to the north form the N
first spurs of the Ouarsenis mountains while those to
the south, rising to a height of 10@0 metres, separateH
the Vialar basin from the High Plain of Sersou.

Only one inscription has been discovered anong
the ruins (C.I.%. 21529), It is the tombstone of a
veteran, Ti. Clavdius Aguilus, sct up by Claudia
Fortunata his freed woman and heir. The inscription is
undated, but is manifestly let century in date. This
suggests that there was a civilian population living
at Tissemsilt as early as the 1lst century, even though
military occupation of this part of Hauretania Caesari-
ensis dates only from the beginning of the 3rd century.

No unit is named on the inscription, but Ti.
Claudius Aguilus was clearly an suxiliary. During the
lst century only former legionaries were settled in
large colonies, e.g. Opgdum Novum, snd even then they
wvere not compelled to continue living there; ~Fformep
auxiliaries, on the other hand, were free to settle any--

where, The settlement at Tissemsilt wes pronvably a
village1 and one cannot neglect the possibility that

this veteran was returning to the place where he had been
born, and from which he had first been recruited into the
Roman army.
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We Imow nothing gbout the later history of the
Roman settlement. It must have been situated on the
line of the Severan frontier, on the road linking the
military camps at Bourbaki and Columnate, and no doubt
continued to be occupied. Salamézhas suggested that
a military camp was established at Tissemsilt, as part
of the reorganisation of the defences of the province
by Septimius Severus, but there is no evidence to
support this theory.

1. The ruins cover approximately 2 hectares,

2 Salamd,P., "Nouveaux LomOLgnageq de 1l'ocuvre des
Séveres dans la Maurdtanie Cesarienne',(Part 2)
LoAE., Vol.3, 1955, p. 359, note 124,
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66, Aln el Aneb.

There are ruins of a Roman hamlet, surrounded by
& defensive wall, at Ain el Aneb, Ggell indicated
that silos had been found there.l Only one inscrip-
tion has been dlscovered among the ruins (C.I.L. 215%0).
It is a Christian towbstone set up in AD L68,

This site was clearly occupied in the late 5th
century, but we know nothing of its origins or how long
occupation continued there,

1. Gsell,S.,, Atlas Archéologique. de 1'Algérie, Paris,
1911, dap 23%, site no. 17,
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67 Bourbaki,

There were extenslve Roman ruing at the foot of
the Kef es Sedjra (1000 metres), a short distance to
the west of the village of Bourbaki., The numerous
remaing indicated by Gavault in’l@SB; - pamparts, a
bath-house, and fragments of columns and capitals =
have now almost all disappeared.g When Leschi
visited Bourbaki in 1950 he discovered several capitals
of the Chriﬁtian‘periom? Six inscriptions from Bour-

baki are included in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum
(21523 - 21528.).

Our knowledge of the history of the Roman settle-.
ment at Bouﬁbakiu is very fragnentary.
1. The inscription C.I.L. 21523 implies that there was
a fort at Bourbaki and that the Cohors 11 Sardorum 2 was
the unit stationed there between AD 238 and 2Lk, As

this Roman centre was situated on the line of the

Severan frontier, hetween Hiberna Alae Sebastenae and

Columnata, it is possible that a cemp was established
there as part of the reorganisation of the defences of
the province by Septimius Severus at the beginning of the
Ard century.

2e Bourbaki was linked by road to the forts at Columnata

to the west and Hiberna Alae Bebastenae to the east. The
roads appear to have been constructed esrly in the 3rd

century6 and they were certalnly maintained until the

late Lth century. Salama found four milestones of the

Z

Later Bmpire near bBourbaki. The milestone discovered

one kilometre to the south~west of Annseur el Abiod, and
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dated to AD 298 - 299 is one of a series set up to com-
memorate a vast programme of voad repalrs and reconstruce
tions carried out in Mauretania Caesariensis after the
Berber insurrections of AD 289 - 298, The milestone
set up during the reign of the Imperor Julian proves

that imperial authority was still effective in this area
as late as the second half of the Lth centu?y.

-

P The Roman ruins at Boufbaki covered a considersble
area and must represent not only the fort bul also the
civil settlement that gfew up around 1t. We know of one
veteran who settled down with his family a2t Bourbaki.
The man's unit is not named but Lt is most probable that
he served in one of the units stationed at Bourbaki.
There were no doubt other soldiers stationed at Bourbaki
who went to live in the viecus when their period of
gervice in the Roman army had been completedQ The town
continued to be occupied during the period of the Later
Empir@og

b On all the hill slopes around Bourbaki, Gavault
noted parallel lines of rough, unworked stones; some

of these lines were continuous, others were made up of a
gseries of small heaps of stenes.lo They all followed the
direction of slope, extending from the summlts to the
‘lowlandn. These remains rescmble the 'technigue des
meskats! which has survived in parts of southern Tunisia
t0 the present day, but which has its origins in the

early higstorical period. Southern Tunisia is a semi=
arid reglon where there is insufficlent rainfall for the
cultivation of cereals and tree crops. Parallel lines of
stones are therefore arranged down the bare slopes of the
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low hills so that rain water has little chance to
infiltrate but is channclled from the higher parts of

the hills and concentrated in o part of the lowland,

thus providing ade@uate water for cereals and tree‘érops.
This technique sppears to have been widespread in the
semi-srid parts of the eastern Maghreb during the early
historical period, and traces have also survived in
Cyrenaica, It is therefore particularly interesting to
find what mppears to be an example of this technique
further west, in the southern Massif de 1'Ouarsenis.
Although the Ouarsenis mountains are generally regarded

as part of the Tell, the southern slopes of the last spurs
which overlook the interior ligh Plains, only receive an
average annual rainfall of LOC mm. As this technique was
known hefore the Roman period and may have continued to be
practised during the early Islamic perilod, it is impossible
to date the remains sround Bourbaki accurately. However,
there is a strong possibility that this technique was
employed there during the Roman period. The exlstence of
these remains also indicates that, at an early date, the
open forest vegetation of these hill sloyes had already dis-
appeared.,

1. Gavault,P., 'Note sur les ruines antiques de Toukria',

oy TLeschi,L., 'Un autel votif de Bourbaki?, Le.AsBe, VOliles
1953, p. 87, :

%, Leschi,L., 1953, idem., Pe 87
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he We do not know the Roman name for Bourbaki.,

5. 'This unit was moved from Rapidum to Altava, one of the
: permanent camps at the western end of the Beveran
frontier, at the beginning of the 3rd century.
We know that the unit remained there until the
reign of Severus Alexander, but it was moved
agein, perhaps at some time between AD 222 and
2%5, to. Bourbaki. - '

6. The military camps &t Columnata and Hiberna Alae
Sebastenae were congiructed at the beginning of
The 3rd century (A.B. 1912, 173; A,B. 1954,
143 b). A milestone (C.I.L. 22587), discovered
between Bourbaki and Columnata, was set up be- .
tween AD 198 gnd 211, Salama, however, helieves
thet the text given in the Corpus is incorrect
and he dates the inscriptiou to AD 217 - 218,
(8alama,¥., Nouveaux témoignages de 1'oeuvre des

Severes dans la Maurdtanie Cesarienne', (Part2)
L.AdBs, VOls3; 1955, p. 358 note 123) :

7., ‘The first milestone which was set up in AD 298 - 299
was found one kilometre to the south-west of Ann-
gseur el Abiod; the second, set up between AD 333
and 337, was found 2% kilometres to the south-west
of Bourbaki; the third, set up between AD 333 ~
%37, was found L} kilometres to the south-west of
Bourbaki; and the fourth, set up between AD 360
and 3%6%, was found 2% kilometres to the south-west
of Aln Kebsba (Salama,P., Occupation de la Mauré-
tanie Uésarienne occlidentale sous le Bas Empire
romain ', Mélanges d'Archéolopie et d'Histoire
offerts b Anare Plganiol, Pariss 1966, pps 1300 -
1301, 08« 10, 119129 13) ®

8. Celelis 2152“ and 21526e

9, Capitals of the Christian period - i.e. Lth century
onwards - have been discovered at Bourbaki
(Leechi,Le, 1953, idems, ps 67)s The Roman
roads linking Bourbaki to Columnata and Hiberna Alae
Sebastense were maintained until the late Lth
century (Salama,]?.9\?1966, ideme, PP 1300 - 13019
noss 10,11,12, and 13)0 ' ,

10. GaVault,Pe, 1883, idems s DPhe 235 - 236¢
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68 - 712.

68, Farm Hordelalay

A small altar was discovered in 1950 near Farm
Hordelalay,” which is situated 12 kilometres to the
north-east of Bourbaki, at the foot of the Kef Mahmoud.
This hill rises to 1400 metres and forms one of the
southern slopes of the Ouarsenis mountains. The altar
measures 0,21 m, in length and 0,17 m. in height, and
carries the following inscriptiont Tellus terra mater
bonas segetes bonas vindemiag. It is a prayer to
Mother Earth for good cereal crops and vine harvests.
Leschi dates the inscription to the late 3rd century.

This discovery is particularly important because it
is definite proof that both cereals and the vine were
cultivated in this area during the Roman period.

More recently the ruins of several agricultural
settlements of the Roman periof have been discovered in
the southern foothills of the Ouarsenis mountains, with-
in a radius of 3 - 15 kilometres of Farm Hordelalay; at
Ain Feradja, Kef el Keskas, Sidi Rhanem. and Ain Sidi
Mansour.

60, Ain Peradia

There are Roman ruins occupying é narrow ridge,
(975 metres), which overlooks the valley of the Oued S.
Aled near Ain Feradja. When Salama visited the site,
there were still a large number of worked stones there,
and he discovered two Roman corn-mills and seventy-one
Roman coins of Constantine I among the-ruins.2 Only one
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inseription (C.I.L. 21522) has been discovered at Ain
Yeradja; 1t is the fragment of & tombstone and, although
undated, 1s not earlier than the Lth century.

The Roman ruins at Aln Feradja represent a small
koman settlement, probably a village, which was certaine
1y ocecupled during the Later Bmpilres

T0. Kel &l Keskas,

Selama has indicated that there are Roman ruins on
the southern slopes of a hill known as Kef el Keskas
(1056 metres), which overlooks the valley of the Oued el

: 3
Djenane,

The ruins have been used as a quarry by
colonigts from the nearby village of Licbert but one can
stlll sce numerous worked stones aund fragments of Roman
corn-mills and dolia, The lower half of a Homan corn-
nill and a complete dolium, discovered among the ruins,
have been {transported to Liebert.  Halama found two
fragments of Romen lamps of the Lth and 5th centuries at
Lel el Keskag:

Q
-

as [emi]te lu&[ernas colatas
(type C.L.L. VIII 22642/4)

¥ ES.SSG] .

b, [emite lucernas cola]tas ic[ones |
(type Colilie VILII 226L2/7)
te appears Lo be a Roman village which was
occupied 2t least during the Lth and 5th centuries.



177

71, 5143 Rhanen.

During the construction of a wilitary road in 1957,
the soldiers discovered the remsing of a house of the
Roman period on a ridge (850 metreé), overloocking the
valley of the Oued el Mell, at the point where it is
joined by the Oueds bou el Ak%haz, el Roualem, and
Taglelt,. They found seversl square pillars, numgrous
frégments of dolia, and the lower half of a Roman corpn-
mill which was teken to Liebeprt, Salama believes that
the ruins were destroyed to consitruct the nearby marabout
ot Sidi Khanem.™

Thia dwelling may have stood alone or formed part of
& villege or hamlet. There is no evidence o indicate
when it was bullt or how long 1t was occupiled.

72, Aln B5idil Mensour,

Roman ruins ocecupy & plateau (922 metres) between
the headws ters of the OQueds Tazelafel and el Melsah, a
short distance to the north of Ain S5idi Mansour. Iin
1954 Leglay indicated that a aumber of columns, the key-
stone of an arch, decorated with & 'chrisme, and numerous
worked stones had been discovered thera, Only one
inseription has heen found among the ruins, It is an

5

undated dedication to a god or splrit conservator aguaes

The ruins probobly represent a Roman farm or hamlet
which was certainly occupied during the Christian period
(Lith century onwards), and which was situated only a
short distance to the south of the frontier road, linking
the military camps =t Bourbski and Columnata. '
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It is possible that a farmer from one of these
settlements (probably Ffrom Ain Feradja), or the
community as a whole, set up the altar to Mother Barth
found near Farm Hordelalay. '

1. Leschi,L., 'Un autel votif de Bourbaki LeAolia,
Vol.l, 1953, ppe 87 = 9l

g v - ./ - G » e
2. Liaesus,d,, 'L'Archeologie Algérienne en 19597,
TiehAo¥iyy, Vol,8, 1960,, pp. L1h « 17.

%o liossus,des 1960, idem., pp. b - 16,
L, Lassus,Jd., 1960, ideme, P. 1h.

5, Leglay, M., 'L'Archéologie AlgePienne en 195%',
ReAos 1954, w 217. ‘
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- 13.__._ Letourneux,

Important Roman rulns occupled the site of the
rench colonisation village of Letourneux. Only one
of the inscriptions discovered there is included in
the Corpus  Imscriptionum Latinarum (21520); 1t is

badly defacéd, but was set up during the reign of
Septimius Severus and his sons( AD 198 - 211) - and
ends with the letters TENAL. ‘Saiamalbelieves that
this is & dedication set up by the [EQUITES ALAL SEBAS]
TENAR and that a detachment of this unit was gtationed
at Tetourneux during the reign of Sep timius Severus.
A number of other inscrintions have been discovered
there, including the towbstone of a deacon.

The ruins may represent either a small fort on the
road linking the military camps at HUiberna Alsc Sebastenae
and Bourbaki and the civil settlement that grew up around
it; or a small Roman town which received a detachment of
the Ala Sebastena at the beginning of the 3rd century.

The Roman centre was occupied at lesst during the 3rd and
Lth centuries,

e . “ - ’/ ry - . e

le Salamab,B,Hunweaux temolgnages dg}l'oeuvre des
séveres deng la Maurctsnie Cesarienne', LeAdlls,

VOlnly 19539 P P5?¢ :
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Tl TBERINA ATAT SERASTENAT,

The ruins of Hiberna Alae Sebagtenae are
situated at Eherba des Ouled Héllal, ten kilometres
to the norih-east of the village of Letourneux. They
occupy a wide plateau with a steep slope down to a
deep ravine on the north side, and a more gentle slope
towards the south, From this point there is an ex-
cellent view north across the main range of the
Ouarsenis mountalns towards Hiliana and Médéa, and
south towards the High Plains, The rulns cover an

area of 25 hectares, end one capn still see a large
nurber of worked stones, including several columns, and
the gateways of the Roman settlement.

Only one inscription has been discovered among the
ruanu.l Tt records that a fort was constructed there
for the aln Piz Gemina Sebastena in AD 201, Alr -
photographs of the site reveal a rectangular enclosure
(160 x 210 metres) at the centre of the ruins which
must represent the original military camp. The fort,

which covered an area of 336 hectares, was one of the
permanent camps on the Severan frontier, and was linked
by road to the militery camps at Bourba k12 in the west,
and Bog har in the east, and to the Roman centres of
Sufasar, Zucchobar, and Malliana, on the 2nd century
nilitary line. The Romsn road between Hiberns Alae Séb~
astenae and Bourbaki was repsired after the Berber ine

3

fol

gurrections at the end of the 3rd century.u
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A considerable civil settlement (covering 25

hectares) grew up around the camp and was protected

by ramparts, We do not know how long the town cone
tinued to be occupied but the milestone of AD 298 «
2995 s discovered nesy Annscur el Ablod to the west
of Hiberna Alse Scbastenae suggests that the settle-
ment was still ocecupled at the end of the 3rd and

the beginning of the Lth centuries.

1.

Lo

5e

Salama, P., 'Nouveaux témoignages de 1'oeuvre des
Séveres dens la Maurédtanie Cdsarienne', (Part 1)
;[J lﬁe.:;ti:', V()lo ]-9 ].9539 J:)po 257 e 253’9

A milestone, set up in AD 298 - 289, was discovered

1l kilometre to the south-west of Annseur el
Abilod, between Hiberns Alae Scébagtenac and Bour
baki (8alama,P., 'Occupstion de la Mauretanle
Césarienne occldentale sous le Bas-Empire romain',
Mélenpes d'Archeologie eb d'Mistoire offerts &
André Pigoniol, Paris, 1966, De L300, N0l

A milestone (C.T.l. 22586), set up in AD 238, was

discovered three kxilometres to the south-eagt of
Ain ed Dalia, between Hiberna Alae Schastense and
Boghar,

Jalama,l’e, 1966, idem., p. L1300, 1o.1lC.

Salama,P,, 1966, idem., p. 1300, 10,10,
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75¢ - 9idi Kaddours

Salama found that a nunber of worked stones had
peen used in the construction of the Marabout de 8idi
Kaddour, and the other Muslim tombs of the llekabrat
el Hadjadja, which is situated on & plateau (961. metres),
o short distance to the north of the Oued Nahr Ouvassel,

<L
One of the stones carries the following inscription<«:

hec mem[ov(ia) ] .60 clig / exi [,,,] e/
uzor et f£(i)

2]
~~
454
<

lie [:Oéhbe] a I:eotoqva is

Tt is clearly a tombstone of a late period but is too
. . 1

fraogmentery to allow a complete restoration.

3idl Kaddour was no doubt the slte of a small Roman

gettlement, a farm or a hamlet, which was occupied during
the Later Lmpire.

1. Tassus,J., L'Archéologie Algériennc en 1959', LeAsB.,
196(.‘)3; l)p' 3.7 - 18‘0



766 near Aln 8idi Mansour,

The ruins of a small Roman fort (25 x 20 m.)
constructed of dressed stone were discovered near
Ain Sidi Mansourl. The fort munt have surveyed
a section of the frontier rood which linked the

nilitary camps at Bourbeki snd Columnats.

ls Leglay,i., "L Archéologie Algérienﬁe en 19541
Rehsy 1955, D 217,
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77t ‘ Bogh%lrc

Although there are no detailed @escriptions of
the Roman rulns at Boghar, several inscriptions from
the site are included in the Corpus Ifnscriptionum
Latinarum (9229, 9220, 9231, 9232 and 20847).  They
tell us something of the history of the Roman centre.

A fort was established at Boghar in AD 1981 a8
part of the reorganisation of the defences of the pro-
vince by Septinius Severus. However, we do not know
the name of the unlt stationed there or how Jlong the
fort was occupied. A civilian population settled oute
side the forlt an sn eavrly dat62 and a capital, decorated
with a Christian motif, which was discovered among the
ruins, implies that the vicus continued to be occupled
during the Later Empire,

]. o C e I OIJ . 208“7 @

2o Culul, 9232 ig a civilian tombstone of AD 2423

Coelsly 9231 is slso a civilian tombstone but it
is undated,
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78,  RAFIDUM.

There are extensive Roman ruins known as Sour
Djoushb, 300 metres to the west of the French colonisation
village of Mas@uaray.l They cover an area of 15 hec-
tares, and are situated at a height of 878 metres
between the Oueds Messouagul and Sour DjJouab, which
jbin to form the Oued Safi a short distance to the west.
Bour Diousb is cut off from the Plaine des Beni Slimane
to the north by the Djebels Belgroun (1055 metres), and Dar
en Naga (1225 metres) while to the south are the Djebels
Merdjia (1009 metres), bou Tchicha (102L metres), end the
Pt, Oum en Wessis (1180 metres) which form the northern
foothills of the Titteri range.

Gsell deseribed the site in 1901.%° A% that time

one could see the remains of a large lrregular enclesure
(fig.h3) which was very well preserved, and in places
s3tood several courses high. The ramparts were 0,50 m.
to Q.70 me in'thiakn@ss; and were constructed of excele
lent Roman ashlar together with a number of carved
stones, and fragments of olive presses.  The two main
goteways into the enclosure - the east (fig. uhﬁ) and
west (£ig., LLA) gateways - were also well built end

were not flanked by towers.  Square bastions protected
the north-east walls and perhaps the south-west wall of
the enclosure, Inslde the main enclosure, walls of
mediocre construction divided the town into three sepapr-
ate guarters, The wall which separsated the north and
south quarters was protected by square bastions, There
was a gateway leading from the north to the south quarters
(Pige LLUC) and another which led from the south to the
south~east quarters (fig. LL4D); both these gateways were
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Tlanked by towers. The lines of former streets

could be seen in the north and south quarters of the
town while in the east quarter s number of large columns
marked the site of a temple. Two statues, one of
Jupiter and the other of Minerva; were discovered nears
by. Geell indicated thet a number of drinking troughs
had been found in the north quarter, and several olive
presses and copn-mills in the east quarter, The
gsettloment was sunplied with water by means of two
conduitsy one led water from & spring situated to the
east, and entered the town by the north~ecast angle;

the other led water from the south. '

There was a large cemetery to the west of the Roman
centre, contalning mausoleuns, stone coffins, and many
decorated tombstones. A number of tombstones were
also found to the north of the settlement.

To the north-esst of the main enclosure were the
remging of numerous buildings which appeared to represg-
ent an important suburb.

In the early 20th century a large nunber of trial
trenches were cut at Sour Djousb but they added nothing
to our knowledge of +the history .of the Koman town. In
1926, however, Allara cut a nunber of trenches to the
north~east of the main enclosure in the area formerly
known as the 'faubourg'. He discovered o small
rectengular enclosure (covering an area of 3 hectares), -
with Pour gateways. Seston's excavaetions in 1927
proved that this enclosure was in fact a military camp,5
(fige U45)e  The ramparts of the camp, constructed of
heavy stones, were 1.60 m. in thickness, The angles
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were rounded snd reinforced; the north-west angle,
wiich was completely excavated, conslsted of an inner
and an outer wall, each 1,10 m. in thickness, with a
central core of eurth and rubble, On the north side of
the camp, nearer to the north-east than to the north-
west angle, Seston found a gateway, or rather a long
corridor, 8,10 my in length and 485 m, wide,

flanked by recltangular towers which projected on elther
side of the vamparts The towers were construciod of
excellent Romen sshlar.

Inaside the canmp, to the weslt of the north gateway,
the excavations revealed traces of a street running
narallel to the norpth rampart, and leading to two
budldings (fig. b6), The £iprst building consisted of
three rooms which one entored from a corrvidor two metres
wide on the south side. Haeh room was divided into
two parts by a wall, and in one of the rooms!there were
the remains of a conerete floor supported by pillars
which led Seston to conclude that this was the Horreun
of the camp. The walls of this bullding were 0,60 m,
in thickness. Almost all the north-vwest angle of the
camnp ﬁaa occupied by twe bath-houses which were separated
from the grana&iag by @ sireet paved with small cobbles
(figs U6). One entéred the frigidarium of the northern
bath-house, which measured 5.60 2 x 11,70 m., from this
street, The floor of the room was made of concrete and
in places of flags, and was ralsed 3.80 m, above ground
level supported by lurge pillars. A door near the
nopth-west corner of the coldwroom led to the tepldarium
and the cagldaria,  The furnace chamber was situated to
the west of the c¢aldaria. Between the mein bullding and
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the rampart there was a lerge courtyard and against the
rampart, near the angle of the eamp, vore the latrines.

The second bath-~house was situated to the south, and
formed a complete unit, wuite indapendent of the first.

A doorway, two metres wide, oun the south side of this
building, led into the frigidarium, = large room

12.m. x 6,60 ms One entered the three hot rooms through
8 narrow doorway in the north wall of the frigidarium,

The furnace chamber, flanked by two smell store rooms,

wag sibucted to the west of the tepldarium and calderia,
The water for the two bath-houses came from a spring, the
Adin er Sahnoun, along a stone bullt conduit, Seston was
able to trace almost all its length except for the point
where it entered the bath-houses. The two esteblishments
were not contemporary. The northern bath-house was
carefully constructed and Seston conéluded that it had been
bullt when the fort was first established. The second
bath-house wrs sdded at a later date, perhaps in response
to the needs of a more importent garrvison,

No further work took place at Sour D jouab until 19@7.
In that year Leglay excavsted the east and west gateways
of the camps, In the following two years - 1048 - 1949 -
he carried out investigations in the town, excavating a
number of bulldings including a potter's workshop, and two
houses whileh revealed evidence of a certain luxury and come
Port in the style of 1ife of thenoccupantﬁ.u Between*
1950 and 1953 Leglay concentrated on the military camp.b
Me excavated the gsouth gatewsy which wes identical in plan
to the three other gateways, congigting of a central pas-
sage flanked by rectangular towers. This suggests that
all four gateways are contemporapry, and were construe ted when
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the fort was Pirst established, Later, perhsps to-
wards the end of the 3rd century when the camp was
sbandoned, the east and south goteways had been compiete~
1y blocked with enormous stones.

At the centre of the camp Leglay excavated the
headguarters building which was unfotunately in a poor
state of preservation, The bullding, (28 me X 24450 me)
consisted of three parts (fig. 47)3 en entrance opening
onto the yila prsetoria to the east; a central courtyard
(1450 me x 12,50 ms) wlth three sguare rooms to north.
and south of 1t and on the west side of the courtyard

a long, narrow room (23.40 m. % 5. 75 me) t0 the north
of which wae a small raised platform; and to the west,
Tive small rabmg ineluding the chapel (saoc}lum). Beveral
metres to the gouth of this structure there were traces
of a large bullding which may have been s stable block,
Next to 1t was another large building (27 me x 19.50 m.)
with a central courtyard surrounded by seven raoms
ineluding a small private heth-house, This was without
doubt the house of the commanding olficer, But this
structure covered an earlier building of an entirely Aif-
Perent construction. It had thick walls (1 m. = 1.50 m.)
and a coin of Vespasian (AD 69 - 79) was discovered at
the lewel of the foundatlions,.

During the same period (1950 « B53) Leglay dug a
number of trenches In the main setitlement sres which re-
vealed the existence of a nunmber of olive presses,

When the site wag visgilited in March 19667 part of
the main ramparts and the west galeway of the town were
5t11l stending several courses shove ground level, and
there were clear traces of the walls which divided the town
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into three separate quarterg," But there has been no
attempt to conserve these remalns or the structures ‘
revealed during the excavations carried out by Béstcn

and Legay. Proféssor Birley nmade the following
obgervations about the ruineg at Sour Djouab, “La
situation des ruines est aujourd'hui assez triste; il

¥ & besoln de beaucoup de conservation, particulierement
dane les structures gue 1L'on a fouilldes récemment, Les
inscriptions d'Hadrien et du regne de Marc-Aupele tonbent
et sont. sbandonndes sur place, et il est tres difrieile
pour le visiteur de distinguer ee gul étalt la sdquence
des fortifications du slte; 1l faut dsperer que de
nouvelles possibilites naltront pour une série de sondages
tres précis qui pourraient révéler 1'histoire structur-
elle d'un site que les inscriptions indiquent comme d'un
interét exceptionnel," 8

the Inscerivtions from Sour Djousb,

Porty-three inscriptions fron Sdur Djoueh are
included in the Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum (9195 =
9226a, 20833 - 20842), together with five milestones found
along the Roman roazds linking Sour Djouszb to Auzia and
Thanaranugs Castra (104%9, 10441, 10442, 22548, 225L9).

In 1908 Charrier discovered & milestone near the
east gate of the Caup. It was set up in AD 124 on the
Homan road linking ThanaremvusaCastra and Augis ot a point |
which was 33 Roman miles from the Lirst centre, aﬁﬁ 17 |
koman miles fromn the second.g Seston published nine |
inseriptions from Sour Djouab in 19283 10
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ie A dedication in honour of the procurator
T, Plavius Priscug Gallarius Fronte Marcius Tuxha ,
which can be dated to petween AD 158 and 160. Found

thirty kilometres from the nortd deaumana.ll
i1, An inscription recording the restorztion of a

hath~house by the Cohors 11 Saprdorun between AD 18k

and 190, This inseription had besn built into one

oft the walls of the northern bathnhmuseﬁlg

iii, A dedication to Fortune (AL 184 - 190) found in
situ in the wall of the rigidsrium of the northern bath-
hcuse.l§ |

ive An undoted dedication to the home god by a decurion
or acting commander of the alg Thracum. Found in the
wall of the frigidarium of the northarn.bathmhmuseolu

Ve A dedication to the Huperor Geta by the decurions
et up in AD 209,  This inscription was found near thé‘
gateway betwesn the ecast and west nuarters of the town.15
Vi The toubstone of Clauvdia Luelosa and her four
children who dled in AD 255.16 )

vil, Three undated civilian tombstaneﬂ.li

Two milestones were discovered by Seston at Souagul,

15 kilometres Lo the west of Sour Djousb,  The firet was
set up to mark the tenth mile from fppidum to Thanaramuss
Cagtra and is dated to AD 21,‘:’;;18 and the second also
marks the tenth mile from jwpidum and wes set vp durlng
the reign of Severus Alexander. 2 In 1925 Albertini
aiscovered & third milestone at Souagul, which was pub-
1ished by Seston in 1928, It was set up during the

velgn of Aurelian (AD 270 - 275) and locks llke an older
nilestone on which the name of the emperor hes been erased
ond that of Aurelian put om.20 A milestone set up in
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AD 155 was discovered 20 kilometres to the west of
Auzin  and published by Leschi in 1936,°%  In 1981
Leglay publighed twenty new inscriptlons fouwad during
his excavations at Sour Djousd. The Lirst is only a
Progment but the néme recopded on the inscription could
be Ds Veturivs Macrinus who was sppavently procurator
of the two Mauretanias in AD 180G, The inscription
wag found in the rulns of a pottory vorkshop, and had,
no doubt, bheen re-used.>>  The gecond is an inscrip-
tion set up for the health, safety, and vietory of
Urajan Decive (AD 2L9 - 251 ).  he stone was Pound

1.50 me from the north wall of the sovth-cast quarter of
the town, snd eppesrs to hove becn incorporated in this
late rampart.23 All the other inscripticns are tonbe
gtones found in the western and north-western cemeteries.
They are a1l undated, but appear to be of the 3pd century,
and only two are of any significance, One is the tombe
gtone of a veteranzg and the other the tombstone of a
goldier of the Cchors 11 Sardorum.25 Leglay discovered
nine tonbstones without-;ﬁécripti@n@ in the western and
north-western cemeﬁeries‘at Sour Hjcu&b.gé

From the ebundent epigraphic evidence and the résulis
of excavatlions carried out ot Sour Djouab, a cleap nicture
of the history of the Roman centre is beginning to CUCPEe,

1. There was certeinly a Berber population living in
the area sround Sour Djousb before the Roman occupation,
Libyan imecriptions of the pre-Romen period have been
discovered at Ain Tamda, thirteen kilometres to the west,
at Auzin, and at Hakenti nesr Ain Bessem; in 1913 &
relief representing a number of native gods perhaps the
famous dii Mauri, was found on the nlateau of Trab-Amara
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near Sour bLjouab; and Charrier discovered coins of

Mieipea, Juba 11, and Ptolemy 1 during his investigations
€

ameng the ruing at Sour wjoudb.“T

Leglay's eveavations inside the nilitary comp atb
Sour Djoush fevealed that the commanding officer's
house was built on fop of an earlier bullding of a very
different consiruction, and neay the foundations of the
sarlier structure he Ffound a coin of Vespasian (AD 69 -
'79)..2a This led Leglay to suggest that the site was
oceupied hefore the Roman milltary sccupation at the
beginning of the 2nd ceﬂturyagg Unfoftun&telyg although
early occupation at Sour Djouab is quite posaible, the
evidence on which Leglay's theory is based is inadequatbes
The earlier building may simply represent the Tirst of
two structural perlods of the hesdquarters puilding and
the digscovery of a coin of Vespasisn does not necessarily
Gote the esrlier structupe’d U0 Petveen AD 69 and 793
Ceolins of this emperor contlnued in circulation for many
years after the end of his relgn.
2a A fort wae established at Sour Djouﬁbnzl in AD 12232
ag part of the organisation of a military line which
stretehed across the province from Auzia to Praesidiun
Suffative and wHoh was the work of several emperors Lrom
Tpajan to Commodus,  Seston's excavations revealed the
exact site snd dimensions of the military camp (Lig. L45).
Tt wos rectangular in shape and covered an area of
approximately three hectares, A complete picture of the
{internal lay-out and structural sequence of the fort is
vet to emerge, but in 1927 Seston excavated the two bathe
houses, whih occupied the north-western part of the camp,
the north gateway and the granaries; and belween 1oh7
and 1953% Leglay excavated the other three gateways, the
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prineipia, the commanding officer's house, and a stable
block, T+ is unfortunate that Leglay hes not yet
published a plan to show the exact location of the
buildings which he excavated insilde the cawmp.

The unit stationed at Rapidum during the 2nd century
was the Cchors 11 Sardorun 35 and it scems probable that
this unit was joined by a detachment of the ala Thracun
soon after the Tort was PH@&%liSth.Eu As the Cohors
11 Bardorum was an infantry battalion, a detachment of
cavalry may have been sent to Rapidum to assist in
campaigns against terrorists in the surrounding hillsass
When Septimivs Severus established a new military line
further south, the Cohors 11 Sardorum was transferred to
QQQQXQ?G, one of the permanent camps on the new limes, and
the fort at Rgpldun no doubt became avalleble for civilian
occupatlon,

Be The Roman roads which linked Rapidum and Thanaramuge
Costra in the west and Auziga In the east anpenr to have
heen coustructed in the early 2nd cen+urv37 and they were
maintained throughout that century.” 38 Between AD 180 and
192 the whole military line wog fortifled after disturbed
conditions throughout the provinee; an ingeription from
Praesidiun Sufatlive 53 records that Commodus ordered new
posts to be estoblished in the province, and milestones:
t0 he re-cstoblished along the roads; and an inscription
found between banidum and Augla records that he ordered
the restoration or construction of watch-towers along the
road which linked the two camps.ho

After Septimius
Severus re-oprganised the defences of Mouretanis Caegarienw
sis at the beginning of the 3rd century, the roads linking
Auzla, Rapidum, and ThanaramuraCestra were kept in reguiar
Pepairul ond new roads were built to link Rapidum to Ced
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ed Diir and perhaps also to Usinage on the new
military line further southe The Perber revolts ab
the end of the third century caused widespread destruc-
tion but when peaceful conditions returned the roads
linking Auzls, Repldum, and Thanaranusa Cestia were reé-

)

L L2
naired. he

he A large civil settlement grew up around the

military camp at Rapidum. soldlers who had completed
thelr period of serviee in the Homan army settled down
outeide the Tort where they had been stationed, and

where nony had alresdy estoblinhed families.uﬁ he
presence of & military unit of 500 men, wach recelving
regular pey, attracted some of the loecal Berver population
to come and Live cutside the fort, By the second half of
the ™d century there was o vicus of congidersble size at
pepidun ond, although 1t had not yet achleved the rank of
o cheptered town, in AD 167 the community of veterani et
pagend living there was sufficiently wealthy to construct -
ot thelr own expense — ramparis to progect the settlement.

Seston hag suggested on the pasis of his reading of
(. ToTe 9196 w 20832 that durdng the geeond haelf of the
ond century the vicua atmﬁ&nidnm achieved the rank of a
pagus (rural district).nb By the beginning of the
third century the eivil settlement had become a municip=

¢
ium%o and 4 was during the firet half of this century

that, with more secure conditions as a result of the
organigation of the new frontier further south, the city
attained its grestest developm@nt.u7 We know vepy
11ttle sbout the history of Rapidun during the last
thirty years »f the 3rd century, put this perlod muaet
have been characterised by serious troubles. In 191h
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Chareier discovered o small hoard of forty-five Roman
colns ranging from the reign of Galllenus (AD 25% « 260)
to Clavdius (AD 268 - 270) which hed been buried under
s Plagstone in o house nesy the Forum at Rapidum,
eloguent testinmony of the inesccure conditions during
the tatter part of the century. There is & corploete
sories of Homen coins from the relgn of Trajan to that
of Gallienus, but no coinsof Anrelian, FProbug, or ,
Diceletian hove been discovercd at Hapidum. During the
Berber insurrections which lasted fron AD 239 -« 296 the

elty wos captured and destroyed by the rebels, but 1t
was rehuilt between AL 2935 -~ 505 he

The lster history of lapldum is pather onSCUre.

The elty continued to be oceupled durlng the first halfl
of the hth century. The most recent inscripiion from
the site is that set up to comuenorate the rebuilding of
the city between AD 295 ~ ’QJMO but numerous coins of
Moximlanus (AD 286 - 305), Constantius (AD %05 = B06),
Macentiug (4D 307 - 312) snd Constantine (AD 306 = 337)
have been discovered among the ruins. The settlement
nay have continued to be oceupied untll the end oft the
Sth century. An oplecopus Lapldiensis is named in the
proceedings of the Gouncil at Carihage in AD L8L and one
should perhaps restors Rapidengls,

5a The walls which divide the city lnto three separate
aquarters were constructed during the lLater umnire~ 20
Gepell suggested that they made it easier to defend the
city; 1f one guarter was captured the inhablisents could
take vefuge in a nmighbourinp guarher, 51 But it seens
more probable that these 1ate walls point to a decline in
the size of the Roman sebttlement, and the need 1o protect
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those areas still oceupied. Heston has polinted out
that Walls 1 and 2 (fig.L8) appear to be contemporary.
They are bhoth construqted of' gtones taken fron the

fort and are in ’bond,b2 Wall 3 (fig. 48) was the next
to be constructed and it incorporated many sculptured
stones from the temples of quarter ¢ which was the second
area to be abandoned, But Walls 1 -« % are more cape-
fully constructed than wall b (fig. L8), - An inscripe
tion, 55 stones from the main ramparts, and the welghte
Bione from an ollve press were used in the Sonstruction
of this wall, which separates quarters A and B, and the
towers are more irregular in plan,than those which
protect walls 1 and 2. As the projeciting bastions
which protect Wall L are on the south side 1t may be
agsumed that gquarter A was the last arca to be occupied
at Rapidum, |

6. A section of the inhsbitents of Kenidum were farmers
growing cereals and olives in fields outside the town.,
Gsell indicated that numerous Romsn corn-mills and parts
of olive presses had been found among the ruins,. and
Leglay's excavationsin the city in 1950 revealed
numerous ‘huilm*i«a‘sa’.5}“L &g early as the second half.of
the 2nd century the community living at Rapldun was
wealthy enough to construct, ot their oun CXDENES,
romparts to protect the settlement; Leglay excavated a
number of houses which revesled evidence of a certaln
luxury and comfort. This wealth must have been based on
agriculiture, During the 2nd century the Paprmers living
in the civil settlement no doubt found a ready market for
thelr produce at the fort where o unit of 500 men was sta-
tioned.
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Since independence this has been renasmed Soup Djouab,

Gsell, 8., Les Monuments Antiques de 1'Algerie, Vol.l,
Paris, 1901, pp. 91 - 95,

Seston,W., ‘'Le secteur de Rapidum sur le limes de
Meurétanie Cebarienne apres les foullles de
1927°, HaBiaFaRey Vol.h5, 1928, pp, 150 - 183,

B-Aocag 1950, v L3,
BsfAsCuy 1954, pp. 152 ~ 15k,

A full report on leglay's excavations at Sour Djeuab
between 1947 and 1953 is still to be published.,

I would like to thank Professor B, Birley snd
Honsieur P-A. Février, the Inspector of Antie
quities for Algeris, for allowing me 1o accom-
pany them on a vislt to Sour Djousdb which is
difficult to reach Dby public transport,

Rapport sur la Missian‘Archéblagiqua en Algerie du
brofessor Birley ~ Rapidum, Mars, 1968 (unpube
lished.)

Dessau 9372,

Seston,We, 1928, idem., pps 150 = 183,
Seston, ., /3888, , p. 158 = A.E. 1911, 108,
Seston,We, 1928, idem., ps 165,= AJE. 1929, 133,
BegtongWe, 1928, 1dem., ps 166 = ALK, 1929, 134,
Beston,We, 1928, ldems, pe 169 = A.E. 1929, 135,
Benton;Wey 1928, idem., pps. 176 « 177,
Seston,Wey BeAsCay 1928 « 1929, pp. 407 and L8,
Beston,Wey 1928 « 1929, idems, pp. 4OB ~ 408,

Seston,W., 1928, idems, ps 178 = A.BE, 1929, 136,
Salama,Ps, 'Note sur un williaire de Steéphane - Gsell)
BQAOGO, 1952§ PP 223 w 205,

S@SﬁOn,WQy 1928, idemy, D 179
AoE& 1929’ 1376

Leschi,Ls, 'Inscrintions du limes du 11% sisele -
Route d'Auzia (Aumsle) & Rapidum (Masqueray),'
BQAnCn, 1936 et 37; PP 299 bt 302q
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Leglay, e, ?Relfefa, Inseriptions et Stéles de
Rﬂﬂjaum % EupaR», VoJ; 635 39519 ﬁp;ﬁ% o
:AQI A @ 19)19 l{» - ¥

L@glaJ,ﬁag 19le iﬁﬁmog e 56 = AesHa 1951, 1h2a

Leglay,Ms, 1951, idem,, pPpe Th = 75 no 24 =
‘EI\.OLJ‘ 1{1519 14-244

Leglayslay 195:19 jd&meg e 75 - 76; 310-715
A'ue 19.}1’ 12450

LoglayyMe, 1951, idem., pps 78 = 81, nos. 29 - 37,
S@S‘tﬂngWOQ 19289 idemiﬁ PP 172 = 1750

»Ba.é&a(i.,l95h.; PO 152 = 15146

BeAeloyy 195&-9 ps 15k,

If we had a more detailed description of this builde
iang it night be possible to decide whether it
represents an earlier headguarters bullding or
s bullding which pre~dates the fort, It ie to
be hoped that the final report on Leglay 8 @Xw

- cavations imside the military camp at Sour Djouab
will be publisghed in the near future.

The Roman name for Sour Djéuab was Rapidum, (C.T.L.
2083l, 20835, 20836, ?gbuﬁ, AT, 1929, 136,

Col el oTia- 3083;&&

. The inseription A.F. 1929, 133 pecords thet between

AD 184 and 190 the Cohors 11 Ssrdorum rebullt
the bath-house at Rapidum,  The tombstones of
five soldiers serving in the Cohors _1l Sapdorum

have been discovered at Ragidum (Colelie 9198,
9200, 9202, 9207 and AJE, 1951, 1&5%

The inseription C. I. L. 9203 is the tonbstone of a
trooper of the ala Thracvm and, although undated,
it appears to belong to the early rather than to
the late 2nd century,

The gla Thracum,which may have had its permenent camp
at Auzia, appears to have been the main cavalry
uwnit in this sector of the 2nd century military
line. The inscription A.B. 1929, 135 is an
undated dedication by a decurion of the ala -
Thracun who was probably the temporary commanding
cfficer of the garrison at Rapidum.

Three ius oriptiens Promn Altava (CeI.L, 9833, 10949 |
B,d'0., 1931, pe 370) attest the presence of the
Cohors 11 Sardorum there at the beginningbf the

third century.
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In 1908 Charrier discovered a milestone set w in
AD 124 along the Roman road which linked
Auzia and Thanaramusa Castra at a point which
was 17 Roman miles from the fipst centre and
%% Roman miles Trom the second (Dessan 9372)

CoIlelis 1OL39 45 a milestone set up in AD lﬁ% tggmgrk
the 3rd mile from Augia to Repldum,. In 193
T,eschi published a milestone discovered 20
kilometres to the weet of Augia, It was also
set up in AD 155.° (Leschi,L., 1936 = 37, idem.,
Ppe 299 - 302, u ' : :

Calelis 22629,
Calolis 20816,

Milestones set up during the reign of Caracalla -
(LeBe 1929, 136,) Severus Alexander, (Seston,Ws,
1928, idems, pPe 179) and Aurelien (A.E. 1929,
137) have been discovered at Souagul between
Ropidum and Thansramusa Castra; and a milestone

of Trajon Decius (Celelie 225595 between Rapidum
and Auzise

A milestone set up during the reign of Diocletian.
has been discovered between Auzia and_Repidum
(CoI.Lo 22548), ,

The i]’]gcri}}tionﬁ ‘(OOI‘OIJC 91999 92019 9205, and
Leglay,Me, 1951, idems, ppe 74 = 75, no 24)
are all tombstones of veberans, :

Celolie 2083‘45 and 208350 ' ) .

In the same year (AD 167) a fort was constructed by
a leglonary vexillation at Tigava Castra, near
the large Roman town of Tigava (A.Re LOLO, 132).
The presence of a legionary vexillation in
Mauretania Caecariensls is unusual and indicates
that there must have been trouble in theprovince
at that time, although there is little evidence
of this from historical sources.

He restores G(enio) P(agl) A(ugusto) S(acrum)
(Seaton,W., 1928, idem., p. 175). The
inseription Celelie 9196 = 20832, which was dis-
covered in the wall of the west gateway of the
town, was set up by Catellius Marinius who -
honoured the ‘spirit of the pagus',
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In 1928 Beston published a Aedlcation to the
Emperor Geta sct up in AD 209 by the decurions

of Repidum ( Seston,W., 1928, idems., pps 176 - 177)e

The 1qrge%t cemetery at Rapldum -~ the western cemetery

- dates from the carly 3rd century. Coelalie
9208 - 9226 a and 20837 -~ 20842 are all civilian

tonbstones. Four civilian torbotones were
published by Seston in 1928 - 29 (Seston,We,
1928 - 29, idem., pps LO5 - 408), Bixteen
civilian tombstones undated but of the third
century were published by Leglay in 1951,
(L@Q‘lﬂygusg 19519 idﬁamug PPe 6) - 78)«

Colelis 20836,

The remparte described by Gsell in 1901 (fig, U43)
were constructed of excellent Roman ashlar bto=
gether with a large number of re-used gtones.
It is therefore possible that they were con-
gtructed during the relgn of Marcus Aurelius
(C.T.Le 2683L - 35), destroyed during the
Berber insurrection at the end of the 3rd century,
and rebuilt sometime between AD 293% and )05,
(Celolie 20836).

¢ o Lol 'y ?O&)ﬁa

We 6o not know the exact date but Lt was certalnly
after the end of the %rd century.

{3’8911, ﬁug 19019 iﬁc‘mu Ts 9)b

Those walls indieate that the area of the Tort,
which nust have become available for civilian
occupation during the Later Mmplre, and the
aven immediztely to the west of 1t were the
firat to be sbhandoned. We do not know when
these two areas were abandoned, but Seston found
coins of Maximian Herculius and of Crispus, the
son of Constantine, in the northern bath~house
which prove that it was still in use in AD 325
(Seston,V., 1928, 1dem., p. 172),

Celelie 9195,

Leglay does not inﬁicxto whether, by the use of the .
term 'hullerie', he means o substantial building
conteining a number of olive presses and storage
rooms or simply one room contalning an olive
Press.
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PLANS OF THE FOUR GATEWAYS OF THE
ROMAN TOWN AT SOUR DJOUAB

e
~

METRES




THE ROMAN FORT AND TOWN OF  RAPIDUM
[AFTER SESTON  1928]
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THE BATH-HOUSES AND HORREUM OF THE FORT AT. . RAPIDUM
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THE SEQUENCE OF  FORTIFICATIONS AT RAPIDUM

“+ 0

r+19.

MESSOUAGUL

RAMPARTS OF  FORT AD 122

WALLS OF CIVILIAN SETTLEMENT AD 167
REBUILT AD 293 -305

T
A

LATE WALLS [AFTER AD.293-305]

|

FIRST AREA ABANDONED

[0t

SECOND AREA  ABANDONED

THIRD AREA  ABANDONED

L]

LAST AREA OCCUPIED

o] 100 200

DJOUAB METRES

e OuED _ SOUR




202
19 ~ 85,

In the countryside around Repidum there are ruins of
. 1
g number of villages and farms.

79, Ksar bent el Solthan.

There are ruins of
Solthan,

a

Roman village at Ksar bent el
Ugell indicated traces of several buildings,
including a Christian church where a humber of column
bases were still in »lace,

off & water conduit,

Tound among the ruins,

There were also the remains
A numher of ollve presses were

80, Plateau de Hamadia.

There are Roman ruins covering an area of two hecw
tares on the Plateau de Hamadia, Roman corn-mills have
been discovered there.  This was no doubt the site of a
Roman village,

81, Ain Chéira.

A nurber of columns and several olive presses have
been found among the extensive Noman ruins neer Ain
Chéil‘&. b (AL

This was probably a large village or o small

tOwWn.
82, Kherba de Sfisifa.

There were important Kowman ruins at Kherba de _
Sfisifa, at the foot of the Djevel SPisifa.  Among the
ruins were the remains of a large building which may
have been a church.

Only one inscription has been found
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there; 1t is a towbstone set up in nmemory of a woman
who died at the apge of 60, and a man who dled at the
age of 30, and, althoush undated, the inscription is
clearly of the %rd century. This ol te nust represent
o village or small town, which wes certainly ofcupied
in the Jrd century, on the road linking Rapidum to the
Roman centre at Chellala des Adaoura.

b3, Ain ech Uhema,

Gsell indicated that column bases and capitals had
been found among the Roman ruins at Ain ech Chema. This
was probably the site of 2 Roman vil

al, Aln Tandes.

There were ruing of a Christisn basilica and
several other buildings at Ain Tamda, ten kilometres to

the west of Wapidum.  Seston carried out excavations

N

there in 1927 which revealed fhe detalled plan of a
church. 1t was quite small, only 2% metres long and 14
notres wide, and its decoration appesrs to have been very
POOY, The capitals discovered there are similar in
style to those Tound at Tipusa in the church of St Salsa

Ia)

which Gsell dates to the esrly sixth century.

Further exeavations revealed that the church cccu-
pied the western part of a large building, 56.25 m long,
29 m, wide at its custern end, and 25.30 m, wide at 1ts
western end (fig.h9). The eastern part of the building
consisted of a nunber of rooms of different dimensions
constructed around a large open courtyard. The only
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entrance into the building was through a gateway in the
eaast wall, and then along a narrow éorridor which led
ints the courtyard, The outer wall of the bullding
was 1.10 me in thiciness whereas the interior walls were
only 0.70 m. in thickness.

Seston suggests that thie puilding complex represents
a nonastery, the firéf African example of a type of
religious architecture that origimmted in southern Syria,
Frend, however, wonders whether the building was in fact a
monas tery., He thinks that it may represent a fortified
enclosure or stronghold, containing communal store-houses
and a church, like the one which he excavated at Kherbet
EahrarouSB( Numidia ) ina 1939, This type of building
is characterigtic of many Romano-Berber villages in the
High Plaing of Numidia. The civilian tombstone of the 3rd
century which wze discovered built into one of the walls of
the church at Ain Tamda, may be used to supporid Frend's
theory. On the‘othgr haad, it is oulte possible that the
inscription was tressported from another Roman site nearbhy
when the church was belng constructed, On available

evidence it ie difficult to choose bhotween the two theorlies.

35, Aln Aouina,

© On a hillock at Ain Aouina, LOO metres to the west
of Sidi Saad, there were ruins of & building (70 m. x 56 m.)
constructed of sxcellent Homan ashlar. Usell suggests
that this was o lorge fortified farm,
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Seston discovered the ruing of a number of large

Romen farms around Rapidum, but he does not
sive thelr cxzet location so thaot it is ,
impossible to mark them on a map. (Beston,W.,
'Le occtcur de Rapidun sur le limes de Mauré-

canie ubsnfncnﬂv,dgpos les foullles de 1927',
W Fel.Ry, 199&, ne 150 and Beston, We, 'Le

PRt At e

Honastere d'Ain Uamdd;'n BeoltsRes 1934, De 96)

caton,We, 193, idem., ppe 79 = 113,

Frend, W.H.C., The Donatist Church -~ A Movement of

Frotest in Ronman North Africa, Oxford, 1952,
De b5 note 3.
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PLAN OF THE ROMAN RUINS AT AIN TAMDA
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86, Medjedel.

There are Koman ruing near ledjedel which is
situated between the Zahréz Shergul ~and the northern
slopes of the Djebel -Bghari - oue of the chains of
the ¥Monts des Ouled Wail - av the confluence of the
Oueds ea.Zelegh and Medjedel.  An inserivtion dis-
covered there by Monjanze was published by Lesehi in
1943, It records the presence of & cohort at Hedj-
edel between AD 148 and 149 ,

The rulng probably represent 9 Roman fort snd,
although the date of 1its Pounds tion is wncertain, there
is a strong possiﬁility.that it wags constructed after
the widespread insurrectlons in Hauretania Caesariensis
between AD 145 ~ 1&7.

1« Leschi,L., 'Une inscription Romaine de Hed jedel',
T4udes d'Fpigraphie, d'Avchéologie ¢t

a'Histoire Africaines, Paris, 1957, ppe U5 =~ L6




